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developments. Actual results may deviate even significantly from those announced, depending on a variety of factors, the majority of

which are beyond the Group’s control.
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GROUP PROFILE

The IEG Group is active in organising trade fairs, hospitality for trade fairs and other events in exhibition
spaces, promoting and managing convention centres and supplying services related to trade fairs and
conferences. The Group is also active in the publishing sector and trade fair services connected with
sporting events hosted.

The Group confirmed its position as one of the leading national and European operators in the trade fair
organisation sector: in particular, it is a leader in Italy in organising international events, focussing on
those targeted at the professional sector (so-called B2B events).

It organises and manages trade fairs primarily in the following
structures:
= Rimini Trade Fair District, located in via Emilia no. 155;
= Vicenza Trade Fair District, located in via dell’Oreficeria no. 16;
= Rimini Convention Center, located in via della Fiera no. 23 in Rimini;
= Vicenza Convention Center, located in via dell’Oreficeria no. 16, Vicenza.

The two trade fair districts are owned by the Parent Company Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A., the Rimini
convention center is leased while the one in Vicenza is part owned and part leased, based on a gratuitous
loan for use agreement expiring on 31 December 2050.

The Parent Company also operates through local units located in Milan and Arezzo.

Aside from the Rimini and Vicenza sites, the Group organises trade fairs in the trade fair districts of other
operators in Italy and abroad (e.g. Rome, Milan, Arezzo, Dubai, Chengdu, Leon, Sdo Paulo, to mention
just a few) also through subsidiaries, associated and joint control companies.

Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A. (“IEG”) is the Parent Company and a subsidiary of Rimini Congressi
S.r.l., which, in turn, drafts the consolidated financial statements. The Company is not subject to
management and coordination by Rimini Congressi S.r.l. pursuant to art. 2497 et seq. of the Italian Civil
Code. In fact, none of the activities that typically prove management and coordination activities,
pursuant to art. 2497 et seq. of the Italian Civil Code exist.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The following statement summarises the main economic-financial results of the IEG Group at 31
December 2022 and compares them with the previous year. This Consolidated Annual Financial Report
at 31 December 2022 has been prepared in compliance with Article 154 ter of the Consolidated Law on
Finance and is prepared in accordance with the international accounting standards (IAS/IFRS) Adopted
by the European Union.

The amounts shown in this Report on Operations are stated in thousands of Euro; the notes commenting
on them are expressed in millions of Euro.

% of % of

Revenues 31.12.2021 Revenues Variation Var. %
Revenues 100.0% 102,503 100.0% 59,438 58.0%
Adjusted gross operating margin (EBITDA) 18,068 NW2/S (5,734) -5.6% 23,802 >100%
Adjusted operating income (EBIT) 2,274 1.4% (21,921) -21.4% 24,195 >100%
Profit/(Loss) for the year e -0.5% (673) -0.7% (100) 14.9%
Net Financial Position (NFP) (105,629) 10,275 -10%

Group Revenues for 2022 come to 161.9 million euros, up 59.4 million euros on the previous year, which
benefited from non-recurring income in the amount of approximately 28.2 million euros due to Covid-19
contributions. The increase in sales net of Covid grants is 87.6 million euros.

Adjusted EBITDA of 18.1 million euros, up 23.8 million euros on 31 December 2021, when the Group
recorded gross EBIT, net of the specified contributions and other non-recurring items, that was negative
for 5.7 million euros. The EBITDA margin is back to two figures, coming in at 11.2%, recovering +16.8
percentage points at 31 December 2021, despite still suffering the low volumes of the first part of the year
due to the essential inactivity of the first quarter, but also the progressively increasing inflation expected
in 2022.

Adjusted EBIT comes to 2.3 million euros, an improvement of 24.2 million on the previous year, when it
came to -21.9 million euros.

The Group closes essentially at break-even, with a loss of 0.8 million euros, compared with the loss of
0.7 million euros recorded at 31 December 2021.

The Net Financial Position at 31 December 2022 is 95.4 million euros, an improvement of 10.3 million
euros on the previous year, when it was 105.7 million euros thanks to solid cash generation.
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ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (APIs)

Management uses certain performance indicators that are not identified as accounting measures under
IFRS (NON-GAAP measures), to enable a better assessment of the Group's performance. The
determination criterion applied by the Group may not be consistent with that adopted by other Groups and
the indicators may not be comparable with those determined by the latter. These performance indicators,
determined in accordance with the provisions of the Guidelines on Performance Indicators issued by
ESMA/2015/1415 and adopted by CONSOB in Notice No. 92543 of 3 December 2015, refer only to the
performance of the accounting period covered by this Consolidated Annual Financial Report and the
periods compared. The performance indicators should be considered as complementary and do not replace
the information drafted in accordance with the IFRSs. Below is a description of the main indicators adopted.

= EBIT (Earnings Before Interest, Taxes) or Operating Income: this indicator is defined as
Profit/(Loss) for the year from continuing operations before financial management and income taxes.

= EBIT (Earnings Before Interest, Taxes) or Adjusted Operating Income: this indicator is defined as
Profit/(Loss) for the year from continuing operations before financial management and income taxes
and costs and revenues considered by management to be non-recurring.

= EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortisation) or Gross Operating
Margin: this indicator is defined as Profit/(Loss) for the year from continuing operations before
depreciation of tangible and intangible assets and rights of use, financial management and income
taxes.

= EBITDA or Adjusted Gross Operating Margin: this indicator is defined as Profit/(Loss) for the year
from continuing operations before depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and usage rights, financial management, income taxes and costs and revenues
considered by management to be non-recurring.

= Net Commercial Working Capital: this indicator is calculated as the sum of Inventories and Trade
receivables net of Trade payables.

= Net Working Capital: this indicator is calculated as the sum of Commercial Net Working Capital and
Other Current Assets and Liabilities including Current Provisions for Risks and Charges.

= Net Invested Capital: this indicator is total Current and Non-Current Assets, excluding financial
assets, net of Current and Non-Current Liabilities, excluding financial liabilities.

= NFP (Net Financial Position): this indicator is calculated in accordance with the provisions of
"Warning notice no. 5/21" dated 29 April 2021 issued by Consob, which refers to ESMA Guideline 32-
382-1138 of 4 March 2021.

= Monetary NFP (Monetary Net Financial Position): this indicator is calculated in accordance with
"Warning notice No. 5/21" dated 29 April 2021 issued by Consob, which refers to ESMA Guideline 32-
382-1138 dated 4 March 2021, with the exclusion of items related to leases accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 16, Put Options and Financial Derivative Instruments recognized in accordance
with IFRS 9.

= Free Cash Flow: this indicator is calculated as cash flow from operating activities net of investments
in property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (excluding fixed assets under right of use
recognized during the year in accordance with IFRS 16) and financial and tax income and expenses
serving operating activities.

13
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RECLASSIFIED GROUP ECONOMIC RESULTS

The table below shows the main economic items of the year, compared with the previous year:

Reclassified Consolidated Income Statement % 31.12.2021 % Variation Var. %
Revenues 100.0% 102,503 100.0% 59,437  58.0%
Operating costs -66.7% (53,889) -52.6% (54,122)  >100%
Contribution Margin 33.3% 48,615  47.4% 5314  10.9%
Labor costs 235%  (27,003) -26.3%  (11,098)  41.1%
Amortisation, depreciation and impairment -9.8% (18,757) -18.3% 2,963  -15.8%
Non-Recurring Charges and Income 1.4% (24,775)  -24.2% 27,015 >100%
Adjusted Operating Income (EBIT) 1.4% (21,921) -21.4% 24195  >100%
Non-Recurring Charges and Income (VRN -1.4% 24,775  24.2% (27,015) >100%
Operating Profit/Loss (EBIT) <N 0.0% 2,855 2.8% (2,820) -98.8%
Net Financial Charges Seys  0.3% (3,896) -3.8% 4,433 >100%
Earning before tax VAN 0.4% (1,041) -1.0% 1,613 >100%
Income tax ERIGY  0.8% 368 0.4% 1,713)  >100%
Net Result Wy 0.5% (673) -0.7% (99)  14.8%
Amortisation, depreciation and impairment EEER)N  -9.8% (18,757) -18.3% 2,963 -15.8%
EBITDA el 9.8% 21611 21.1% 5,783 -26.8%
Non-Recurring Charges and Income vl 1.4% (27,345) -26.7% 29,585 >100%

Adjusted EBITDA 18,068 ENWAL] (5,734) -5.6% 23,801 >100%

Group Revenues as of 31 December 2022 stood at 161.9 million euros, an increase of 59.4 million euros
(+58.0%) from 31 December 2021. In the previous year, non-recurring income of approximately 28.2 million
was recognized for Covid-19 grants received. The increase in sales net of Covid grants is 87.6 million
euros.

Financial year 2022 was characterized by a start of the year still negatively impacted by cyclical factors,
primarily the resurgence of the Covid-19 pandemic, which forced the suspension of activity for most of the
first quarter, while starting in the second half of the year, the sectors in which the Group operates showed
strong signs of recovery, higher than expected, registering sales volumes, participation and satisfaction
from operators, in some cases, higher than in the pre-pandemic scenario.

Organic revenue growth in 2022 was 26.5 million euros (+25.9% compared to 2021), driven mainly by
higher volumes on events in the second half of the year and partly by price effects.

Revenue recovery related to the post-Covid restart (the 'Restart’ effect) with the scheduling of cancelled,
suspended, digitally held, or reduced events in 2021 amounted to 53.4 million euros (+52.1%), while
incremental revenue for the biennial nature of some events contributed 4.3 million euros (+4.2%) to FY
2022 revenues.

14



IEG Group Report on Operations

With reference to the Group's only operating segment such as "Hosting of trade fairs, events and
performance of related services," revenue figures disaggregated by line of business are shown below:

31/12/2022 % 31/12/2021 % Variation Var. %
Organised Events 88,158 54% 38,471 38% 49,687 >100%
Hosted Events 3,148 2% 2,078 2% 1,070 51%
Conferences 14,776 9% 6,894 7% 7,882 >100%

Related Services 51,286 32% 23,042 22% 28,244 >100%
Publishing, Sporting Events and Other
Activities

Non-recurring Income - Covid Contributions 690 0% 28,199 28% (27,508) (98%)

TOTAL REVENUES 161,941 100% 102,503 100% 59,437 58%

3,883 2% 3,820 4% 63 2%

Revenues from Organised Events were 88.2 million euros, an increase of 49.7 million compared to 2021,
when the Group's activities had been suspended for most of the first half of the year. The share attributable
to the “Restart” component affects 30.7 million euros, while the "Schedule" effect of 4.6 million euros is
generated by biennial events such as 'Tecna' and 'IBE - Intermobility and Bus Expo,' partially offset by
lower revenues from the scheduling of the 'Fieravicola’ event. The organic growth achieved on this
business line was 13.5 million euros. Organised Events suffered in the first half of 2022 from the effects
of the latest pandemic wave induced by the Omicron variant of the Sars-Cov-2 infection, the peak of which
occurred in January, the month in which important events such as 'Sigep’, 'Vicenza Oro January' and
"TGold' are traditionally scheduled. Although no legislation has been introduced to prohibit trade fair-
conferences, following discussions with the main stakeholders involved in the production and distribution
chains of the companies taking part in the trade fairs of January and February, the Company decided to
postpone the events Vicenza Oro January, TGold, Sigep and Beer & Food Attraction, from the original
dates, to March. The change in the schedule clearly resulted in limited participation of both domestic and
international exhibitors and visitors, significantly penalizing the results of the first quarter of the year
compared to the pre-pandemic environment.

The second quarter has seen certain important events back occupying the historic date, including 'Rimini
Wellness', 'Oroarezzo' and 'Abilmente Primavera'. The first Solar Exhibition & Conference was also
launched in April.

Beginning in the third quarter of 2022, the signs of recovery gradually strengthened, with exhibitors' and
visitors' great interest in the 'Vicenza Oro September and VO Vintage' event: industry professionals
rewarded the only organizer which, throughout the pandemic period, continued to promote meeting
platforms and events and proved to be a catalyst for the needs of the goldsmith community. The event
also achieved record foreign visitor numbers, a clear sign of the strategic importance of the event for the
industry not only nationally but also internationally.

The business line represented by Hosted Events, through which the Group leases its exhibition facilities
to clients operating in the event organization sector, generated revenues of 3.1 million euros and saw the
holding of 10 events by third-party organizers. The growth recorded compared to 2021 is attributable in
part to the excellent performance due to the return of the main events Macfrut and Expodental and in part
to the acquisition of new events, also with a multi-year schedule, such as "Focus on PCB" and "YED" at
Fiera di Vicenza; "We Make Future" at Rimini Fiera.

The Congress Events segment, carried out through the management of the facilities of the Rimini
Palacongressi and the Vicenza Convention Centre (VICC), in 2022 records revenues of 14.8 million euros,
an increase of 7.9 million euros compared to 2021, represented for 5.5 million by the so-called "Restart"
effect and 2.4 million by organic growth. Congress Activity, which was also initially held back by the
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pandemic, saw a total of 122 events held between Rimini's Palazzo dei Congressi and VICC (Vicenza).
The congressional business has been extremely responsive, demonstrating a rapid return to pre-
pandemic record levels.

Revenues 2022 attributable to Services segment, for the provision of services linked to exhibition and
convention events, reach a total revenue of approximately 51.3 million in 2022, an increase of 28.2 million
compared to 31 December 2021. The increase was mainly due to the "Restart" effect of 17.0 million euros
and organic growth of 9.4 million euros. The Related Services benefits from the recovery of the exhibition
sector especially in the second half of the year.

The business related to Publishing, Sports Events and Other Activities mainly includes publishing
activities carried out for the tourism sector (TTG ltalia, Turismo d'ltalia and HotelMag) and for the gold
sector (VO+ and Trendvision). Revenues from the line amounted to 3.9 million euros, an improvement of
0.1 million euros from 3.8 million euros in 2021.

Operating Costs as of 31 December 2022 amounted to 108.0 million euros (53.9 million euros as of 31
December 2021), with the percentage of sales increasing from 52.6% (72.5% of sales normalized by the
one-off effect of Covid contributions) to 66.7%. The volume recovery allows for a 5.8 percentage point
improvement in the percentage of sales despite inflationary increases in material and transportation
procurement costs on related services and energy costs.

The Contribution Margin recorded in the year amounted to 53.9 million euros, up 5.3 million euros
compared to the previous year (48.6 million euros). Net of the positive effect of Covid contributions, Value
Added improves by 5.8 percentage points compared to 31 December 2021 from 27.5% to 33.3% recorded
in 2022.

Labor costs amounted to 38.1 million euros (23.5% of revenues), up 11.1 million euros compared to the
27.0 million euros (26.3% of revenues) recorded as of 31 December 2021, in which it was contained by
the effects of social shock absorbers, the absence of variable components of wages and lower business
volumes.

Adjusted EBITDA, amounted to 18.1 million euros, an improvement of 23.8 million euros compared to
2021, when it was negative 5.7 million euros. EBITDA Margin as of 31 December 2022 returns to double
digits at 11.2%, also improving on plan forecasts. In FY 2022, particularly in the second half of the year,
the Group recovers 16.8 percentage points due to higher volumes attributable not only to the post-
pandemic restart, but also to organic growth that, in financial year 2022, was only able to partially recover
the inflation-related increase in energy and material costs through tariff adjustments.

EBIT as of 31 December 2022 closes at a break-even point, while in the previous year it was 2.8 million
euros. Net of the Covid contribution and other non-recurring income and expenses, Adjusted EBIT for
financial year 2022 was 2.3 million euros, an improvement of 24.2 million euros from 31 December 2021.

The Net Financial Charges is positive by 0.5 million euros and improves by about 4.4 million euros
compared to 2021. The change is mainly attributable to the fair value of derivative financial instruments,
an improvement of 2.0 million euros over 2021, and 1.7 million euros to lower charges related to the fair
value of put options.

Earning Before Taxes amounted to 0.6 million euros, an improvement of 1.6 million euros compared to
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31 December 2021.

Income Taxes for 2022 amounted to 1.3 million euros while in 2021 the tax income recognized amounted
to 0.4 million euros.

Group's Period Result was a loss of 0.8 million euros, broadly in line with the loss recorded in 2021 of

0.7. The Profit for the Period attributable to the shareholders of the Parent Company is positive,
amounting to 0.8 million euros compared to 1.6 million euros in 2021.

GROUP RECLASSIFIED ECONOMIC RESULTS FOR Q4

m Re\iz{l os Q4 2021 Re\iz{l os Variation Var.%
Revenues BEEEEEY 1000% 59,982 100.0%  (8,149)  -6.9%
Adjusted gross operating margin (EBITDA) 20.0% 6,369 10.6% 4,808 75.5%
Adjusted operating income (EBIT) 15.0% 1,821 3.0% 6,577 >100%

Profit/(Loss) for the period EIOLTR  14.5% 18,385 30.7% (10,289) -56.0%

Fourth quarter 2022 recorded Revenues amounting to 55.8 million euros, net of non-recurring items
represented by Covid contributions amounting to 17.9 million euros. The change in turnover compared to
the same quarter 2022 is 13.8 million euros with an increase of 32.7%, a result that marks not only full
recovery, but also that the pre-pandemic levels have been exceeded. The growth was driven by the
excellent performance of events such as 'Ecomondo and Key Energy,' in their last edition at the same time,
which recorded record results in terms of occupancy, volumes and feedback from the community and
institutions.

On the international front, the 'Wellness' segment contributed to fourth quarter sales with two events in the
Middle East and South America, respectively. More specifically, the 'Dubai Muscle Show' was held in
October at the Dubai World Trade Center in Dubai. The event showed strong growth results on 2021 and
great potential for development, while in November the first edition of 'BTTF - Brasil Trading Fair' was held
in Sao Paulo, Brazil.

4Q 2022 % 40Q 2021 % Variation Var. %

Organised Events 66.9% 26,011 43% 11,344 44%
Hosted Events 0.0% 88 0% (88) (100%)
Conferences 10.3% 3,619 6% 2,157 59.6%
Related Services 19.9% 11,468 19% (371) (3.2%)
Zﬁt?\l/ﬁrelgg Sporting Events and Other 2.9% 900 1% 699 77 7%
ggﬂt:ﬁﬂgﬁg Income - Covid 0.0% 17,896 30% (17,889) (100%)
TOTAL REVENUES 100.0% 59,981 100% (4,148) (6.9%)

Adjusted EBITDA, achieved in the fourth quarter of the year reached 11.2 million euros, an improvement
of 4.8 million euros compared to 2021 (6.4 million euros). EBITDA Margin as of 31 December 2022
returns to double-digit and pre-pandemic levels standing at 20.0% despite inflationary increases that
sharpened in the second half of the year.

Adjusted EBIT for the fourth quarter was 8.4 million euros, an improvement of 6.6 million euros compared
to 31 December 2021.
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The last quarter of the year closed with a Profit of 8.1 million euros, net of the Covid contribution, an
improvement over the fourth quarter 2021 of 7.6 million euros.
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ANALYSIS OF RECLASSIFIED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET FIGURES

31.12.2022 31.12.2021 Variation Var. %
Intangible fixed assets 12,373 12,732 (359) -2.82%
Goodwill 25,360 21,787 3,573 16.40%

Property, plant and equipment 190,674 358 0.19%
Financial assets and Investments in affiliates 14,255 3,968 27.83%
Other Fixed Assets 6,622 7,397 (774) -10.47%
Fixed Assets 253,611 246,845 6,766 2.74%
Trade receivables 30,041 23,126 6,915 29.90%
Trade payables (42,807) (33,825) (8,982) 26.55%
Inventories 852 731 121 16.59%
Net Trade Working Capital (NTWC) (11,914) (9,969) (1,945) 19.51%
Other Current Assets 7,382 6,026 1,357 22.52%
Other Liabilities and Provisions for Risks — current (52,680) (36,291) (16,389) 45.16%
Net Working Capital (NWC) (57,212) (40,234) (16,978) 42.20%
Other non-current liabilities (1,805) (2,020) 215 -10.62%
Employee severance indemnity (2,959) (3,754) 795 -21.18%
Provisions for risks — non current (2,174) (1,830) (345) 18.84%
Net invested capital (NIC) 189,460 199,007 (9,546) -4.80%
Shareholders’ equity 93,378 728 0.78%
Net Financial Position (NFP) 105,629 (10,275) -9.73%
TOTAL SOURCES 199,007 (9,547) -4.80%

Net Invested Capital, at 189.5 million euros (199.0 million euros as of 31 December 2021), shows a
decrease of 9.5 million euros, of which 6.7 million euros is an incremental change on fixed assets and 17.0
million euros on Net Working Capital.

Fixed Assets (253.6 million euros as of 31 December 2022) marks an overall increase of 6.7 million euros
mainly attributable to the acquisition of the subsidiary VGroup S.r.I. which resulted in the recognition of
provisional goodwill of 2.9 million euros, while the change in financial assets of 3.9 million euros is mainly
represented by the increase in unconsolidated equity investments, including the investment in IGECo S.r.l.
for 3.4 million euros, against the acquisition of a 50 % stake in the company in a joint venture with Deutsche
Messe AG (DMAG).

Negative Net Working Capital and amounting to 57.2 million euros as of 31 December 2022, shows an
increase of 17.0 million euros in relation to higher advance payments recorded against advances from
customers for events to be held in the first quarter of 2023, and which in the previous year were more
restrained due to reduced activity caused Covid.

Group's Net Financial Position as of 31 December 2022 was 95.4 million euros, an improvement of 10.3
million euros compared to 31 December 2021.
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CUVEVIPlPA 31/12/2021  Variation

Opening net financial position (105,629) (129,077) 23,448
Adjusted EBITDA 18,068 (5,734) 23,801
Change in net working capital 15,178 45,926 (30,748)
Investments (6,256) (5,706) (550)
Acquisitions (6,631) (113) (6,518)
Taxation (584) 162 (746)
Net financial income/(expenses) (2,572) (2,699) 126
(Purchase)/sale of treasury shares (127) - (127)
Dividends - - -

Other non-monetary changes (6,800) (8,388) 1,588

Closing net financial position (95,354) (105,629) 10,274

Operating cash generated in the year amounted to 19.6 million euros. Capital expenditures for the period
amounted to 6.3 million euros and mainly related to routine maintenance of the fairgrounds and facilities of
the production companies, as well as investments on information systems and digitization projects.
Development investments completed through acquisitions totalled 6.6 million euros and related to both
expansion in the Italian market with the acquisition of VGroup and expansion in the international market
with the investment in the joint venture with Deutsche Messe AG.

Net financial position ! 31/12/2022 3171212021
A. Cash and cash equivalents 50,586 52,651
B. Cash equivalents - -
C. Other current financial assets 137 261
D. Liquidity: (A) + (B) + (C) 50,723 52,912
E. Current financial payables (10,272) (10,723)
F. Current portion of non-current financial debt (18,301) (19,480)
G. Current financial debt: (E) + (F) (28,573) (30,203)
H. Current net financial indebtedness: (G + D) 22,150 22,709
. Non-current financial liabilities (114,073) (115,815)
J. Debt instruments - -
K. Trade payables and other non-current payables (3,431) (12,523)
L. Non-current financial debt: (I) + (J) + (K) (117,504) (128,338)
M. Total financial debt: (H) + (L) (95,354) (105,629)

! Net financial position presented in accordance with the ESMA Guidelines of 4 March 2021 (Consob warning notice no.5/21)
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RECLASSIFIED PERIOD ECONOMIC, EQUITY AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
PARENT COMPANY

The table below shows the main reclassified financial and equity items at 31 December 2022, compared with
31 December 2021, for the Parent Company IEG S.p.A.

RECLASSIFIED INCOME STATEMENT DATA OF ITALIAN EXHIBITION GROUP S.P.A.

31.12.2022 % 31.12.2021 % Variation Var. %

XA 100.0% 72,587 100.0% 37,371 515%
@Y -66.7% (37,842) -52.6%  (36,723) 97.0%

Reclassified Consolidated Income Statement

Revenues

Operating costs

Value added RPN 33.3% 34,745  47.4% 648  1.9%
Staff costs (P WEON -23.5% (16,723) -26.3% (5,766)  34.5%

(11,144) RS (13,946) -18.3% 2,802 (20.1)%

Amortisation, depreciation and impairment

Non-Recurring Charges and Income 1.4% (21530) -24.2% 24459 <(100)%
Adjusted Operating Income (EBIT) 1.4% (17,454) -21.4% 22,144  <(100)%
Non-Recurring Charges and Income (PRCEOR -1.4% 21,530 24.2% (24,459) <(100)%
Operating Profit/Loss (EBIT) 1,760 EEONLZ 4,076  2.8% (2,316) (56.8)%
Financial management 77y 0.3% (2,263) -3.8% 3,106 <(100)%
Pre-tax result 2,603 0.4% 1,813 -1.0% 791 43.6%

Income tax (1,091) LT (203) 0.4% (888) >100%
Group result for the period 1,513 ORI 1,610 -0.7% 97) (6.00%

Amortisation, depreciation and impairment (RN -9.8% (13,946) -18.3% 2,802 (20.1)%
EBITDA 12,903 9.8% 18,022 21.1% -5,118 (28.4)%
Non-Recurring Charges and Income VSN 1.4% (21,530) -26.7% 24,459 <(100)%
Adjusted EBITDA 15,833 KT (3,508) -5.6% 19,341 <(100)%

31.12.2022 31.12.2021 Variation Var. %
Intangible fixed assets 10,804 11,435 (630) -5.51%
Goodwill 8,211 8,211 0 0.00%
Property, plant and equipment 172,646 180,408 (7,762) -4.30%
Financial assets and Investments in affiliates 42,208 33,561 8,647 25.76%
Other Fixed Assets 4,776 5,741 (965) -16.81%
Capital Assets 238,645 239,355 (711) -0.30%
Trade receivables 24,285 19,069 5,215 27.35%
Trade payables (37,285) (26,780) (10,505) 39.23%
Inventories (0] 0 0 #DIV/O!
Commercial Net Working Capital (CNWC) (13,001) (7,711) (5,290) 68.61%
Other Current Assets 3,706 4,848 (1,241) -23.55%
Other Liabilities and Provisions for Current Risks (45,940) (32,345) (13,595) 42.03%
Net Working Capital (NWC) (55,235) (35,208) (20,026) 56.88%
Other non-current liabilities (1,805) (2,020) 215 -10.62%
Employee severance indemnity (2,991) (2,716) 726 -26.71%
Provisions for non-current risks (1,789) (1,937) 148 -7.66%
NET INVESTED CAPITAL (NIC) 177,825 197,474 (19,648) -9.95%
Shareholders’ equity 107,534 105,647 1,888 1.79%

Net Financial Position (NFP) 70,291 91,827 (21,536) -23.45%
TOTAL SOURCES 177,825 197,474 (19,648) -9.95%
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Research and development activities play a significant role in the pursuit of the Group’s objectives and in
staying competitive in a sector that is becoming increasingly more competitive, characterised by a growing
installed productive capacity in relation to a market with more restrained dynamics.

The lines of action of research and development activities were organised primarily with two methods.
The development of products and of the ordinary activities of the various subsidiaries and associated
companies is handled directly by the Chief Executive Officers of said companies, while at IEG S.p.A. itis
monitored by dedicated personnel who deal with both development of the products in the portfolio and
the analysis of development of new exhibitions and events. The study of new sectors and major strategic
projects are coordinated directly by the management of IEG S.p.A. and the Group, in close collaboration
with the Board of Directors.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The HR Department of the parent company IEG S.p.A. is responsible for defining and supervising policies,
functional processes and technical components as coming under their purview, defining standards and KPIs
in connection with: talent acquisition, development and training (talent management), organisational
development and remuneration systems (compensation & benefits).

Staff selection
The staff selection process guarantees the search for and acquisition of strategic figures for the company’s
development, in line with the needs of the various organisational levels.

Training

Training supports the development of talent and potential available in its multiple forms and manners, through
an individual and collective learning path, making it possible to grow and keep skill levels up to speed. The
lines along which the development of strategic actions is concentrated are the digitisation of the process of
inclusion in the company, the execution of the training programme in hybrid format (physical and digital) and
the selection of highly qualified partners and programmes.

Performance measurement

The performance management process is a continuous process between the employee and the other players
involved in assessing performance; it helps keep the company’s and employees’ expectations aligned,
optimising the commitment and contribution of each and every individual. More specifically, the process is
structured into the phases of Assignment of objectives, Mid-year review, Self-assessment, Manager’s
assessment, Calibration of assessments and Feedback.

Relations with trade unions

For many years now, the Group has been promoting multiple initiatives by which to improve the work-life
balance, in particular for the Parent Company and the Group’s Italian companies: from the management of
flexible weekly working hours to smart working, to post-maternity part-time and management of the welfare
platform. This latter aspect in particular, allows employees to make the most of goods, services and
agreements for their free time, entirely at the company’s expense. The amount available for each employee
coincides with the sum of two elements: a fixed amount established in the Company’s Supplementary
Agreement with the representatives of IEG workers, and a second amount corresponding to the portion of
the performance bonus that may be converted by the collaborator. Each collaborator, in fact, can decide to
receive part of the performance bonus in a non-monetary form, instead receiving welfare credits that can be
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spent on the specific platform. In 2022, no workplace accidents occurred involving a fatality or serious injuries
to workers recorded in the company's employee register. In compliance with the regulations governing
workplace safety, the Single Document for the Assessment of the Risks of Interference (DUVRI) was
prepared, and the operating plans for the safety of the suppliers operating in the trade fair district were
examined. No charges were recorded against any Group companies regarding occupational illnesses
involving employees or former employees and cases of mobbing.

INFORMATION ABOUT EMPLOYEE TRAINING

Training is an essential tool for the growth of our resources and one of IEG’s key strategic assets.
The main aim is to support and assist them in developing the skills necessary to address the new business
challenges, keeping their curiosity levels engaged and stimulating their creativity and passion for the work,
innovating and opening up to change.
This is why 2021 saw the integration into the Performance Management System of a section dedicated to
development, so as to structure an increasingly tailored training plan that best meets specific needs. In this
area, the employee can explain what he wishes to receive in terms of training and reflect on his professional
growth within the company.
All this has made it possible, for 2022, to prepare an extensive, differentiated training offer, which was then
delivered throughout the year, using different methods, such as, for example: training in person, on demand,
on-line but trainer-led, inter-company training, etc., as well as numerous in-house working tables both inter-
department and amongst peers, to foster the comparison of notes, exchange of information and
enhancement of skills.
Some summary data on 2022 training:
= 5,285 hours of training delivered (+22% on 2019) with this figure including both training courses
delivered to employees by external professionals and by teachers chosen from within the company.
= More than 70% of the IEG population attended at least one course.
= 4.06 on a scale of 1 to 5 was the average score assigned to the training
There were various areas of development of the training plan:
=  Strengthening of managerial skills
= Reskilling of digital knowledge
= Linguistic strengthening
=  Project management
Main projects for 2022:
= Manager Development Program: an in-house masters course dedicated exclusively to managers
with the aim of creating a cohesive team that compare notes to foster a shared view and strengthen
soft and technical skills like: project management, finance for non finance, feedback, persuasive

communication, delegation and effective meeting management.
- 28 managers took part in the project for 900 hours.

=  Project Management: transversal training seeking to increase knowledge of tools and techniques to

assure an increasingly effective and successful management of projects.
- 45 employees took part in the project for 720 hours.

In 2022, the economic investment relative to non-mandatory training was financed 68% through the use of
interprofessional funds to which the company adheres (Fondimpresa and Fondirigenti).

23



IEG Group Directors’ Report on Operations

HEALTH, SAFETY AND THE ENVIRONMENT

Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A. considers the focus on the requirements and pursuit of satisfaction of its
customers and stakeholders, respect for and safeguarding of the environment and protection of workplace
health and safety to be essential values for the development of its business activities.

These values represent the fundamental primary aspects that do not conflict with the Company’s
development but, on the contrary, promote the Company by distinguishing it. They constitute elements of
productive investment and are a tangible and qualifying expression of the commitment to sustainable
development and continuous improvement of activities and qualitative, environmental and safety
performances.

To this end, Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A. launched a process designed to plan, develop and keep active
an integrated company management system compliant with the applicable regulations on the environment
(UNI EN ISO 14001:2015) and Workplace Health and Safety (UNI ISO 45001:2018).

The trade fair districts are currently equipped with an Environmental Management System and a certified
Workplace Health and Safety Management System which complies with the requirements of the
applicable regulations, for the purpose of protecting the health of its workers and other operators that work
in the trade fair district. In this respect, the process has been completed, which led to the certification of
the trade fair districts of Rimini, Vicenza and the Ecomondo organisation (and, in 2023, the procedure will
also start for the Rimini Palacongressi), according to international standard ISO 20121, which defines the
requirements of an event sustainability management system, the prestigious recognition was obtained
thanks to the consultancy of the Hera Group, one of the most important Italian multiutility companies that
manages the environmental, water and energy services of millions of citizens. The best practices
introduced with the planning of the Ecomondo event include the absence of carpet in the rows within the
halls, with an environmental saving of more than 140 tonnes per year of carpet; the collection and recovery
of cigarette butts; the strengthening of electric car charging stations; accessibility to the district by the
disabled; and increasing the power installed in respect of the photovoltaic plants.

In all sites managed by IEG, the presence of personnel is monitored from outside Italian Exhibition Group
S.p.A. operating in the structures and IEG provides them with all the information relating to the specific
risks in the environment in which they are due to operate and the measures for the prevention, protection
and management of existing emergencies. In order to optimise the management of safety as a whole,
Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A. has outsourced the role of Prevention and Protection Service Manager to
a professionally recognised external party.

The Vicenza site holds the environmental certification UNI EN ISO 14001:2015 and the certification UNI
ISO 45001:2018 and is also implementing an Energy Efficiency Programme by adhering to the criteria of
standard UNI CEI EN 1SO 50001:2011 to reach the maximum level of efficiency and effectiveness in
observance of protection of the environment and worker health and safety and the quality of services.
The Rimini Trade Fair District, which holds the environmental certification UNI EN ISO 14001:2015 and
the certification OHSAS 45001:2018, was designed and managed with a view to a low environmental
impact (it was awarded with the prestigious international ELCA “Building with Green” Trend award in
Nuremberg). The wood that dominates the architecture of the district comes from Scandinavia, which has
a continuous reforestation cycle. Large windows and skylights allow primarily natural light and this is
fostered by 850 LED projectors saving 120 tonnes of CO2 per year in emissions and consumptions of
360,000 KWh; in addition, in the entrance areas, where constant lighting is needed, LED lighting
technology is mostly used, with an 85% saving in electricity. A photovoltaic system has already been in
operation on the roof of the main entrance since 2005, which extends over an area of 400 square metres,
providing energy to the central hall, saving Rimini roughly 40 tonnes of carbon dioxide annually.

The photovoltaic plants developed over the years guarantee the production of 8.5 million kWh of clean
energy, which is what is needed to make the Italian offices self-sufficient.

Air conditioning in the district is obtained through a system that produces cold air during night-time hours
and recirculates the cold air during daytime hours (a sort of “ice bank” which allows a reduction in the
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electricity power burden of approximately 50%). By contrast, for the heating, a heating system is in place
with condensing boiler, which saves the city of Rimini 90% of nitrogen oxide emissions with respect to
burner boilers. The internal and external green spaces cover an area of 160 thousand square metres,
with more than 1,500 plants and 30 thousand square metres of lawns (and the irrigation systems use
exclusively surface waters).

The fountains are all recirculated water, while in the toilets of the trade fair district, the water jets are
pressure controlled (two initiatives with a saving of 23 million litres of water per year). A number of
ecological islands are also present throughout the entire district and in the external areas, allowing visitors
to separate waste products.

Lastly, the district can be reached by train thanks to the railway station located at the southern entrance,
which lightens the impact of traffic on the environment; the station is, in fact, used by 20% of visitors.
The same focus on the themes of environmental sustainability is also evident from the Palacongressi
venue. The structure is 100% eco-friendly. Low environmental impact, integration in the urban setting,
they are completed perfectly with flexibility, functionality and aesthetic quality. For the construction of its
39 rooms with 9,000 seats, eco-compatible materials were used: wood, glass, stone. Spaces and
environments are illuminated by natural light, thanks to large windows. Artificial fluorescent lamps are
equipped with dimmer switches and those for the lighting of escape routes are equipped with LED
technology, thanks to which optimum lighting and minimum energy waste is achieved. By contrast, a
rainwater collection system ensures the irrigation of the green areas around the building and alleviates
the water burden for storm overflow sewers and combined sewer overflow systems. One of the eco-green
jewels is the ice accumulation system. During the night, storage tanks accumulate the energy needed to
generate cold air, used during the day to cool the building. Result: 30% reduction in electricity used. At
the same time, latest generation boilers and exchangers guarantee energy savings and lower emissions
of fumes into the environment.

In 2022, no workplace accidents occurred involving a fatality or serious injuries to workers recorded in the
company's employee register. In compliance with the regulations governing workplace safety, the Single
Document for the Assessment of the Risks of Interference (DUVRI) was prepared, and the operating
plans for the safety of the suppliers operating in the trade fair district were examined.

No charges were recorded against any Group companies regarding occupational illnesses involving
employees or former employees and cases of mobbing.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Effective risk management is a key factor in maintaining the Group’s value over time. To this end, in the
framework of the Corporate Governance system, IEG adopts a policy for managing the risks constituting the
set of organisational structures, rules and procedures aiming to allow for the identification, measurement,
management and monitoring of the main corporate risks within the Group, helping assure that healthy, correct
business is pursued, consistently with the objectives defined by the Board of Directors and fostering the
making of informed decisions, consistent with risk appetite and the spread of a correct awareness of risks,
legality and corporate values.
The Board of Directors has the task of defining the guidelines so that the main risks to which IEG S.p.A. and
its subsidiaries are exposed are correctly identified and suitably measured, managed and monitored.
The Board of Directors identifies the following corporate departments as being in charge of risk management,
defining their respective tasks and responsibilities under the scope of the Internal Control and Risk
Management System:
= Management Team, which identifies and assesses operational risk, a direct expression of the
strategy and relating to the achievement of strategic objectives in line with the responsibilities of
execution assigned to them.
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=  Control, Risks, Remuneration and Appointments Committee (made up, in line with the provisions of
the Code of Corporate Governance, of 3 independent, non-executive directors), it is responsible for
supporting the Board of Directors in making assessments and decisions concerning the internal
control and risk management system based on preliminary analyses.

The main principles of risk management and the bodies appointed to assess and monitor such, are described
in the Corporate Governance Report, the Organisation, Management and Control Model in accordance with
Italian Legislative Decree no. 231/2001 and the Administrative and Accounting Control Model (pursuant to
Art. 154 bis of the Consolidated Law on Finance).

In order to allow the organisation to define the risk categories on which to focus its attention, the Group has
adopted a model for identifying and classifying risks, starting from the risk classes broken down by type, in
connection with the managerial level or corporate department from which they originate or which is
responsible for the relevant monitoring or management.

The Internal Audit Department systematically checks the effectiveness and efficiency of the Internal Control
and Risk Management System as a whole, reporting back to the Chairman, the CEO, the Board of Auditors,
the Control, Risks, Remuneration and Appointments Committee and the Supervisory Body for the specific
risks linked to compliance with Italian Legislative Decree no. 231/2001 and at least once a year to the Board
of Directors.

Below are the main risks for each of the above-listed risk families. The order in which they are reported does
not entail any classification, neither in terms of probability of onset nor of possible impact.

The level one risk families identified on the basis of the Risk Management Policy are as follows:
= External and strategic risks;
=  Operational risks;
= Compliance risks;
=  Financial risks.

EXTERNAL RISKS

Economic context

The Group’s economic and financial results are clearly exposed to the performance of the economic cycle
as well as global macroeconomic variables. The first impact the level of investment in trade fairs, congresses
and related services. The macroeconomic variables, on the other hand, translate into tension seen on the
prices and availability of commodities and energy may, however, compromise expected economic recovery
and project negative effects onto the Group’s business and economic, equity and financial position.

The mitigation actions implemented by the Group are embodied by the constant monitoring of the levels of
profitability needed to ensure the objectives of financial and capital equilibrium are met, as well as the
continuous alignment with the budget plans and other plans formulated.

Competitive scenario and evolution of the trade fair market
The Group is exposed to the risk of a market characterised by a high concentration of an increasingly small

number of players that tends to limit a growth strategy through mergers and acquisitions. The leadership
position achieved on the domestic market in some of the core business segments then heighten competition
and increase the risk of new operators making an appearance, potentially negatively impacting market
position.

The organisation and hospitality of trade fairs and congresses are, by nature, subject to a certain degree
of seasonality and cyclicity of demand. Seasonality, both due to the greater distribution of events during
the first and fourth quarters of the year and the two-yearly nature of certain events, has a considerable
impact on the distribution of the Group’s revenues and margins, with it being exposed to the risk of having
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saturation levels of the fair and congress structures that are less than optimal in terms of achieving the
margins forecast.

Group operations primarily entail trade fair activities, whose revenues are distributed among an extremely
broad number of customers, concentrated, however, on a small number of events, some of which organised
on the basis of agreements with associations representing the biggest exhibitors. Despite the large number
of events organised and hosted at the trade fair districts, use of a considerable portion of the exhibition
surface and related revenues and margins is tied to a limited number of specific events, both organised
and hosted. It is therefore possible that such key events may record negative performance such as to
prejudice their continuity over time, or may transfer (for the events hosted) to other trade fair districts.
Although the risk deriving from the possible loss of events organised by third parties is contained, given
that the revenues and margins linked to these events are small, more significant is the potential risk related
to a change in relations with the associations or with groups of leading customers which could involve a
loss of some events.

The Group is constantly committed to research, targeted at distinguishing itself from its competitors, thanks
to the continuous improvement in the offering and in the quality of the events organised, by developing the
high levels of in-house skills and know-how, the strength of the brands and contents and synergies between
the businesses.

Climate change
Climate change, which is identified as the failure to mitigate and adapt to climate change, is a topic that is

increasingly concerning the global economy. The main aspects are linked to physical risks, i.e. impacts
directly related to the change in climate and its expressions and to transaction risks identified as the impacts
deriving from the transition process towards a low-carbon economy. At present, the Group does not see a
particularly high risk profile in connection with climate change. Despite this, the Directors feel significant
responsibility for the topic, having promised and signed The net zero carbon events initiative in July 2022,
which envisages halving greenhouse gas emissions by 2030 and zeroing them by 2050 on all the events
promoted in Italy.

OPERATIONAL RISKS

The main operational risks inherent to the nature of the business are those connected with the supply chain,
the unavailability of production sites, the marketing of the products, information technology and topics of
health, safety at work and the environment.

Business interruption
The Group is exposed to the risk of suffering natural or accidental events (such as earthquakes or fires),

wilful misconduct (vandalism) or plant malfunctions, potentially damaging assets, causing production sites
to be unavailable and their discontinued operation. The Group has therefore strengthened the mitigation
process aimed at minimising the risk of such events occurring and implementing protection, aimed at
limiting the relevant impacts, with the continuous consolidation of current business continuity in the Group’s
production sites.

Cyber security
The Group believes business continuity of the IT systems to be very important indeed and has, to this end,

implemented measures to mitigate the risks, aimed at guaranteeing network connectivity, data availability
and security whilst at the same time assuring personal data processing in connection with the European
GDPR and national regulations applicable in the individual EU Member States.

The main measures adopted by the IEG Group include:
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= Activation of an SOC (Security Operation Centre) with use of an XDR (Cynet) system to
monitor endpoints (server, notebook, desktop) extended to all Group companies with access
by various means to the Parent Company’s servers;

= Double authentication (MFA) for all VPN accesses;
=  Greater segregation of the networks and strengthening of the Password Policy;

= Strengthening of the back-up system with particular attention paid to problems relating to
disaster recovery; the company is expecting to update the Disaster Recovery Plan by June
2023.

Additional activities are also in progress to assure greater IT security, completion of which is expected
within the first half of 2023, including:
=  Adoption of an SIEM system by means of QRADAR software, so as to have a detailed analysis of
the security logs;
= Activation of a system for monitoring (NOC) all technological infrastructure operative in the IEG
offices with direct integration with the SOC in the event of possible incidents;

=  Adoption of the NIST framework to improve company posture;
= Update of industry documentation.

All measures adopted for security and privacy purposes are according to ISO/IEC 27001:2013.

Risks associated with dependency on key figures
The Group depends heavily on the professional contribution made by key staff and highly specialised

figures, including, in particular (i) the members of top management and (ii) the exhibition directors,
responsible for organising the individual events, by virtue of the specialised professional skills developed
on the reference markets of organised trade fair events; the Group is therefore exposed to the risk of being
unable to retain or attract resources with suitable characteristics to carry out the activities and support the
Group’s strategies or the risk that current professional contracts in place with key figures or specialised
staff may be terminated.

To mitigate this risk, the Group has implemented the “HR 360” project, which aims to systematise and
integrate various HR management processes, with the ultimate aim of retaining and developing the human
capital. The following processes are involved in this project:

= Risk Assessment Key Position;

= Compensation;

=  Training;

= Performance management.

COMPLIANCE RISKS

The main compliance risks to which the Group is exposed in connection with the nature of the business are
those linked to health, safety at work and the environment; personal data processing; and compliance with
the rules of former Italian Legislative Decree no. 231/01.

The activities carried out by the Group at the trade fair and congress structures and the number of subjects
(employees, suppliers, exhibitors, visitors, congress participants, stand fitters, etc.) who transit through and
operate there, may expose to the risk of claims or violations of health and safety at work regulations
(Consolidated Text 81/2008). If any such violations should occur, the Company may be exposed to the
application of significant sanctions or, in the event of injuries, the onset of disputes, with possible negative
economic and financial repercussions, as well as reputational.
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Such risks are mitigated both by contractual protection mechanisms and by the introduction of numerous
procedural oversights, such as:

= the monitoring of the supplier selection evaluation process, with verification of technical-professional
suitability and attention to aspects relating to health and safety at work. Indeed, the Company asks
all suppliers (particularly for those that may generate risks of interference for health and safety at
work), the following: updated Chamber of Commerce certificate, updated DURC (statement of
regular payment of social security contributions) and self-declaration of technical-professional
requirements. For specific cases and risks, certificates of employee training and a specific DVR (risk
assessment document), are also required.
The Purchasing Office also asks suppliers for a copy of their registration with the Chamber of
Commerce, DURC and any specific certificates held, when they register with the purchasing portal;

= the preparation of the Consolidated Document for the Assessment of Risks of Interference (DUVRI)
and the update of the procedures concerned, in order to respect the provisions of Italian Legislative
Decree no. 81/2008, for each event. For different contracts, for example for scheduled and
unscheduled maintenance, a specific DUVRI is prepared;

= the adoption and delivery to suppliers and exhibitors of a “Technical Exhibition Regulation” containing
the rules with which fitters and suppliers must comply in going about their activities, in greater detail,
for the events organised directly by the Company, the Technical Regulation is signed by the exhibitor
when adhering to the event and published in the “Reserved Area for Exhibitors - Logistics/Documents
section”; for the events hosted, the Technical Regulation is sent directly to the Organiser.

In addition, note the following protocols and certificates for health, safety and the environment:
- GBAC STAR ACCREDITATION - allows the company to control cleaning, sanitisation and
prevention of infectious diseases.
- 1S0 14001 - environmental management system
- 1SO 45001 - occupational health and safety management system
- 1SS0 20121 - sustainable events management system

Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A. adopted an organisation, management and control model pursuant to
Legislative Decree 231/2001, approved recently by the Board of Directors at the meetings on 15 October
2020 following the update to the model for the extension to the predicate offences "Tax offences" and
"Trafficking of illicit influences".

Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A.’s Code of Ethics, updated by the Board of Directors on 15 October 2020,
clearly and precisely defines the set of Principles and Values that the Company recognises, accepts and
shares, as well as the responsibilities that it assumes vis-a-vis the internal and external environments in
relation to all stakeholders.

In compliance with Regulation EU 679/2016 (GDPR), the company communicates that it has appointed a
Data Protection Officer and special proxies and, more generally speaking, has complied with the obligations
set forth in the aforementioned EU legislation. Amongst others, the Data Protection Officer carries out
periodic audits to verify compliance with the instructions given in the company for data security. Instructions
are generally given through “appointed persons in charge of the processing”, awareness-raising of and
training on the Marketing Procedure (complete with related DPIA), awareness-raising of and training on the
Procedure governing the processing of images, basic and specific training of all employees. The Company
has also appointed special Privacy Proxies and has fulfilled the various obligations envisaged by European
Community legislation by means of suitable information to customers and suppliers, the “Appointment as
external data processor” for suppliers, consultants and collaborators (complete with the obligation to maintain
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data confidentiality), the publication of the Privacy Policy and Cookie Policy on the corporate website,
numerous procedures and protocols (by way of example: Privacy by design, Data Breach Procedure,
Procedure on the Rights of Data Subjects, IT Regulation, Document of the company’s Compliance Status
with respect to privacy obligations). The Company has also activated and updated a video surveillance
procedure (complete with DPIA) intended to prevent and mitigate the risk that crimes will be committed, with
a view to security, also formally appointing those in charge of video surveillance systems and giving them
the instructions necessary to ensure compliance with data protection.

FINANCIAL RISKS

The IEG Group is exposed to financial risks related to its activities, in particular relating to the following
types:

= credit risk;
= liquidity risk.
=  market risk.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to the credit risk associated with commercial transactions and has therefore
envisaged measures to protect against the risk and minimise non-performing amounts by means of the
timely control of past-due receivables, management of customer limits and the collection of economic
information about companies with higher exposure. The credit risk to which the IEG Group is subject is
not particularly high, both owing to the fragmentation of positions and the excellent credit quality
historically recorded. The positions considered at risk were, nonetheless, written down accordingly. In
order to limit the risks deriving from the management of trade receivables, each company has a Credit
Management Department, assisted by the sales, administrative and legal structures and companies
specialised in debt collection. The software implemented by the Parent Company IEG S.p.A. and used by
the main subsidiaries keeps track of each reminder.

Liquidity risk
The Group believes it is fundamentally important to maintain a level of available funds suited to its
requirements.
The two main factors that determine the Group’s liquidity situation are, on the one hand, the resources
generated or absorbed by operating and investment activities, and on the other, the maturity and renewal
characteristics of the debt or of the liquidity of financial investments and market conditions.
The Group has adopted a series of policies and processes for optimising the management of financial
resources, reducing liquidity risk:

= maintenance of an adequate level of available liquidity;

= obtaining of adequate credit lines;

= monitoring of prospective liquidity conditions, in relation to the process of business planning.
As part of this type of risk, as regards the composition of net financial indebtedness, the IEG Group tends
to finance investments with medium/long-term payables, while it meets current commitments with both
the cash flow generated by operations and by using short-term credit lines.

Market risk

The Group reserves the right to intervene with suitable hedges if the market risk factors should become
significant.

The market risk consists of the exchange rate risk, the interest rate risk and the price risk, as described
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below.

Exchange rate risk

The IEG Group operates in an international context, meaning that it is naturally exposed to the translation
and transaction exchange rate risk. The translation risk is linked to the conversion into euros during the
consolidation of the financial statements of the foreign companies, which do not have the euro as their
functional and presentation currency: the currencies with the highest impact are the US dollar (USD), the
United Arab Emirates dirham (AED) and the Brazilian real (BRL). The transaction risk is linked to
commercial (receivables/payables in foreign currencies) and financial operations (loans granted or taken
out in foreign currencies) of the Group companies in currencies other than the functional and presentation
currency. The currency to which the Group is most exposed is the American dollar. The functional currency,
defined as the currency of the economic environment in which the Group mainly operates, is the euro.

Interest rate risk

In order to carry out its activities, the Group obtains finance on the market by taking out primarily floating
rate debt (linked to the Euribor), hence exposing itself to the risk deriving from an increase in interest
rates. The objective of interest risk management is to limit and stabilise flows of expenses due to interest
paid primarily on medium-term payables to ensure close correlation between the

underlying and the hedging instrument.

The hedging activity, evaluated and decided on a case by case basis, is carried out predominantly through
derivatives targeted at transforming a variable rate to a fixed rate.

Price risk

The type of activity performed by the Group companies operating in the Organised events, Hosted events
and Conferences business lines, essentially represented by the provision of services that do not require
a process of purchase-transformation of assets, is such that the risk of fluctuations in prices in ordinary
macroeconomic conditions, is marginal. The majority of the purchases made in relation to business
activities , is represented by the provision of service whose value can be influenced by macroeconomic
changes in the prices of the main commaodities, in particular the energy costs necessary to climate control
the trade fair and conference venues. More immediately exposed to the risks of price changes are the
companies operating in the Related services sector (fitting out and catering in particular), which
immediately suffer the disturbance of costs of commodities, transport and energy.
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SHARE PERFORMANCE

Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A. has been listed on the Italian stock exchange since 19 June 2019 - the
main segment of the Borsa Italiana MTA market. In 2022, the security changed negatively by 7.9%. The
security reached a peak of 2.84 euros per share on 23 February 2022 and an all-time low of 1.81 euros
on 26 July 2022. Average daily volumes traded in 2022 were approximately 6,220 shares, down on the
21,105 of the previous year.
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2021 STOCK EXCHANGE DATA

Segment EURONEXT MILAN

Bloomberg code IEG:IM

Reuters code IEG.MI

Number of shares 30,864,197 (of which 64,000 treasury shares)
2022 min Euro 1.81 (26 July 2022)

2022 max Euro 2.84 (23 February 2022)

Capitalisation 75.93 million euros at 31 December 2022
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RELATIONS WITH INSTITUTIONAL INVESTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS

IEG strives to establish dialogue with shareholders and institutional investors, periodically promoting
meetings with representatives of the financial community.

INFORMATION ON OWNERSHIP STRUCTURES/CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT

In accordance with and pursuant to Art. 123-bis, paragraph 3, of Legislative Decree No. 58 of 24 February
1998 (as subsequently amended), the Board of Directors of Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A. has approved -
relative to the financial year ended on 31 December 2022 - a Report on Corporate Governance and
Ownership Structures, which is separate from the Report on Operations, containing the information
pursuant to paragraphs 1 and 2 of such Art. 123-bis. This report is available to the public on the Company’s
website www.iegexpo.it.

OTHER INFORMATION

IEG S.p.A. indirectly controls some companies established and regulated by the law of non European Union
Member States, which are significantly important in accordance with Article 15 of Consob Regulation
20249/2017 (formerly Article 36 of Consob Regulation 16191/2007) on market regulation (the “Markets
Regulation”).

Also in accordance with such regulatory provision, through internal procedures, the Company monitors
compliance with the provisions of such Consob regulations. More specifically, the competent company
management teams ensure the timely, periodic identification of significant “non-EU” companies and, with
the collaboration of the companies concerned, guarantee the collection of data and information and the
evaluation of the circumstances as per such Article 15.

The full adjustment of Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A. to comply with the provisions of Article 15 of the
specified Consob Regulation 20249/2017 and the satisfaction of the conditions it lays down, is therefore
fully acknowledged.

The Company has adhered to the opt-out regime as per Articles 70, paragraph 8 and 71, paragraph 1-bis
of the Issuers' Regulation (regulation implementing the Consolidated Law on Finance (TUF) concerning
issuer regulation, adopted by Consob by resolution no. 11971 of 14 May 1999, as subsequently amended),
thereby availing itself of the faculty to derogate from the obligations to publish the information documents
prescribed in the event of major mergers, spin-offs, capital increases by means of the contribution of assets
in kind, purchases and sales.

The Group, in compliance with the provisions of Article 5, paragraph 3, letter b of Italian Legislative Decree
no. 254/2016, has prepared the Consolidated Non-Financial Statement, which is a separate report. The
Consolidated Non-Financial Statement for 2022, prepared in accordance with the GRI Standards for
reporting, is available on the Group's website.
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NUMBER AND VALUE OF TREASURY SHARES HELD

In 2022, Italian Exhibition Group launched its programme for the purchase and disposal of treasury shares.
At 31 December 2022, the total number of ordinary shares is 30,864,197, of which 64,000 held as treasury
shares, accounting for 0.21% of the share capital, hence at that date, there were a total of 30,800,197
outstanding shares. The shares have no nominal value and are fully subscribed.

Balance as at Changes in 2022 Balance as at

31/12/2021 Purchases SEICS 31/12/2022

Ordinary shares issued 30,864,197 30,864,197
Company's own shares 0 64,000 64,000
Outstanding shares 30,864,197 64,000 30,800,197

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions are reported in the financial schedules and detailed in note 35) to which
reference should be made. They are not considered atypical nor unusual, as they fall within the scope of
the Group companies’ normal operations and are carried out on an arm’s length basis.

Reference should be made to the documentation published in the Corporate Governance section of the
websitewww.iegexpo.it for information on the procedure for related party transactions.

In accordance with Art. 5, paragraph 8 of the Consob Regulation, it is noted that in the period 01.01.2022 -
31.12.2022, the Company’s Board of Directors did not approve any significant transaction, as defined by
Art. 3, paragraph 1, letter b) of the Consob Regulation, whilst it did approve a transaction with related parties
classified as “of minor importance” with respect to the equity relevance indicators given in the Related Party
Transactions Procedure.

TAX CONSOLIDATION

On 25 February 2021, the parent company IEG S.p.A. and its subsidiaries signed a three-year National
Tax Consolidation contract regulated by Art. 117 et seq. of the Consolidated Law on Income Tax, for the
financial years 2020-2022 and which is automatically renewable at the end of the three years, save where
revoked on the declaration of income submitted for the third year of validity of the option.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OF THE YEAR

Governance

On 18 July 2022, Marino Gabellini - Sole Director of Rimini Congressi S.r.l. - tendered his resignation from
the office of Director, considering, with the approval of the 2022-2027 business plan. Gabellini was
appointed from the list submitted by Rimini Congressi S.r.l., he did not qualify as an independent director
and did not hold positions on the committees formed within the Board of Directors. In lieu of Marino
Gabellini, on 29 August 2022, having obtained the opinion in favour of the Board of Auditors, the Board
of Directors coopted Gian Luca Brasini as independent Board member until the next Shareholders’
Meeting, in accordance with article 2386 of the Italian Civil Code.
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On 14 November 2022, the Board of Directors, having obtained the opinion of the Board of Statutory
Auditors, appointed Teresa Schiavina, the company's CFO, as Financial Reporting Officer following the
resignation of Carlo Costa.

Acquisitions
During the year, the Group finalized both corporate and international acquisition and development
transactions as outlined below.

= On 24 March 2022, IEG Deutschland GmbH was established to develop the Group's international
sales network.

= On 28 May 2022, 75% of the capital of V Group S.r.l., which organizes the MyPlant &Garden
event, was acquired for a consideration of 3.4 million euros.

= On 8 October 2022, the remaining 50% of the share capital of Eagle Ltd. was purchased, later
renamed IEG China Ltd. a Shanghai-based company that will oversee the Group's international
development in China. The acquisition consideration was approximately 2.0 million Renminbi.

= On 11 October 2022, an agreement was signed for the acquisition of a 50% stake in Italian
German Exhibition Company S.r.l. - IGECo S.r.I. for a consideration of approximately 3.0 million
euros from the selling company Hannover Fairs International GmbH, which resulted in the
establishment of a joint venture with Deutsche Messe AG (DMAG). Following this transaction,
IEG and DMAG hold equal shares in Italian German Exhibition Company S.r.l. — IGECo S.r.l.,
jointly controlling the companies Hannover FAIRS (Canada) Inc. (with registered office in Ottawa),
Hannover FAIRS USA, Inc. (with registered office in Springfield) and Hannover FAIRS Mexico
S.A. de C.V. (with registered office in Leon). The joint venture aims to develop jointly with
Deutsche Messe AG (DMAG) exhibition events in the geographical areas where the joint venture
subsidiaries operate.

= On 21 October 2022, the company IEG Asia with registered office in Singapore was established
to develop the Asia Pacific market.

= On 13 January 2022, an agreement was also signed with Koelnmesse GMBH to organize the
Sigep China event within AnuFood China starting in 2023.

= On 24 January 2022, the subsidiary IEG Brasil finalized the purchase of the brand and assets of
BTTF, an event that expands IEG's portfolio in the Wellness sector and whose first edition is
scheduled to take place in November 2022 in Sao Paulo.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 10 March 2023, the Group obtained a positive response to the "waiver" request made to the pool of
lending banks, for a waiver of compliance with the financial constraints for the year 2022 and in particular
the "Leverage Ratio" constraint, which is not met due to a beginning of the year characterized by a
resurgence of Covid-19 infections. The loan agreement, which is the subject of this waiver, was signed
on 16 April 2020, and, as of 31 December 2022, has an outstanding debt of approximately 10.2 million
euros, which in this statement of assets and liabilities position is classified entirely as short-term in
compliance with IAS 10.

On 27 February 2023, the acquisition of a business unit containing the assets for the Singapore
International Jewellery Event (SIJE) and Café Asia and Sweets & Bakes Asia & Restaurant Asia (CARA)
two events that complete the Group's portfolio in Southeast Asia in the jewelry and food sectors was
finalized. The cost of the acquisition consists of a fixed price portion, amounting to approximately 1.1
million euros, and a variable price portion, estimated at 1.1 million euros, to be paid in three tranches,
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based on the results achieved by the events to be held in 2023 and 2024.

OUTLOOK

The forecast macroeconomic scenario for 2023 is marked by uncertainty. The lingering inflationary
pressure, and the consequent tight monetary policies, as well as the global geo-political tensions
caused by the still ongoing conflict between Russia and Ukraine, play their part in curbing growth and
the post-pandemic recovery of the Group reference market expected, globally, in 2024.

Against this backdrop, despite the above effects, 2023 started with sound growth compared to the pre
pandemic scenario. Booking targets for first half of 2023 have been already overachieved in the first
months of 2023. IEG Group, thanks the faster pace of market recovery, started in the second half of
2022, which allowed the overachievement of Business Plan Targets in 2022, is confident to meet also
in 2023 business plan financial targets continuing to put in place actions for an accretive recovery and
improvement of operating margins as well as operating cash generation to sustain investments.

ALLOCATION OF PERIOD RESULT

Dear Shareholders,
We confirm that the financial statements as at 31 December 2022 and submitted for your review and
approval in this Shareholders’ Meeting were drafted in compliance with application legislation. In
submitting the separate financial statements at 31 December 2022 of Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A. for
the approval of the Shareholders’ Meeting, the Company’s Board of Directors proposes the following
allocation of the profit for the year of Euro 1,512,748:

- Euro 30,255 to the “Statutory reserve” pursuant to Art. 24, letter b) of the Articles of Association;

- Euro 303,828 to the “Restricted reserve for unrealised capital gains”;

- Euro 1,178,665 to the partial coverage of previous period losses.

Rimini, 16 March 2023
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Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS (Values in Euro/000)

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 1
Intangible fixed assets 2
Equity investments valued using the equity 3
method
Other equity investments 4
of which with related parties
Deferred tax assets 5
Non-current financial assets for rights of 6
use
Non-current financial assets 7
Other non-current assets 8
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 9
Trade receivables 10
of which with related parties
Tax receivables for direct taxes 11
Current financial assets for rights of use 12
Current financial assets 13
of which with related parties
Other current assets 14
Cash and cash equivalents 15

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

31/12/2022

191,032

37,734

8,874

9,349

9,248
5,286

290

3,011

271

255,846

93
6,914

50,586

89,195

345,041

31/12/2021

190,674

34,519

3,397

10,858

10,770
6,736

487

519

142

247,332

731
23,126

813
352

184

261

207
5,674

52,651

82,979

330,311
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LIABILITIES (Values in Euro/000) Note 31/12/2022 <xVawipierxh

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Share capital 52,110 52,215

Share premium reserve 13,924 13,947
Other reserves 30,433 29,257
Profit (loss) for previous years (CEL)) (2,507)

Profit (Loss) for the period attributable to shareholders of 772 1,638
the Parent Company

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE 94,550
PARENT COMPANY
Share capital and reserves attributable to minority 1,140
interests
Profit (loss) attributable to minority interests (2,312)
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO (1,172)
MINORITY INTERESTS
TOTAL GROUP SHAREHOLDERS’ 16 93,378
EQUITY
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables due to banks 17 84,846 92,277
Non-current financial liabilities for rights of use 18 29,516 24,026
of which with related parties 12,624 14,170
Other non-current financial liabilities 19 5,377 12,523
Provisions for non-current risks and charges 20 2,174 1,830
Employee provisions 21 2,959 3,754
Other non-current liabilities 22 1,805 2,020
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 126,678 136,430
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables due to banks 17 18,488 22,157
Current financial liabilities for rights of use 23 4,779 3,346
of which with related parties 1,001 863
Other current financial liabilities 24 5,502 4,884
Trade payables 25 42,807 33,825
of which with related parties 40 71
Tax payables for direct taxes 26 438 19
Other current liabilities 27 52,242 36,272
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 124,257 100,503
TOTAL LIABILITIES 345,041 330,311
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

31/12/2022

Notes
REVENUES
Revenues from contracts with customers 28
Of which with related parties
Other revenues 29
Of which with related parties

TOTAL REVENUES
OPERATING COSTS

Change in inventories
Costs for raw materials, consumables and goods for resale

Costs of services
Of which with related parties
Costs for use of third-party assets

Personnel costs

Other operating costs

31112/2021

156,032
2,366
5,908

127

161,941

19
(14,661)
(88,128)
(1,455)
(370)
(38,102)

(4,871)

102,503

177
76
31,327
65

(53)

(7,537)

(43,569)

(65)
(596)

(27,003)

(2,134)

TOTAL OPERATING COSTS 30

(146,113)

(80,892)

GROSS OPERATING PROFIT (EBITDA)

Amortisation, depreciation and impairment 31

OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS)
FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSE

Financial income 32
Financial charges 32

Exchange rate gains and losses

15,828

3,594
(3,119)

(327)

(18,757)

37
(3,495)

(77)

TOTAL FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSE

149

(3,535)

TOTAL GAINS AND LOSSES FROM EQUITY

INVESTMENTS 3

388

(361)

PRE-TAX RESULT

571

TOTAL INCOME TAXES

(1,041)

(1,345)

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

)

PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO MINORITY INTERESTS
PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE PARENT COMPANY
EARNINGS PER SHARE

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

(1,546)

772
0.0251
0.0251

(2,311)
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COMPREHENSIVE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Notes

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Other comprehensive income which will be subsequently reclassified
under profit/(loss) for the year:

Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges 18

Gains/(losses) on translation of financial statements in foreign

15
currency
Total other comprehensive income which will be subsequently
reclassified under profit/(loss) for the year
Other Comprehensive Income which will not be subsequently
reclassified under profit/(loss) for the year:
Actuarial gains/(losses) from defined benefit plans for employees —
20
IAS 19
Gains/(losses) on financial assets measured at FVOCI 4

Total other comprehensive income which not will be subsequently
reclassified under profit/(loss) for the year

TOTAL PROFIT/(LOSS) BOOKED TO SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Minority interests

Shareholders of the Parent Company

2021

(673)

447

378

825

@7

(204)

(231)

593

(80)

(2,330)

2,250
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Retained SPETENGIGEIEES  Share capital )
. ] . Profit (loss)
Share ) earnings  Profit (Loss) equity of and reserves ) Total
Share ) Revaluation Legal Statutory Other ) attributable to )
A premium (Losses) for the SHEEGGIEEERON attributable to o shareholders
capital reserves reserve reserve reserves . . L minority .
reserve carried period the Parent minority . equity
A interests
forward Company interests
Balance as at 31/12/2020 (*) 52,215 13,947 67,160 10,401 2,532 (51,447) 8,782 (11,289) 92,300 1,912 (1,160) 93,052
Allocation of profit for the year:
- Distribution to shareholders
- Allocation to reserves (11,289) 11,289 (1,160) 1,160
Change in scope of consolidation 167
Shareholder payment 238
Other variations
Comprehensive income/loss for the period 611 1,638 (18) (2,311)
Balance as at 31/12/2021 52,215 13,947 67,160 10,401 2,532 (50,836) (2,507) 1,638 1,139 (2,311)

- Distribution to shareholders

- Allocation to reserves 42 8 20 1,568 (1,638) _ (2,311) 2,311

Change in scope of consolidation 162

Shareholder payment 353

Other variations (105) (22)

Comprehensive income/loss for the period 1,106 772 7 (1,546)
Balance as at 31/12/2022 52,110 13,925 67,160 10,443 2,540 (49,710) (938) 772 (650) (1,546)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Values in Euro/000 Notes 31/12/2022 31/12/2021
Pre-tax result 571 (1,041)

Of which with related parties 924 1,788
Adjustments to trace profit for the year back to the cash flow from
operating activities:
Amortisation, depreciation and impairment of property, plant and 30

. ) . 16,669
equipment and intangible assets
Appropriations and losses 10 236
Other provisions 19 250
Charges/(income) from valuation of equity investments in other 32 361
companies with the equity method
Write-down of financial assets 1,603
Net financial charges 31 3,535
Costs for use of third-party assets (IFRS 16) (4,110)
Effect on EBIT - financial charges for put options (41)
Other non-monetary changes 28 (194)
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital 17,267
Change in working capital:
Inventories 9 (121) 53
Trade receivables 10 (9,529) (9,808)
Of which with related parties (€)) (124)
Trade payables 24 9,426 10,055
Of which with related parties 34 22
Other current and non-current assets (2,001) (1,353)
Other current and non-current liabilities 21-26 13,993 19,505
Receivables/payables for current taxes 11-25 (388) 138
Prepaid/deferred taxes 173 4
Cash flow from changes in working capital 12,553 18,593
Income tax paid (0] 0
Employee provisions and provisions for risks (397) (612)
Cash flows from operating activities 29,152 35,248
Cash flow from investment activities
Net investments in intangible fixed assets 2 (2,403) (621)
Net investments in property, plant and equipment 1 (4,913) (5,227)
Disinvestments in property, plant and equipment 1 59 141
Change in current and non-current financial assets (451) (1,852)
Of which with related parties 114 (162)
Net equity investments in subsidiaries (2,869) 0
45:hange§ in equity investments in associated companies and other (3,762) (113)
companies
Cash flow from investment activities (13,338) (7,671)
Cash flow from financing activities
Change in other financial payables 23 (2,268) 541
Payables due to shareholders 23 341 83
Obtainment/(repayment) of short-term bank loans 16 (2,509) (4,508)
Loans 16 (0] 14,353
Loan repayment 16 (8,611) (9,912)
Net financial charges paid 31 (2,572) (4,353)
Purchase of treasury shares 15 (227) 0
Change in Group reserves 15 316 761
Payable due for the exercise of the put option (2,449) 0
Cash flow from financing activities (17,879) (3,034)
Net cash flow for the period (2,066) 24,543
Opening cash and cash equivalents 28,108
Closing cash and cash equivalents 52,651
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A. (hereinafter “IEG”, the “Company” or the “Parent Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, associated companies and/or jointly controlled companies, the “Group” or the “IEG
Group”) is a joint-stock company domiciled in Italy, with registered office in Via Emilia 155, Rimini, and
organised according to the legal system of the Italian Republic. IEG is the Parent Company, created as a
result of the transfer of Fiera di Vicenza S.p.A. to Rimini Fiera S.p.A. and the simultaneous change of the
latter's company name to Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A..

The company successfully completed the process of listing on the Euronext Milan market (formerly the
Electronic Stock Exchange - MTA) organised and managed by Borsa Italiana S.p.A. on 19 June 2019.

It should be noted that, pursuant to article 70, paragraph 8 and article 71, paragraph 1-bis, of the
Regulation adopted by CONSOB by means of resolution no. 11971/1999, as supplemented and
amended, (the “Issuers’ Regulation”), the company signed up to the opt-out system set forth in the
aforementioned articles, availing itself of the option to depart from the obligations of publication of the
information documents set out in Annex 3B of the Issuers’ Regulation, at the time significant transactions
are being carried out incorporating mergers, demergers, share capital increases through contribution of
assets in kind, acquisitions and sales.

Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A. is controlled by Rimini Congressi S.r.l., which holds 49.50% of the share
capital and holds voting rights for 55.86%. The Company, nonetheless, is not subject to management and
coordination by Rimini Congressi S.r.l. pursuant to art. 2497 et seq. of the Italian Civil Code. In fact, none
of the activities that typically prove management and coordination activities, pursuant to art. 2497 et seq.
of the Italian Civil Code, exists since, by way of a non-exhaustive example:

¢ Rimini Congressi does not exercise any significant influence over the management decisions and
operations of the Issuer, but limits it relations with said entity to the normal exercise of
administrative and equity rights owing to its status of holder of voting rights; there is no connection
between the members of the administration, management control bodies of the two companies;

e the Company does not receive - and, at any rate, is not subject in any way - to the financial or
credit directives or instructions from Rimini Congressi;

e the Company has an organisational structure composed of expert professionals who, based on
the powers conferred and the positions held, operate independently in line with the indications of
the Board of Directors;

¢ the Company prepares the strategic, industrial, financial and/or budget plans of the Issuer and of
the Group independently, and autonomously implements these;

o the Company operates fully independently, from a contractual perspective, in relations with its
customers and its suppliers, without any external interference from Rimini Congressi.

At the date of drafting of this document, it should also be noted that: (i) there are no acts, resolutions or
communications of Rimini Congressi that lead us to reasonably believe that the company’s decisions are
the result of a domineering and commanding will of the parent company; (ii) the company does not receive
centralised treasury services (cash pooling) or other functions of financial assistance or coordination from
Rimini Congressi; (iii) the company is not subject to regulations or policies imposed by Rimini Congressi.
The Group’s activities consist of the organisation of trade fairs (Exhibition Industry) and hospitality for
trade fairs and other events, through the design, management and provision of fitted-out exhibition spaces
(mainly in the “trade fair districts”), the supply of services connected to trade fairs and conferences, as
well as the promotion and management, in both its own locations and those of third parties, of
conferences, conventions, exhibitions, cultural events, shows and leisure activities, including not related
to organised events and conferences.

For the purposes of economic and financial comparability of the IEG Group, it should be noted that:
o the profit trend of the Group is influenced by seasonality factors, characterised by more significant




events in the first and fourth quarters of the year, as well as the presence of important two-yearly
trade fairs, in even-numbered years.

e the Group’s financial trend is therefore characterised by an increase in working capital in the first
half, while the fourth quarter generally, thanks to the advances received on events organised at
the start of the next period, shows a significant improvement in the net financial position.

The publication of this financial report closed at 31 December 2022 of the IEG Group was approved by
resolution of the Board of Directors on 16/03/2023. Please note that this version of the consolidated
financial statements of IEG S.p.A. constitutes an additional non-official version and that it is not compliant
with the provisions of the Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2019/815 ("ESEF Regulation™).

STRUCTURE AND CONTENTS OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pursuant to article 25 of Law No. 306 of 31 October 2003 and the associated application regulations
contained in Legislative Decree No. 38 of 28 February 2005, in exercise of the option provided therein,
the IEG Group (hereinafter also “the Group”) adopted the International Accounting Standards (IFRS)
issued by the I.A.S.B — International Accounting Standard Board for financial statements for the year
ended as at 31 December 2015. More specifically, International Accounting Standards mean all
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), all International Accounting Standards (IAS), all
interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Standards Interpretations Committee (IFRIC),
previously named the Standard Interpretations Committee (SIC) which, at the date of approval of the
Separate Financial Statements as at 31 December 2016, had been approved by the European Union in
accordance with the procedure laid down in Regulation (EC) no. 1606/2002, by the European Parliament
and the European Council of 19 July 2002.

In order to prepare these Consolidated Financial Statements, the subsidiaries of the IEG Group, which
continue to draft their financial statements according to Italian accounting standards or local ones
applicable in the country of residence, have prepared the financial positions in compliance with the
international standards.

As regards the preparation of the separate financial statements of ITALIAN EXHIBITION GROUP S.p.A.,
the Company exercised the option set out in article 25 of Law No. 306 of 31 October 2003, of adopting
the international accounting standards at the same date of FTA adopted by the consolidated financial
statements.

The statement of financial position was classified on the basis of the operating cycle, separating current
and non-current items. Based on this distinction, the assets and liabilities are considered current if they
are expected to be realised or extinguished in the normal operating cycle of the IEG Group. Non-current
assets held for sale and the related liabilities, where present, are shown in the appropriate items.

The income statement layout reflects the analysis of aggregated costs by nature given that this
classification was considered more significant for the purposes of understanding the Group’s economic
result. The revenue and costs items recognised in the year are presented through two tables: an income
statement table for the year, which reflects the analysis of the aggregated costs by nature, and a table of
comprehensive income.

The result of discontinued operations and/or assets held for disposal, where present, is shown in the
appropriate item of the consolidated income statement.

Lastly, the cash flow statement was prepared by using the indirect method for the determination of the
cash flows from operating activities. With this method, the operating profit/loss (EBIT) is adjusted for the
effects of non-monetary transactions, any deferral or provision of previous or future operating collections
or payments and by elements of revenues or costs connected with cash flows from investment or financing
activities.

The functional and presentation currency for the IEG Group consolidated financial statements is the Euro,
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expressed in thousands, unless specified otherwise.

CHANGE IN SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION

A summary of the activities carried out by the various Group companies and the main changes in the

composition of the Group compared to the situation as at 31 December 2021 is provided below.

The Group structure at 31 December 2022 differs from that at 31 December 2021 due to the inclusion in

the consolidation scope of:

- VGroup S.r.l,, a company acquired by the Parent Company on 27 May 2022 and of which it holds
75% of the share capital;

- |IEG China Co Ltd (formerly EAGLE), a company already held with a 50% share by IEG. In 2022, the
Parent Company acquired the final shares from the shareholder, so as to hold the entire capital.

- |EG Deutschland Gmbh, with registered office in Munich, a company established by the Parent
Company, which holds the whole of the share capital at 24 March 2022.

- |EG Asia Pte Ltd, with registered office in Singapore, a company established by the Parent Company,
which holds the whole of the share capital at 21 October 2022.

In terms of the companies included in the consolidation scope using the synthetic method, we would recall

the acquisition of 50% of Italian German Exhibition Company S.r.l. (IGECo0), a company established by

Hannover Fairs International GmbH and in which the German partner contributed its subsidiaries

operating in the United States (Hannover Fairs USA Inc.), Canada (Hannover Fairs Canada Inc.) and

Mexico (Hannover Fairs Mexico SA de CV), today respectively Igeco USA, Igeco Canada and Igeco

Mexico.

During the first half of 2022, moreover, the liquidation process was concluded of the Joint Venture Expo

Extratégia Brasil Eventos e Producgdes Ltda.

GOING CONCERN

Although considering the complexity and uncertainty that characterise the current international context,
the Company considers the assumption of operation as a going concern to be appropriate and correct,
taking into account its capacity to meet its obligations for the foreseeable future and in particular for the
next 12 months, having adequately considered the economic and equity position for FY 2022 and the
economic forecasts of the business plan approved by the Board of Directors on 18 July 2022 and the
2023 Budget approved by the Board of Directors on 19 December 2022 and taking into account the
forecast performance of working capital and the expected outlook for the cash position, the financial
statements have been prepared considering the business as a going concern.

MEASUREMENT CRITERIA
Property, plant and equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are booked to the financial statements at purchase or production cost,
including directly attributable expenses, and adjusted for the respective accumulated depreciation.

The cost includes any expense incurred directly to prepare the assets for use plus any dismantling and
removal costs that will be incurred to restore the asset to its original conditions and the financial charges
related to construction or production which require a significant period of time to be ready for use and sale
(qualifying assets).

Property, plant and equipment are amortised systematically in every period on a straight-line basis, based




on the economic-technical rates determined in relation to the residual possibility of use of the assets.
Ordinary maintenance costs are charged to the income statement when they are incurred.

Maintenance costs which determine an increase in value, or functionality, or useful life of the assets, are
directly attributable to the assets to which they refer and amortised in relation to the residual possibility of
use of said assets.

Improvements to third-party assets are classified in the item “Other assets”; the depreciation period
corresponds to the lower of the residual useful life of the tangible fixed asset and the residual duration of
the lease agreement.

The depreciation rates applied are as follows:

ltems Rates %

Land -

Buildings 1.9% - 10%
Plant and machinery 7.5% - 30%
Industrial and commercial equipment 15% - 27%
Other assets 12% - 25%

If indicators of impairment emerge, the property, plant and equipment are subject to an impairment test
through the procedure outlined in the section “impairment of assets”.

Following the entry into force of new IFRS 16, from 1 January 2019, leases are accounted for in the
financial statements based on a single accounting model similar to the one governed by IAS 17 regarding
the accounting of financial leases.

At the moment of the stipulation of each contract, the Group:

» determines whether the contract is or contains a lease, a circumstance that is verified when

said contract gives the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange

for a consideration. This measurement is repeated in the event of the subsequent change to the

terms and conditions of the contract.

» separates the components of the contract, by distributing the consideration of the contract

between the lease and non-lease component.

+ determines the duration of the lease as the period that cannot be cancelled of the lease,

augmented by any periods covered by a lease extension or termination option.
At the date of effectiveness of each contract in which the Group is the lessee of an asset, the asset
consisting of the right of use, measured at cost, and the financial lease liability, equal to the present value
of the residual future payments discounted by using the implicit interest rate of the lease or, alternatively,
the marginal financing rate of the Group, are recognised in the financial statements. Subsequently, the
asset consisting of the right of use is measured by applying the cost model, or netted of
amortisation/depreciation and any accumulated impairment and adjusted to take account of any new
lease measurements or amendments. By contrast, the lease liability is measured by increasing the book
value to take account of interest, decreasing the book value to take account of the payments due made
and redetermining the book value to take into account any new lease measurements or amendments.

The assets are depreciated on the basis of a period of depreciation represented by the duration of the
lease agreement, except where the duration of the lease is less than the useful life of the asset based on
the rates applied for property, plant and equipment and there is a reasonable certainty of the transfer of
ownership of the leased asset on the natural expiry of the contract. In that case, the depreciation period
will be calculated on the basis of the criteria and rates indicated for the property, plant and equipment.

For leases ending within 12 months of the date of initial application and that do not make provision for

50



renewal options, and for leases for which the underlying asset is of low value, lease payments are booked
to the income statement on a linear basis for the duration of the respective contracts.

Intangible fixed assets

An intangible asset is recognised in the accounts only if it is identifiable and controllable, it is likely to
generate future economic benefits and if its cost can be reliably determined. The booking of an intangible
asset is based on its useful life, an intangible asset with a defined useful life is amortised, whilst an
intangible asset with an undefined useful life, is not.

Goodwill and intangible assets with an indefinite useful life

Goodwill and intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are no longer amortised from the date of first
time adoption (1 January 2014). Goodwill and other intangible assets with an indefinite useful life relating
to the acquisitions completed after 1 January 2014 are, nonetheless, not amortised. An intangible asset
is considered as having an undefined useful life when, on the basis of an analysis of the relevant factors,
no limit can be estimated as to when the asset will cease generating net incoming cash flows for the

group.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase cost with respect to the portion pertaining to the purchaser
of the fair value of the net identifiable assets and liabilities of the entity acquired. After initial recognition,
goodwill is valued at cost, less any impairment deriving from the impairment test (see paragraph
“impairment of assets”).

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets with a definite useful life are measured at purchase or production cost, including any
accessory charges, and are amortised systematically on a straight-line basis during the period of their
expected future use. If indicators of impairment emerge they are subject to an impairment test which is
outlined in the section “impairment of assets”.

Industrial patent and intellectual property rights are amortised over a period of 3 and 5 years, licences
and concessions are amortised starting from when the cost is incurred and for the duration of the licence
or concession envisaged contractually, while trademarks have a useful life which may vary between ten
and twenty-five years.

Compared with last year, there have been no changes made to amortisation/depreciation periods; there
are therefore no changes to the rates applied.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with a definite useful life, subject to
amortisation/depreciation, are subject to an impairment test only if indicators of impairment emerge.

The recoverability of the values recognised is verified by comparing the carrying amount with the net sale
price and the value in use of the asset, whichever is higher. The net sale price is the amount which can
be obtained from the sale of an asset in a transaction between independent, informed and willing parties,
less disposal costs; in the absence of binding agreements, reference must be made to the prices
expressed by an active market, or the best information available, by taking into account, among other
things, recent transactions for similar assets carried out in the same business sector. The value in use is
defined on the basis of the discounting at an appropriate rate, which expresses the cost of capital of an




entity not indebted with a homogeneous risk profile, the expected cash flows from use of the asset (or
from an aggregation of assets - the so-called cash-generating units) and its disposal at the end of its
useful life.

Subsequently, when an impairment loss on an asset other than goodwill ceases to exist or decreases,
the book value of the asset is increased to the new estimated recoverable value and cannot exceed the
value that would have been calculated if no impairment loss had been recorded. The reversal of
impairment is recognised to the income statement.

Goodwill and the other intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are subject to a systematic verification
of recoverability (“impairment test”) carried out on an annual basis, at the date of year-end, or more
frequently if there are indicators of impairment.

Goodwill impairment is calculated by assessing the recoverable value of the cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill was
allocated, impairment is recognised. The decrease in value to goodwill cannot be restored in future
periods.

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method set out in IFRS 3 revised in 2008.
According to this method, the consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair
value, determined as the sum of the fair values of the transferred assets and liabilities assumed by the
purchaser at the acquisition date and capital instruments issued in exchange for the control of the acquired
entity. Transaction accessory costs are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when
incurred.

The contingent considerations, considered part of the transfer price, are measured at fair value at the
acquisition date. Any subsequent fair value changes are booked to the statement of comprehensive
income.

At the date of acquisition, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are booked at fair
value. Goodwill is determined as the excess between the sum of the considerations transferred in the
business combination, of the portion of shareholders’ equity pertaining to minority interests and of the fair
value of any equity investment held previously in the acquired entity, with respect to the fair value of the
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date. If the value of the net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date exceeds the sum of the considerations transferred, of the
portion of shareholders’ equity pertaining to minority interests and the fair value of any equity investment
held previously in the acquired entity, this excess is booked immediately to the statement of
comprehensive income as income deriving from the transaction concluded.

NCI can be measured at fair value or at its proportionate share of the fair value of the net assets of the
acquiree at the acquisition date. The measurement method is decided on a transaction by transaction
basis.

In the process of fair value measurement of business combinations, the Group avalils itself of the available
information, and for the most significant business combinations, also of the support of external
evaluations.

Financial assets

At the time of initial recognition, financial assets must be classified into one of the three categories
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indicated below based on the following elements:
o the business model of the entity for the management of financial assets; and
e the characteristics relating to the contractual cash flows of the financial asset.

Financial assets are derecognised from the financial statements only if the sale involved the substantial
transfer of all risks and benefits related to them. Conversely, whenever a significant part of the risks and
benefits related to the financial assets sold have been maintained, these continue to be recognised in the
financial statements, even if legal ownership of the assets has effectively been transferred.

Financial liabilities designated at amortised cost

This category includes financial assets that meet both of the following conditions:
e the financial asset is held in accordance with a business model whose objective is achieved
through the collection of contractually agreed cash flows ("Hold to Collect” business model); and
e the contractual terms of the financial asset envisage, at certain dates, cash flows represented
solely by payments of principal and interest on the amount of principal to be repaid (the “SPPI
test” passed).

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value, considering the transaction costs and revenues
directly attributable to the instrument itself. Subsequent to their initial recognition, financial assets under
examination are measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. The amortised cost
method is not used for assets - measured at historical cost - whose short duration makes the effect of the
discounting principle negligible, for those without a set maturity and for revocable loans.

Financial assets designated at fair value through comprehensive income

This category includes financial assets that meet both of the following conditions:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets (“Held to Collect and Sell” Business Model);
and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset envisage, at certain dates, cash flows represented
solely by payments of principal and interest on the amount of principal to be repaid (the “SPPI
test” passed).

This category includes equity interests, not qualifying as controlling, associated or jointly controlled, which
are not held for trading purposes, for which the option of designation at fair value through comprehensive
income is exercised.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value, considering the transaction costs and revenues
directly attributable to the instrument itself. Subsequent to initial recognition, equity interests that are non-
controlling, associated or of joint control, are measured at fair value and the amounts recorded as a
balancing entry to shareholders' equity (Statement of comprehensive income) must not be subsequently
transferred to the income statement, even in the event of disposal. The only component relating to the
equity securities in question that is recorded in the income statement is represented by the relative
dividends.

For equities included in this category, not listed in an active market, the cost criterion is used as an
estimate of the fair value only in a residual manner and in limited circumstances, i.e. when the most recent
information available for measuring the fair value is insufficient, or there is a wide range of possible
valuations of the fair value and the cost represents the best estimate of the fair value in that range of




values.
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit and loss

This category includes financial assets other than those classified under financial assets measured at
amortised cost and financial assets designated at fair value through comprehensive income.

This category includes financial assets held for trading and includes derivative contracts not classifiable
as hedging derivatives (which are represented as assets if the fair value is positive and as liabilities if the
fair value is negative).

On initial recognition, financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss are recorded at fair
value, without considering the transaction costs or revenues directly attributable to the instrument itself.
At subsequent reference dates, they are measured at fair value and the effects of the measurement are
booked to the income statement.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with the provisions of IFRS 9, the Group applies a simplified approach to estimate expected
credit losses over the entire life of the instrument and takes into consideration its past experience
regarding credit losses, corrected on the basis of specific forward-looking factors of the nature of Group
receivables and the economic context.

In brief, the Group measures the expected losses of the financial assets so as to reflect:
e atarget amount weighted on the basis of the probabilities determined by evaluating a range of
possible results;
e the time value of money; and
e reasonable and demonstrable information that is available without undue costs or efforts at the
reporting date on past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The financial asset is impaired when one or more events are verified that have a negative impact on the
future cash flows estimated from the financial asset. Observable data relating to the following events (it
may be the case that a single event cannot be identified: the impairment of financial assets may be due
to the combined effect of different events) constitute proof that the financial asset is impaired:

a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or debtor;

b) breach of contract, such as non-fulfilment of an obligation or failure to respect an expiry;

c) for economic or contractual reasons relating to the debtor’s financial difficulty, the creditor grants
the debtor a concession that the creditor would not otherwise have considered;

d) the probability that the debtor will file for bankruptcy or other financial restructuring procedures;

e) disappearance of an active market for that financial asset due to financial difficulties; or

f) the purchase or creation of the financial asset with huge discounts that reflect the credit losses
incurred.

For financial assets measured using the amortised cost method, when impairment has been identified, its
value is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
expected future cash flows, discounted on the basis of the original effective interest rate. This value is
recognised in the income statement.

Derivative financial instruments

The derivative financial instruments are accounted for in accordance with the provisions of IFRS 9.
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At the date of stipulation of the contract, the derivative financial instruments are initially accounted for at
fair value, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss when the fair value is positive or as a
financial liability designated at fair value through profit and loss when the fair value is negative.

If the financial instruments are not accounted for as hedging instruments, the fair value changes
recognised after the initial recognition are treated as components of the result for the year. If, by contrast,
the derivative instruments satisfy the requirements to be classified as hedging instruments, subsequent
fair value changes are accounted for by applying the specific criteria outlined below.

A derivative financial instrument is classified as a hedge if formal documentation exists of the relationship
between the hedging instrument and the hedged element, including the risk management objectives, the
strategy for carrying out the hedge and the methods which will be used to check the prospective and
retrospective effectiveness of the hedge. The effectiveness of each hedge is verified both at the time each
derivative instrument is entered into and during its life, and in particular, at the close of the financial year
or interim period. Generally, a hedge is considered highly “effective” if, both at the inception and during
its life, fair value changes, in the event of a fair value hedge, or hedge of expected future cash flows, in
the event of cash flow hedges, in the hedged element are essentially offset by fair value changes in the
hedging instrument.

IFRS 9 provides the possibility of designating the following three hedging relationships:

a) fair value hedge: when the hedge concerns the fair value changes of assets and liabilities booked
to the financial statements, both the fair value changes in the hedging instrument and the changes
in the object of the hedge are booked to the income statement.

b) cash flow hedges: in the event of hedges aimed at neutralising the risk of changes in cash flows
originating from the future fulfilment of obligations defined contractually at the reporting date, the
fair value changes in the derivative instrument recorded after the initial recognition are accounted
for, limited solely to the effective portion, in the statement of comprehensive income and,
therefore, in a shareholders’ equity reserve called “Reserve for cash flow hedges”. When the
economic effects originating from the object of the hedge materialise, the portion accounted for
in the statement of comprehensive income is reversed to the income statement. If the hedge is
not fully effective, the change in fair value of the hedging instrument relating to the ineffective
portion of the same is immediately recognised in the income statement.

¢) hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation (net investment hedge).

If the checks do not confirm hedge effectiveness, as from that moment, accounting for the hedging
transactions is suspended and the derivative contract is reclassified under financial assets designated at
fair value through profit and loss or under financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit and
loss. The hedging relationship also ceases when

e the derivative expires, is sold, cancelled or exercised,

¢ the element being hedged is sold, expires or is reimbursed,

e itis no longer highly probable that the future hedged transaction will be carried out.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised from the financial statements when:

¢ the rights to receive the cash flows from the asset are extinguished;

e the company has transferred the right to receive the cash flows from the asset or assumed the
contractual obligation to pay them in full and without delay to a third party and (a) has transferred
substantially all rights and benefits of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all risks and benefits of the asset, but has transferred




control of it.

In cases in which the company has transferred the rights to receive the cash flows from an asset and has
not substantially transferred or retained all the risks and benefits or has lost control of the asset, the asset
is recognised in the company’s financial statements to the extent of its continuing involvement in said
asset. In this case, the company also recognises an associated liability. The asset transferred and the
associated liability are measured to reflect the rights and obligations that the company has retained.

Equity investments

Equity investments in associated and jointly-controlled companies, according to IAS 28, are initially
entered at cost and, following acquisition, are adjusted as a result of changes in the investor’s share in
the investee company’s net assets. The profit or loss of the investor reflects its own share of the profit
(loss) for the year of the investee and other comprehensive income (expense) of the investor reflects its
own share of other comprehensive income (expense) of the investee.

According to the provisions of IFRS 9 and IAS 32, the equity investments in companies other than
subsidiaries, associated companies and jointly-controlled companies are classified as assets at fair value
and entered in the income statement or shareholders’ equity reserve depending on whether they fall into
the FVOCI or FVPL measurement categories. Gains and losses deriving from value adjustments are
therefore booked to the income statement or a shareholders’ equity reserve respectively.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at purchase cost, including any accessory expenses, determined in accordance
with the FIFO method, and the presumed net realisable value drawn from market trends, whichever is the
lower. IEG Group inventories are composed primarily of consumables and products held for sale in bars
and catering services.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand as well as on-demand bank deposits and other treasury
investments with an original envisaged maturity of no more than three months.

The definition of cash and cash equivalents of the cash flow statement corresponds to that of the balance
sheet.

Provisions for risks and charges

Allocations to provisions for risks and charges are made whenever the Group must meet a present
obligation (legal or implicit) as the result of a past event, whose amount can be estimated reliably and
involving a probable outlay of resources to meet the obligation. If the expectations of the use of resources
go beyond the next year, the obligation is booked at the present value, determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows discounted at a rate which also takes into account the cost of borrowing and
the risk of the liability.

Risks for which the occurrence of a liability is only possible are indicated in the appropriate section on
“guarantees given, commitments and other contingent liabilities” and no allocation is made.

Employee benefits
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The employee benefits provided on or after the termination of the employment contract are composed of
employee severance indemnity or retirement provisions.

Law no. 296 of 27 December 2006, the “2007 Finance Law” introduced major changes to the allocation
of amounts of the provision for employee severance indemnity. Until 31 December 2006, employee
severance indemnity fell under post-employment plans known as “defined-benefit plans” and were
measured according to IAS 19, using the projected unit credit method carried out by independent
actuaries.

This calculation consists of estimating the amount of the benefit that an employee will receive at the
presumed date of termination of employment by using demographic assumptions (e.g. mortality rate and
staff turnover rate) and financial assumptions (e.g. discount rate and future salary increases). The amount
determined in this way is discounted and reproportioned on the basis of the length of service accrued with
respect to total length of service and represents a reasonable estimate of the benefits that each employee
has already accrued based on their work services.

Following said reform, the provision for employee severance indemnity, for the part accrued from 1
January 2007, is to be considered essentially similar to a “defined contribution plan”. In particular, these
changes introduced the possibility for the worker to choose where to allocate their employee severance
indemnity being accrued: the new flows of the employee severance indemnity can, in companies with
more than 50 employees, be allocated by the worker to pre-established pension funds or maintained in
the company and transferred to the INPS (ltalian National Social Security Institute). In short, for the
employee severance indemnity accrued prior to 2007, the IEG Group carried out an actuarial evaluation,
without subsequently including the component relating to future salary increases. The part subsequently
accrued was instead accounted for according to the methods attributable to defined contribution plans.

EC Regulation no. 475/2012 was issued in 2012, which acknowledged, at EU level, the revised version
of IAS 19 (Employee Benefits) applicable, as per mandatory requirements, from 1 January 2013 according
to the retrospective method. Therefore, the IEG Group applied said revised version of IAS 19 from the
date of transition to the IAS/IFRS, or 1 January 2014.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value, equal to the consideration received at the
relevant date, augmented, in the case of payables and loans, by the directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequently, non-derivative financial liabilities are measured using the amortised cost criterion, by using
the effective interest rate method.

Financial liabilities that are included in the scope of application of IFRS 9 are classified as payables and
loans, or as hedging derivatives, depending on the case. The Company determines the classification of
its financial liabilities on initial recognition.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the liability is extinguished as well as
through the amortisation process.

The amortised cost is calculated by recognising all discounts or bonuses on the purchase and the fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Amortisation at the effective interest rate is
included among financial charges in the income statement.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation underlying the liability is discharged, cancelled, or
expires.




In the event that an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender, in substantially
different conditions, or the conditions of an existing liability substantially change, the exchange or
amendment is treated as an accounting derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, with any differences in the carrying amount recorded in the income statement.

Put options on minority interests
The Group granted put options to minority shareholders which entitle the latter to sell to the Group the
shares held by them at a future date.

As regards EU-IFRS, the treatment applicable to put options regarding minority interests is not fully
regulated. While, in fact, it has been established that the accounting of a put option on minority interests
gives rise to the recognition of a liability, its contra-entry has not been governed. In this regard, when an
entity becomes party to a contract as a result of which it assumes an obligation to pay cash or another
financial asset in exchange for one of its equity instruments, in compliance with the provisions of
paragraph 23 of IAS 32, it must record a financial liability. At the moment of initial recognition, the financial
liability will be recognised to the extent corresponding to the amount, appropriately discounted, which
must be paid for the exercise of the put option. The subsequent changes in the value of the liability will
be recognised in the consolidated income statement.

In order to identify the contra-entry of the recognition of the liability, the company must evaluate whether
the risks and benefits of ownership of the minority interests forming the object of the put option have been,
due to the conditions of exercise of the option, transferred to the parent company or have remained with
the owners of said interests. Based on the results of this analysis, it will depend whether the minority
interests forming the object of the put option continue to be represented or not in the consolidated financial
statements. They will be if the above-mentioned risks and benefits are not transferred to the parent
company through the put option, vice versa, where the transfer has occurred, these minority interests will
cease to be represented in the consolidated financial statements.

Therefore, the accounting treatment of the put options on the shares of the parent company can be
summarised as follows:

e in the event in which the minority interests do not need to be represented in the financial
statements given that the related risks and benefits have been transferred to the parent company,
the liability relating to the put option will be recognised:

» with a goodwill contra-entry, if the put option is recognised to the seller as part of a
business combination; or

> with contra-entry of minorities’ shareholders’ equity to these interests in the event in which
the contract is signed outside this scope; vice versa

o if the transfer of the risks and benefits has not occurred, the contra-entry for the recognition of the
aforementioned liability will always be the shareholders’ equity pertaining to the Parent Company.

Tax payables for direct taxes and other liabilities

Payables are recognised at nominal value. Payables are eliminated from the financial statements when
the underlying financial obligations have been extinguished.

The liabilities, if expiring after twelve months, are discounted in order to bring them back to the current
value through the use of a rate as such to reflect the market evaluations of the present value of money
and the specific risks connected with the liability. Discounting interest is classified under financial charges.
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Hedging instruments

The IEG Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. The Group
has never owned speculative financial instruments. These financial instruments are accounted for using
the rules of hedge accounting when:
- atthe inception of the existing hedge, the formal designation and documentation of said hedging
relationship;
- itis presumed that the hedge is highly effective;
- the effectiveness can be reliably measured and said hedge is highly effective during the
designated periods.
The IEG Group applies the accounting of cash flow hedges in the event in which there is formal
documentation of the hedging relationship of the changes in cash flows originating from an asset or liability
or a future transaction (underlying element hedged) considered highly likely and which could impact the
income statement.
The measurement criterion of the hedging instruments is represented by the fair value at the designated
date. The fair value of the interest rate derivatives is determined by their market value at the designated
date when it refers to future cash flow hedges. It is booked to the hedging reserve of shareholders’ equity
and transferred to the income statement when the underlying financial charge/income materialises.
In cases in which the instruments do not meet the required conditions for the accounting of hedging
instruments set out in 1AS 39, the fair value changes are booked to the income statement as financial
charges/income.

Translation of foreign currency items

Transactions in foreign currency are initially recognised in the functional currency, using the spot
exchange rate at the transaction date. Monetary assets and liabilities, denominated in foreign currency,
are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period. The
differences are posted to the income statement.

Shareholders’ equity
Share capital

The amount of Share Capital to be entered in the financial statements coincides with that of Capital Issued;
the latter must be stated on the Balance Sheet at nominal value, i.e. the number of shares (ordinary,
preferential and savings) multiplied by their nominal value, net of any part of the Share Capital Subscribed
that has not yet been paid-up.

Company’s own shares

Treasury shares are entered as a reduction of the share capital for the nominal value and the share
premium reserve for the excess amount, the original cost of the treasury shares and the revenues from
any subsequent sales are recognised as changes in shareholders’ equity.

With reference to the IAS/IFRS, and more specifically to IAS 32, when purchasing treasury shares, the
amount equal to the nominal value of the securities is used as a direct reduction of share capital while the
amount ranging between this and the purchase price affects the share premium reserve. In the event of
sale, the share capital is re-formed, as is the share premium reserve, thereby assigning the same amounts




as had been respectively reduced during purchase and noting any gains/losses brought about by the
differences between the purchase price and price of sale, directly to other reserves.

The transaction costs of these transactions are booked as a reduction of the shareholders' equity, without
any impact on the income statement.

Acknowledging the proceeds

Revenues from contracts with customers are recognized when the following conditions are met:
e the contract with the customer has been identified;
e the performance obligations contained in the contract have been identified;
e the price has been determined;
e the price has been allocated to the individual performance obligations contained in the contract;
o the performance obligation contained in the contract has been satisfied.

The Group recognises revenues from contracts with customers when (or as) it fulfils the obligation by
transferring the promised good or service (or asset) to the customer. The asset is transferred when (or
as) the customer acquires control over it.
The Group transfers control of the good or service over time, and therefore fulfils the performance
obligation and recognises the revenues over time, if one of the following criteria is satisfied:
e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the entity's
performance as the entity performs;
e the Group’s performance creates or enhances the asset (for example, work in progress) that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced,;
e the Group’s performance does not create an asset that has an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to the date considered.

If the performance obligation is not fulfilled over time, it is fulfilled at a point in time. In that case, the Group
recognises the revenue at the moment in which the customer acquires control of the promised asset.

Revenue is recorded at fair value equal to the amount received or due, taking into account any trade
discounts granted or reductions linked to quantities sold.

The Group believes that the customer acquires control of all services provided to it at the end of the event,
owing to its short duration.

Public grants are only noted where we can be reasonably certain that they will be received and all related
conditions have been met, regardless, therefore, of the presence of any formal concession resolution.
Grants are noted as income in the year in which they fall due and when correlated with an asset, they are
recognised as income on a straight-line basis, throughout the expected useful life of the underlying asset.
Note that the Covid Contributions are classified as “non-recurring” items in these financial statements.

Operating costs

Costs are recognised when they relate to goods and services sold or consumed in the period or for
systematic allocation or when their future use cannot be identified.

Personnel expenses also include, on an accruals basis, taking into account the period of actual service,
the fees to directors, both fixed and variable.

Sundry tax other than income tax and rates are noted directly as profit or loss and therefore come under
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the item of operating costs.
Costs that do not meet the conditions to be recognised under balance sheet assets are booked to the
income statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Financial income and expense

Financial income and expense are recognised according to a time criterion that takes into account the
actual return/expense of the relevant asset/liability.

Dividends

Revenues for dividends are recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment is established,
which normally coincides with the date of the annual shareholders’ meeting that resolves on the
distribution of the dividends, taking into account treasury shares held.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Group’s economic results by the number of ordinary
shares outstanding, thereby excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Group’s economic results by the number of
ordinary shares outstanding, thereby excluding treasury shares but including all instruments that may
cause dilution, such as stock options, convertible bonds and shares, warrants and other securities.

Taxation

Taxes for the period include current and deferred taxes. Income tax are generally booked to the income
statement, except where they relate to events recorded directly in shareholders’ equity. In this case, the
income taxes are also booked directly to shareholders' equity.

Current taxes are the taxes the company expects to have to pay on taxable income in the year and are
calculated in compliance with the legislation in force at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are calculated based on the liability method applied to the temporary differences
between the amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding values recognised for tax purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are calculated using tax rates
that are expected to apply at the moment in which in which the asset is realised or the liability settled.
Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is likely that taxable income sufficient for said assets to be
realised will be generated in the following years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only offset when there is a legal right to offset and when they refer
to taxes due to the same tax authorities.

The tax provisions that may be generated by the transfer of non-distributed profit from the subsidiaries
are made only when there is a real intention to transfer said profit.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires Directors to use accounting principles
and methods that, in some instances, require the use of complex and subjective valuations and estimates
drawn from historical experience and assumptions that, in each case, are deemed to be reasonable and
realistic under the circumstances existing at that time.




The use of these estimates and assumptions has an impact on the amounts reported in the financial
statements, which include the statement of financial position, the income statement and the cash flow
statement, as well as the explanatory notes.

The final amounts shown in the consolidated financial statements for which the above-mentioned
estimates and assumptions were used may differ from the amounts reported in the financial statements
of the individual companies due to the uncertainty that is inherent in the assumptions and the conditions
upon which the estimates were based.

The financial statements items that, more than others, require greater subjective input by the Directors in
the preparation of estimates and for which a change in the conditions underlying the assumptions used
could have a material impact on the company’s separate financial statements mainly concern:
e the measurement of fixed assets (amortisation/depreciation and any write-downs due to
impairment, price allocations);
e the measurement of receivables.
e the recognition and quantification of contingent assets and liabilities;
e the determination of deferred tax assets/liabilities and income taxes;
¢ the determination of liabilities relating to “Employee severance indemnity” accrued prior to 2007,
which was carried out by making use of the actuarial evaluation prepared by independent
actuaries;
o financial payables on put options and conditional earn-outs;
e risk provisions;
e fair value of financial instruments.
With reference to fixed assets, notice is hereby given that, for the impairment test, the processes and
measurement methods and the methods for calculating the estimates are based on complex assumptions
relating to revenues, operating costs, margins, investments, rates of growth in the terminal value and
discount rates differentiated for each of the CGUs identified, to which the different scenarios subject to
sensitivity analysis are applied.
With reference to the measurement of receivables, notice is hereby given that the bad debt provisions
reflects the estimates of expected losses for the Group's loan portfolio. Allocations were made to cover
expected losses on loans, estimated on the basis of previous experience with reference to loans with
similar credit risk, to amounts of current and historical unpaid amounts, as well as careful monitoring of
the quality of the loan portfolio and the current and expected conditions and reference markets. The
estimates and assumptions are periodically reviewed and the impact of any change recognised in the
income statement in the relevant year.
With reference to the measurement of financial instruments, notice is hereby given that the fair value of
unlisted financial assets is determined through financial measurement techniques used that require basic
assumptions and estimates. These assumptions may not materialise in the times and methods envisaged.
Therefore, the estimates prepared by the Group may differ from the final data.
The parameters used to draw up the estimates are commented on in the Explanatory notes to the
consolidated financial statements. The estimates and assumptions are periodically reviewed and the
impact of any change recognised immediately in the income statement. For matters not specifically
addressed, please refer to the respective paragraphs in "Measurement criteria".

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The IEG Group is exposed to financial risks related to its activities, in particular relating to the following
types:

e credit risk, deriving from commercial transactions or financing activities;

o liquidity risk, relating to the availability of financial resources and access to the credit market;

62



o market risk (composed of exchange rate risk, interest rate risk, price risk), with particular reference
to interest rate risk, relating to the exposure to the Group on financial instruments that generate
interest.

Credit risk

The credit risk to which the IEG Group is subject falls under normal commercial activities, both owing to
the fragmentation of positions and the excellent credit quality historically recorded. The positions
considered at risk were, nonetheless, written down accordingly. In order to contain the risks deriving from
the management of trade receivables, each company has identified an office or a person responsible for
the systematic coordination of the reminder activities, managed jointly by the commercial and
administrative departments, legal representatives and companies specialised in credit recovery. The
software implemented by the Parent Company lItalian Exhibition Group S.p.A. and used by the main
subsidiaries keeps a track of each reminder.

The table below shows the breakdown by past due brackets, of the receivables past due as at 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2021 and the overall value of the Bad Debt Provision.

Analysis of past due 2022

Balggzﬁ Falling Past 0-90 91-180 181-365 Over365 pgaq gebt
31/12/2022 due due days days days days provision
TRADE RECEIVABLES 30,041 10,910 27,375 14,487 1,262 910 10,716 (8,244)

Analysis of past due 2021

Balggc;t: Falling Past 0-90 91-180 181-365 Over365 pgaq gept
31/12/2021 due due days days days days provision
TRADE RECEIVABLES 23,126 3,806 25,019 11,333 1,646 832 11,209 (5,700)

The bad debt provision is calculated on the basis of the criteria of presumed recoverability, through both
internal evaluations and with the support of external legal representatives. For more details on changes
in the Bad debt provision, please refer to Note 9) Trade receivables.

Liquidity risk

The Group believes it is fundamentally important to maintain a level of available funds suited to its
reguirements.
The two main factors that determine the Group’s liquidity situation are, on the one hand, the resources
generated or absorbed by operating and investment activities, and on the other, the maturity and renewal
characteristics of the debt or of the liquidity of financial investments and market conditions.
The Group has adopted a series of policies and processes for optimising the management of financial
resources, reducing liquidity risk:

¢ maintenance of an adequate level of available liquidity;

e obtaining of adequate credit lines;




e monitoring of prospective liquidity conditions, in relation to the process of business planning.
As part of this type of risk, as regards the composition of net financial indebtedness, the IEG Group tends
to finance investments with medium/long-term payables, while it meets current commitments with both
the cash flow generated by operations and by using short-term credit lines. The table below shows the
breakdown and maturity of financial payables and trade payables:

Within 1 year From 1to 5 years Due after 5 years Total ‘

31.12.2022

Payables due to banks 18,488 64,869 19,977 103,334
Financial liabilities on rights of use 4,779 16,215 13,302 34,295
Financial liabilities for put options 4,741 4,741
Other financial liabilities 5,502 5,377 10,879
Trade payables 42,807 42,807
TOTAL 71,576 91,202 33,279 196,057
31.12.2021

Payables due to banks 22,215 58,826 33,451 114,434
Financial liabilities on rights of use 3,346 9,551 14,475 27,372
Financial liabilities for put options 5,754 5,754
Other financial liabilities 4,834 6,769 11,653
Trade payables 33,825 33,825
TOTAL 64,211 80,899 77,926 193,037

For further information on the breakdown of the items reported in the table, please refer to Notes 15, 16, 20 and 21.

As at 31 December 2022, the IEG Group can rely on approximately 19.6 million euros of unused credit
lines, cash and cash equivalents of 50.5 million euros and trade receivables of 30 million euros, for a total
of 100.1 million euros; it therefore has sufficient liquid funds to cope with the short-term financial needs,
even taking into account the general economic context.

Market risk

The group reserves the right to intervene with suitable hedges if the market risk factors should become
significant.

The market risk consists of the exchange rate risk, the interest rate risk and the price risk, as described
below.

Exchange rate risk

The IEG Group, operating in a global context, is naturally exposed to exchange rate risk deriving from the
fluctuation in exchange rates, in particular, vis-a-vis the US Dollar for the investment made in the
subsidiary FB International Inc., vis-a-vis the United Arab Emirates for the investment made in HBG FZ
LLC, vis-a-vis the Brazilian Real for the investment made in the subsidiary IEG Brasil eventos LTDA and
vis-a-vis the Chinese Renminbi for the investment made in the Subsidiary Europe Asia Global Link
Exhibition Ltd and vis-a-vis the Singapore dollar following the recent establishment of IEG Asia Pte Ltd,
based in the Republic of Singapore.

The exchanges rates against the Euro (foreign currency for euro units) adopted to translate the items
denominated in another currency are shown below:




Average Average
Currency Exchange rate exchange rate Exchange rate exchange rate
at 31/12/2022 2022 at 31/12/2021 2021
United Arab Emirates Dirham 3.9117 4.3436 4.1595 4.34361
US dollar 1.0666 1.1827 1.1326 1.18274
Brazilian Real 5.6386 6.3779 6.3101 6.37789
Chinese Renminbi 7.3582 7.6282 7.1947 7.62823
Singapore Dollar 14.3000 14.5120 15.2790 15.8910

The functional currency, defined by IAS 21 as the currency of the economic environment in which the
Group mainly operates, is the euro.

As at 31 December 2022, a change of +/- 1% in the above rates versus the Euro, based on all other
variables remaining the same, would not have involved significant differences to the pre-tax result and,
therefore, to the corresponding variation in shareholders’ equity.

Below are the values expressed in currencies other than the euro of the net assets included in the
consolidated financial statements closed at 31 December 2022:

Values in USD/000 ‘ Values in Reals/000 | Values in AED/000 Values in CNY/000 Values in SGD/000
31/12/2022

311212022 ‘ 31/12/2022 311212022 31/12/2022

Intangible fixed assets 953 1,391 0 0 0
Property, Plant and Equipment 1,421 176 20 0 0
Equity investments 0 0 0 2,054 0
Inventories 109 0 0 0 0
Receivables from customers 3,965 904 2,953 51 0
Tax receivables and deferred tax assets 304 1 0 0 0
Other receivables 534 975 294 511 518
Cash and cash equivalents 1,125 935 4,776 180 0
Provisions 0 0 (296) 0 0
Payables due to banks (198) 0 0 0 0
Financial payables for rights of use (838) 0 0 0 0
Other financial payables (2,124) (1,863) (907) 0 0
Trade payables (5,352) (60) (793) (68) (22)
Tax payables (34) (89) (73) (442) 0
Other payables (2,084) (1,049) (52) (36) 0
Accrued expenses and deferred income (262) (187) (1,840) 0 0

Interest rate risk

In order to carry out its activities, the Group obtains finance on the market by taking out primarily floating
rate debt (linked to the Euribor), hence exposing itself to the risk deriving from an increase in interest
rates. The objective of interest risk management is to limit and stabilise flows of expenses due to interest
paid primarily on medium-term payables to ensure close correlation between the underlying and the
hedging instrument.

The hedging activity, evaluated and decided on a case by case basis, is carried out predominantly through
derivative contracts targeted at transforming a variable rate to a fixed rate.

In 2022, following a hypothetical increase or decrease of 100 basis points in the interest rate, based on




all other variables remaining the same, the higher or lower pre-tax charge (and therefore a corresponding
change in shareholders’ equity) would have been for an insignificant amount.

Price risk

The type of activity performed by the Group, essentially represented by the provision of services that do
not require a process of purchase-transformation of assets, is such that the risk of fluctuations in prices
is not particularly significant. The majority of the purchases made in relation to business activities are
represented by the provision of service whose value is not immediately influenced by macroeconomic
changes in the prices of the main commodities. In addition, as stated in relation to exchange rate risk,
sales are almost all in the accounting currency and purchases not in Euro are negligible.

For the sake of complete disclosure, it should be noted that, as at 31 December 2021, the Group is
exposed to a minimal extent to the price risk associated with investments in listed equities, as it has made
a small investment in the shares of the company Gambero Rosso, classified to the financial statements
under financial assets at “Fair Value through Profit & Loss”.

Climate Change
Please refer to the Directors’ Report on Operations for further information about Climate Change.

Fair value
IFRS 13 defines the following three levels of fair value to which to refer the measurement of financial
instruments recognised in the statement of financial position.
e Levell: prices quoted on an active market;
e Level 2: Inputs other than the listed prices described for Level 1, which can be directly (price)
or indirectly (price derivatives) observed on the market;
e Level 3: Inputs that are not based on observable market data.
The following tables show the classification of financial assets and liabilities and the level of inputs used
for the fair value measurement, as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

31/12/2022
AmOrised P vough pof
9 and loss

ASSETS

Other equity investments 4 2-3 9,248 101 9,349
Non-current financial assets 7 1-2 1,330 1,756 215 3,301
Other non-current assets 8 270 270
Trade receivables 10 30,041 30,041
Current financial assets 12 2 334 334
Other current assets 13 6,914 6,914
Cash and cash equivalents 14 50,586 50,586
TOTAL ASSETS 89,475 11,004 316 100,795
LIABILITIES

Non-current payables due to banks 16 84,846 84,846
Other non-current financial liabilities 18 2 34,893 34,893
Other non-current liabilities 21 1,805 1,805
Current payables due to banks 16 18,488 18,488
Other current financial liabilities 23 10,282 10,282
Trade payables 24 42,807 42,807
Other current liabilities 26 52,242 52,242
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TOTAL LIABILITIES 245,363 0 0 245,363

31/12/2021
Fair value
Notes  Fair value Amortised cost Fair value  through profit Total
level through OCI and loss

ASSETS
Other equity investments 4 2-3 10,770 88 10,858
Non-current financial assets 7 1-2 646 360 1,006
Other non-current assets 8 142 142
Trade receivables 10 23,126 23,126
Current financial assets 12 2 445 445
Other current assets 13 5,674 5,674
Cash and cash equivalents 14 52,651 52,651

TOTAL ASSETS 82,684 10,770 448 93,902

LIABILITIES

Non-current payables due to 16 92,277 92,277

banks

Other non-current financial 18 2 32,966 444 3,139 36,549

liabilities

Other non-current liabilities 21 2,020 2,020

Current payables due to banks 16 22,157 22,157

Other current financial liabilities 23 8,230 8,230

Trade payables 24 33,825 33,825

Other current liabilities 26 36,272 36,272

TOTAL LIABILITIES 227,747 444 3,139 231,330

If the fair value is not borne out by a price listed on a market or not based on a measurement technique
based purely on observable market data, the Group will not, as specified by accounting standard IFRS 7,
note the gain or loss as profit and loss when initially booked and shall specify which accounting standards
it adopted in noting the difference between the initial fair value recorded and the transaction price on the
income statement, to reflect a hypothetical change in factors (including time) that the market participants
may take into consideration to determine a specific price.

Change in liabilities deriving from financing activities

The reconciliation of liabilities deriving from financing activities, as reported in the cash flow statement,
for the periods ended respectively as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022 is reported below. It
should be noted that the fair value changes in Other non-current financial payables refer to the
performance of the MTM value of the derivative subscribed on 04 November 2011 with Banca Popolare
di Vicenza, now Banca Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A.; while the other non-monetary changes include the impacts
of IFRS 16, on current and non-current financial liabilities and the change in payables for put options.

Balance as at Change in Change in Other non- Balance as at

31/12/2021 cash flow fair value monetary 31/12/2022
changes

Current bank payables 22,157 (3,667) 18,488
Non-current bank payables 92,277 (7,430) 84,846
Other current financial payables* 8,230 (1,242) 3,293 10,282

Other non-current financial payables* 36,549 (705) (3,582) 2,633 34,893




Balance as at Change in Change in Other non- Balance as at

31/12/2020 cash Fair value monetary 31/12/2021
flow changes

Current bank payables 28,873 (6,716) 22,157
Non-current bank payables 85,986 6,291 92,277
Other current financial payables* 5,927 2,309 (6) 8,230
Other non-current financial 37,770 (4,619) 1,346 2,052 36,549
payables*

*Current and non-current financial payables also include the related liabilities for rights of use

OPERATING SEGMENTS

An operating segment is defined by IFRS 8 as a component of the entity that: i) carries out business
activities which generate revenues or costs (including revenues or costs regarding transactions with other
components of the same entity); ii) whose operating results are periodically reviewed by the entity’s
highest operating decision-maker for the purposes of taking decisions regarding resources to be allocated
to the segment and the assessment of results; iii) for which separate financial statements information is
available.

For the purposes of IFRS 8 - Operating segments, the activities performed by the Group are incorporated
in a single operating segment.

In fact, the Group structure identifies a strategic and unitary business vision and this representation is
consistent with the methods used by management to take its decisions, allocate resources and define the
communication strategy, making the assumptions of a division-based business drive financially ineffective
at the current state of play.

CONSOLIDATION PRINCIPLES

These consolidated financial statements include the Parent Company Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A., the
subsidiaries and the jointly controlled companies.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared at 31 December 2022 on the basis of the
separate financial statements approved by the competent Administrative Bodies for the individual
companies and suitably adjusted, where necessary, to ensure compliance with the Group’s accounting
standard, in accordance with the IASs/IFRSs.

The list of companies included in the scope of consolidation as of 31 December 2022 is shown in Annex
1.

Subsidiaries

Companies are defined as subsidiaries when the Parent Company has the power, directly or indirectly, to
exercise management so as to obtain the benefits from the exercise of said activities. More specifically,
control is obtained when the Group is exposed, or has the right to variable returns deriving from its
involvement with the entity invested in and, in the meantime, is also able to impact those results by
exercising its power over that entity. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group
has:

e power over the investee (i.e. the Group has existing rights that give it the ability to direct the relevant

activities of the investee);
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e exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee;

e the ability to exercise its power over the entity invested in to impact the amount of its returns.
Generally, the assumption is that the majority of voting rights entails control. Supporting this assumption,
and when the Group holds less than the majority of voting rights (or similar rights), the Group considers
all the relevant facts and circumstances to establish whether it controls the entity invested in, including:
e contractual agreements with other holders of voting rights;

e rights deriving from contractual arrangements;

e voting rights and potential voting rights of the Group.

The Group reconsiders whether it has control over an investee if the facts and circumstances indicate that
there have been changes in one or more of the three relevant factors for the purpose of defining control.
The financial statements of subsidiaries are consolidated on a line-by-line basis from the moment of the
acquisition of control until the date of its cessation. According to the provisions of IFRS 3, subsidiaries
acquired by the Group are accounted for using the acquisition method, based on which:

- the consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, determined as
the sum of the fair values of the transferred assets and liabilities assumed by the Group at the
acquisition date and the capital instruments issued in exchange for the control of the acquired
entity; transaction accessory expenses are booked to the income statement at the moment they
are incurred;

- the excess of the acquisition cost with respect to the market value of the amount pertaining to the
Group of the net assets is recorded as goodwill;

- if the acquisition cost is lower than the fair value of the amount pertaining to the Group of the net
assets of the acquired subsidiary, the difference is recognised directly in the income statement.

The reciprocal payables and receivables, costs and revenues between consolidated companies and the
effects of all significant transactions between them were eliminated.

In particular, profits still not yet realised with third parties deriving from intercompany transactions were
eliminated.

The portion of shareholders' equity attributable to minority interests is recognised in a specific item, while
their portion of net income is shown separately in the consolidated income statement.

Associated companies

Associated companies are those over which the Group exercises significant influence, but in which they
do not have management control.

This influence is presumed to exist when the Group holds between 20% and 50% of voting rights. The
consolidated financial statements include the share of profits and losses of associated companies,
measured using the equity method from the date on which significant influence over management was
obtained, up until its cessation.

The portion pertaining to the Group of profits or losses following the acquisition of associated companies
is recognised in the income statement.

The equity investment in associated companies is accounted for based on the acquisition method and
any excess of the acquisition cost with respect to the portion pertaining to the Group of the current value
of the net assets of the acquired entity is included in the value of the equity investment.

Joint ventures

These are companies in which the Group shares contractually established control, or for which there are
contractual agreements under which two or more parties undertake an economic activity subject to joint
control. Equity investments in jointly controlled companies are valued using the equity method.




SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION AND ITS CHANGES

The consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2022 includes the income statement and
balance sheet data of Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A. (Parent Company) and all companies which it directly
or indirectly controls.

The corporate year of Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A. and all the Group companies is the calendar year
(1/1 - 12/31).

The consolidated financial statements have been drafted on the basis of the accounting positions as at
31 December 2022 prepared by the consolidated companies and adjusted, where necessary, in order to
bring them into line with the accounting standards and classification criteria of the Group compliant with
the IFRS.

The list of the equity investments included in the scope of consolidation, with an indication of the method
used for consolidation is provided in Annex 1 of the Explanatory Notes.

The balance sheet and income statement figures as at 31 December 2022 also include the share of profits
and losses of companies measured using the equity method on the date on which the company gained
its significant influence over management up to its cessation.

The consolidation area at 31 December 2022 differs from that at 31 December 2021 due to the inclusion

in the consolidation scope of:

- VGroup S.r.l., a company acquired by the Parent Company on 27 May 2022 and of which it holds
75% of the share capital;

- IEG China Co Ltd (formerly EAGLE), a company already held with a 50% share by IEG. In 2022, the
Parent Company acquired the final shares from the shareholder, so as to hold the entire capital;

- IEG Deutschland Gmbh, with registered office in Munich, a company established by the Parent
Company, which holds the whole of the share capital at 24 March 2022;

- IEG Asia Pte Ltd, with registered office in Singapore, a company established by the Parent Company,
which holds the whole of the share capital at 21 October 2022.

In terms of the companies included in the consolidation scope using the synthetic method, we would recall

the acquisition of 50% of Italian German Exhibition Company S.r.l. (IGECo0), a company established by

Hannover Fairs International GmbH and in which the German partner contributed its subsidiaries

operating in the United States (Hannover Fairs USA Inc.), Canada (Hannover Fairs Canada Inc.) and

Mexico (Hannover Fairs Mexico SA de CV), today Igeco USA, Igeco Canada and Igeco Mexico.

During the first half of 2022, moreover, the liquidation process was concluded of the Joint Venture Expo

Extratégia Brasil Eventos e Producges Ltda.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

On 27 May 2022, the acquisition was completed of VGroup S.r.l., which generated provisional goodwill of
2,893 thousand euros, allocated to the CGU VGroup, which represents the subsidiary’s flows. On 08
October 2022, the Parent Company completed the purchase of the remaining 50% of the capital of
EAGLE, subsequently renamed IEG China: in this case too, the goodwill was allocated to the cash
generating unit represented by the subsidiary.

Both these transactions were settled entirely in cash. The portion previously held in IEG China was
measured at fair value at the date on which the additional 50% was acquired.

At the date of this document, the difference between the cost of both acquisitions and the related net
assets acquired was fully allocated to provisional goodwill; given that the Purchase Price Allocation phase
has still not been completed and given the events indicative of possible impairment of the net assets
acquired, as set forth in IAS 38, have not been verified, it was not necessary to test said goodwill for
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impairment. A specific analysis of the fair value of the net assets acquired and the consideration
transferred will be carried out within twelve months of the acquisition. If, at the end of the measurement
period, tangible and intangible assets with a definite life are identified, the provisional amounts recorded
at the time of acquisition will be adjusted, with retroactive effect to the acquisition date.

The table below shows the provisional values for the transaction in question.

(B) - Fair value at
the acquisition date
(provisional values)

VGroup S.r.l. Euro/000 () - EREKVENES B

the acquisition date

Property, plant and equipment 0 0
Property, plant and equipment IFRS16 0 191
Intangible fixed assets 71 71
Advance taxes 12 12
Trade receivables 48 48
Other current assets 170 170
Other tax assets 194 194
Cash and cash equivalents 771 771
Severance indemnity 3) 4)
Customers advance receivables (207) (207)
Trade payables (271) (294)
Financial payables IFRS16 0 (191)
Tax payables for direct taxes 0 (106)
Other current liabilities 5) ©)
Total net assets acquired 781 649
Minority interests measured at fair value (25%) (195) (162)
Cost of the acquisition 3,380 3,380

Provisional goodwill at

(B) - Fair value at the
acquisition date
(provisional values)

(A) - Book values at
the acquisition date

IEG China RMB/000

Equity investments 2,054 2,054
Trade receivables 51 51
Cash and cash equivalents 217 217
Other tax assets 29 29
Other current assets 1 1
Customers advance receivables (36) (36)
Trade payables 37) (37)
Total net assets acquired 2,278 2,278
Cost of the acquisition, of which: 4,399 4,399
Portion previously helld and remggsured at fair value at'the 2399 2399
date on which the additional share was acquired ' ’
Cost for the acquisition of the additional 50% 2,000 2,000

Provisional goodwill at 08.10.2022




STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO IFRS APPLIED FROM 1
JANUARY 2022 OR WHICH CAN BE APPLIED EARLY

In 2022, the IEG Group adopted the following new accounting standards, amendments and
interpretations, revised by the IASB.
o Amendment to IFRS 3 — Business combinations. This document, issued by the IASB on
22 October 2018, is targeted at resolving the difficulties that arise when an entity
determines whether it has acquired a company or a group of assets. The application of this
amendment on the consolidated financial statements of the IEG Group has not had any
significant impact.

o Amendment to IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. This
amendment, issued by IASB in May 2020, indicates which costs must be considered in
order to evaluate whether a contract can be defined as an onerous contract. The
application of this amendment on the consolidated financial statements of the IEG Group
has not had any significant impact.

o Annual Improvements 2018-2020: In May 2020, the IASB issued some amendments to
IFRS 1 First time adoption of IFRS, IFRS 9 Financial instruments, IAS 41 Agriculture and
to the illustrative examples accompanying IFRS 16 Leases. The application of this
amendment on the consolidated financial statements of the IEG Group has not had any
significant impact.

o Amendment to IAS 16, Property Plant and Equipment. The purpose of the amendment is
to set some constraints on some types of capitalisable expenses in order to make the asset
available and ready to be used. The application of this amendment on the consolidated
financial statements of the IEG Group has not had any significant impact.

NEW IFRS AND IFRIC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS NOT
YET APPLICABLE AND NOT ADOPTED EARLY BY THE IEG GROUP

Following are the new accounting standards, amendments and interpretations, approved by the
competent bodies of the European Union. The IEG Group is assessing the impacts that the application of
these will have on the consolidated financial statements. The new accounting standards, amendments
and interpretations will be adopted according to the effective dates of introduction as reported below:

+ Amendment to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, to IFRS Practice Statement 2:
Disclosure of Accounting policies and IAS 8 Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors: Definition of Accounting Estimates. The specified amendments
issued by the IASB on 12 February 2021 aim to improve the disclosure on accounting
policies and aim to help companies distinguish between the effects that can cause changes
in the accounting estimates with respect to those deriving from changes in the main
accounting policies. The amendments came into effect from 1 January 2023.

+ IFRS17 Insurance Contracts: this standard introduces a new accounting approach to
insurance contracts by insurance companies, to date indicated in IFRS 4 (in force). These
amendments aim to make the accounting of insurance products more transparent and to
improve the consistency of their accounting representation. The standard came into force
on 1 January 2023.
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Amendments to IFRS17 Insurance contracts: Initial Application of IFRS17 and IFRS9 —
Comparative Information: this amendment is intended to help the entities to avoid
temporary accounting mismatches between financial assets and liabilities deriving from
insurance contracts and thus improve the usefulness of comparative information for
financial statement readers. This amendment came into force on 1 January 2023.

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes: Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction: this amendment clarifies how deferred taxes should be
accounted for on certain transactions that can generate assets and liabilities of equal
amounts, such as leases and decommissioning obligations.




COMMENTS ON MAIN ASSET ITEMS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

1) Property, plant and equipment
The tables below indicate the changes in the last two financial years.

Changes as at 31/12/2021

Balance as at eiruny Balance
31/12/2020 Changes Write- Depr Exchange in scope as at
Increases IFRS 16 downs Decreases Depr. IFRS 16 RERISTETS :flfteect of 31/12/2021
consol.
Land and
buildings
Book value VISCRCLONN 2848 4,441 (1,806) 305,967
Amortisation (131,179) 1,342 379 (5,022) (2,727) (137,207)
Total land and T:Resll 2848 5782 (1,427) (5.022) (2727) 534 168,760
buildings
Plant and
machinery
Book value 78,890 (30) (0] 79,027
Amortisation (68,729) 29 (2,726) (70,425)
Total plant and 10,161 B 8,602
machinery
Industrial and
commercial
equipment
Book value 33,636 34,459
Amortisation (28,401) (30,710)
Total industrial
and commercial 5,235 3,748
equipment
Other assets
Book value 24,738 25,364
Amortisation (18,567) (1,112) (19,728)
Total other assets 6,171 (1,112) 5,636
Total Fixed assets
under
construction and 3,732 (534) 3,928
payments on
account
TOTAL YN0l 5,135 6,177 (1,427) (128) (10,287) (2,945) 0 190,674
Changes as at 31/12/2022
Balance as Balance
at Increases ?2;291665 c\j/g:/\lltss Decreases Depr IFDReSprlﬁ TransfersExcrr;?;ge ﬁh:sg;z as at
31/12/2021 effect of consol. s112/2022
Land and buildings
Book value 305,967 623 10,686 195 317,488
Amortisation (137,207) 694 (4,978) (3,327) (141) (144,959)
Total land and RGO 623 11,380 4.978) (3.327) 17 54 172,529
buildings
Plant and
Book value 79,027 2,163 81,775
Amortisation (70,425) (72,049)
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Total plant and

. 8,602 (1,624) 9,727
machinery

Industrial and
commercial
equipment
Book value 34,459 (2,085) 33,699

Amortisation (30,710) 2,085 (1,950) (30,812)

Total industrial and
commercial 3,748 (1,950) 2,887
equipment

Other assets
Book value 25,364 126 98 1 26,131
Amortisation (19,728) (1,362) (191) 57 (46) @) (20,726)

Total other assets 5,636 (1,362) (191) 183 52 - 5,405

Total Fixed assets
under construction

3,928 (2,971) 485
and payments on
account
TOTAL WCONYZ 4,913 11,752 (2,971) (59) (9,914) (3,517) 191,032

The net amount of “Land and buildings” at 31 December 2022 is approximately 172 million euros with
a net change of 3.8 million euros compared with 31 December 2021. For 0.6 million euros, the increases
are related to improvements made to some of the warehouses held by the subsidiary Prostand for storing
the equipment necessary to develop stands and improvements made to properties owned by the Parent
Company. The increases related to the application of IFRS 16 are due to the renewal of the lease
contracts coming up to expiry. Total amortisation/depreciation comes to approximately 8.3 million, of
which 3.3 million relative to rights of use accounted in accordance with IFRS 16.

The net value of item “Plant and machinery” as at 31 December 2022 amounted to 9.7 million euros, a
net increase of 1.1 million euros. The increases are mainly due to the investments made by the Parent
Company to redo the CED room at the Rimini site, the development of the new ventilation plant in Hall 9,
the restructuring of Hall 3.1 at the Vicenza District and the entry into operation of the ventilation and air-
conditioning plants in Halls 3.0 and 8 of the Vicenza district and the purchase of new machinery by the
subsidiary Summertrade Srl. Period amortisation/depreciation came to 1.6 million euros.

The item “Industrial and commercial equipment”, with a balance of 2.9 million, recorded a net decrease
of 0.9 million euros. Period increases, which totalled 1.2 million euros, mainly refer to the purchase of
structures for trade fair stand development, acquired by the subsidiaries Prostand Srl and FB International
Inc. Period amortisation/depreciation came to approximately 2.0 million euros.

The item “Other assets”, with a balance of 5.4 million euros, recorded a net decrease of 0.2 million euros.
In this category, investments were made for approximately 0.8 million euros and new lease contracts
stipulated, with an increase in rights of use of 0.4 million euros. Amortisation/depreciation in this category
totalled 1.6 million euros, of which 0.2 relative to the amortisation of rights of use posted following the
application of IFRS 16.

Finally, “Assets under construction & payments on account” shows a balance of 0.5 million euros at
31 December 2022, down 3.4 million euros on 31 December 2021, of which 3.0 million euros relative to
the abandonment of the project to expand and requalify the district of Rimini, which envisaged the
development of a large, circular, multi-purpose hall measuring approximately 17,000 square metres in




gross exhibition space, as per the decision taken by the Board of Directors on 18 July, during the
presentation and approval of the new Business Plan through to 2027. The increases, for 0.2 million euros,
related to investments made in the Vicenza district whilst awaiting its start-up.
The property at Via Emilia 155 (Rimini trade fair district) is encumbered by a first mortgage of 150 million
euros issued as a guarantee of the loan granted by the pool of banks headed by Credit Agricole Italia
S.p.A. The first priority mortgage is granted in favour of each of the Original Secured Creditors in the
following amounts:

- inreference to Crédit Agricole Italia, within the total limit of 50 million;

- inreference to BNL, within the total limit of 26 million;

- inreference to Banco Popolare - BPM, within the total limit of 22 million;

- inreference to BPER, within the total limit of 26 million;

- inreference to Credito Sportivo, within the total limit of 26 million.

The property in Vicenza, via dell'Oreficeria 16 (Vicenza trade fair district) is encumbered by a first
mortgage of 84 million euros to guarantee the loan granted by Banca Popolare di Vicenza and drawn
down in 2008.

It is specified that the mortgages are noted at the time the entry is made in the register of properties.

2) Intangible fixed assets

The tables below indicate the changes in the last two financial years.

Balance Changes in 2021 Balance
as at as at
31/12/2020 Amort./Deprec./ S GHEGIVETEN31/12/2021
Increases Decreases . Transfers
™* Impairm. rate effect Area
Industrial patent and
intellectual property rights
Book value 4,485 4,711
Accumulated amortisation (3,824) (4,195)
.Total industrial pate.nt and 660 515
intellectual property rights
Concessions, licenses,
trademarks and similar
rights
Book value 11,860 11,861
Accumulated amortisation (3,654) (4,179)
Total concessions, licenses,
trademarks and  similar 8,206 7,682
rights
Goodwill 21,752 22,112
Fixed assets under
construction and payments 158 190
on account
Other intangible  fixed
assets
Book value 10,523 10,524
Accumulated amortisation (5,391) (6,505)
Total other intangible fixed 5,132 (1.114) 4,019
assets
TOTAL INTANGIBLE FIXED
ASSETS 35,909 (2,010) (1,114) 360 34,519

(*) Some of the amounts shown in this column do not correspond to those of the financial statements published as at 31/12/2020,
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as they reflect the valuations made at the time of the Purchase Price Allocation of HBG Events at final values.

Balance Changes in 2022 Balance
as at as at
31/12/2021 Amort./Deprec./ Exchange 2131/12/2022
Increases Decreases . Transfers
Impairm. rate effect Area
Industrial patent and
intellectual property rights
Book value 4,711 5,093
Accumulated amortisation (4,195) (4,571)
.Total industrial pat(?:nt and 515 502
intellectual property rights
Concessions, licenses,
trademarks and similar rights
Book value 11,861 12,333
Accumulated amortisation (4,179) (4,743)
Total conceSS|0n.s,.I|cer.13es, 7,682 7,500
trademarks and similar rights
Goodwill 22,112 25,686
Fixed assets under
construction and payments 190 644
on account
Other intangible fixed assets
Book value 10,524 10,709
Accumulated amortisation (6,505) (7,418)
Total other intangible fixed 4,019 (913) 143 3,202
assets
TOTAL INTANGIBLE FIXED
ASSETS 34,519 (1,834) 37,734

Under the item “Industrial patents and intellectual property rights”, the costs for the purchase of
software licences and legally protected intellectual property are capitalised. The balance at the end of the
period amounted to 0.5 million euros. The increases are mainly linked to the purchase of software licences
and consultancy activities activated to develop the digital platforms.

The item “Concessions, licences, trademarks and rights” increased by 0.3 million euros, mainly
relating to the purchase of the trademark Brasil Trading Fitness Fair. Amortisation comes to 0.6 million
and the change in the consolidation scope relates to the intangible assets acquired by the first
consolidation of the subsidiary V Group S.r.l.

“Assets under construction & payments on account” recorded a balance of 0.6 million euros and
relates to investments in the project to digitise the platforms called the “Rubicon Project”.

The item “Goodwill” includes the values generated by the surplus between the cost of the business
combinations and the fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired. At 31 December
2022, the balance of Goodwill came to approximately 25,686 thousand euros, up 3,573 thousand euros.

On 27 May 2022, the acquisition was completed of VGroup S.r.l., which generated provisional goodwill of
2,893 thousand euros, allocated to the CGU VGroup, which represents the subsidiary’s flows. On 08
October 2022, the Parent Company completed the purchase of the remaining 50% of the capital of
EAGLE, subsequently renamed IEG China: in this case too, the goodwill was allocated to the cash
generating unit represented by the subsidiary.

At the date of this document, the difference between the cost of both acquisitions and the related net
assets acquired was fully allocated to provisional goodwill; given that the Purchase Price Allocation phase




has still not been completed and given the events indicative of possible impairment of the net assets
acquired, as set forth in IAS 38, have not been verified, it was not necessary to test said goodwill for
impairment. A specific analysis of the fair value of the net assets acquired and the consideration
transferred will be carried out within twelve months of the acquisition. If, at the end of the measurement
period, tangible and intangible assets with a definite life are identified, the provisional amounts recorded
at the time of acquisition will be adjusted, with retroactive effect to the acquisition date.

In addition to the above-described increases and relating to new acquisitions, this item has changed as a
result of the change in the euro/dollar and euro/dirham exchange rates, with an impact of approximately
374 thousand euros. The following table shows the related details:

Euro/000 Balance as at Balar;i:e as
31/12/2022 31/12/2021
Goodwill emerging from the transfer of Fiera di Vicenza 7,948 7,948
Other goodwill 355 355
Goodwill emerging from the purchase of FB International Inc. 894 912
Goodwill emerging from the purchase of Pro.Stand S.r.I. and Colorcom S.r.l. 8,847 8,847
Goodwill emerging from the purchase of HBG Events 4,443 4,051
Provisional goodwill emerging from the purchase of V Group Srl 2,893 0
Goodwill (provisional) emerging from the purchase of IEG China 306 0
TOTAL GOODWILL 25,686 22,112

As outlined in the chapter relating to the “Measurement criteria”, goodwill, excluding that emerged from
the recent acquisitions indicated previously, is subject to impairment testing at the date of year-end (or
more frequently if there are indicators of impairment), using the methodology described in the paragraph
“Impairment of non-financial assets”. In particular, the impairment test verifies the recoverability of
goodwill by comparing the Net Capital Invested, including the value of the goodwill, of the CGU/group of
CGUs to which the goodwill was allocated, with the Recoverable value of said CGU/group of CGUs,
represented by the higher of the fair value, less disposal costs, and the value in use.

Goodwill emerging from the transfer of Fiera di Vicenza was allocated to the “IEG CGU” as the recipient
of the benefits of the business combination. These benefits refer to the acquired capacity to be recognised
on the market as an aggregator, the synergies deriving from the use and optimisation of the workforce
with the elimination of duplications, the sharing of mutual best practices, the comparison of the services
provided by the suppliers with price savings, the acquisition of specific expertise to grow on the foreign
market.

The goodwill that has emerged from the purchases of the fitting companies FB International Inc. and
Prostand S.r.I. has been allocated to the cash generating units called FB CGU and Italy CGU, which
respectively represent the flows of the financial statements of the US “stand-alone” subsidiary and those
mainly comprising the IEG CGU, the Pro.Stand CU and the Summertrade CGU. The flows generated by
HBG Events FZ LLC form the CGU called Emirates, to which the goodwill has been allocated as emerging
form the acquisition of the subsidiary.

For the IEG CGU, the FB CGU, the Emirates CGU and the Italy CGU, the relevant value in use was
determined by adopting the Group’s Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) methodology.

Unlevered free cash flows were determined by using the 2022- 2027 Business Plan approved by the
Board of Directors of IEG on 18 July 2022 and subsequently updated accordingly to the 2023 Budget
approved by the Board of Directors of IEG on 19 December 2022.

To determine the terminal value, a long-term “g” growth rate was used of 2%, common to all countries in
which the individual CGUs or groups of CGUs generate their flows, according to an estimation of expected
inflation forecast in such countries in 2027 by the International Monetary Fund.

The parameters for the discounting of the explicit cash flows and the Terminal Value were differentiated
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by country and, in particular a WACC rate of 11.68% used for flows produced by Italian entities, 11.41%
for the FB CGU and 11.93% for the Emirates CGU. In constructing all the WACCs, a Small Size Premium
of 3.00% was used, in consideration of the smaller size of the Group with respect to comparable
companies (Source: Duff & Phelps) while, compared with previous valuations, the Specific Risk Premium
of 1.00% that had been inserted during the pandemic years to take account of the “execution risk” resulting
from the reduced forecasting capacity generated by the effects of COVID-19, was eliminated.

The impairment tests carried out for all the CGUs described, at the reference date based on the methods
specified above, brought to light higher recoverable values than the book values of the net capital invested
(including goodwill), therefore excluding the need to reduce the value of the goodwill.

In support of the analysis, the company's Directors decided to further test the recoverable value of each
CGU and the groups of CGUs described above and two separate sensitivity analyses were conducted,
through which the WACC, the “g rate” and the estimates of the Operating Cash Flow were subject to
assumptions of change. More specifically:
e assumption 1: change in the WACC (+/- 1%) combined with the change in the g rate (+/- 0.4%)
e assumption 2: percentage change in operating cash flow (+/- 10%) combined with the change in
the WACC (+/- 1%)

The sensitivity analyses described herein did not bring to light any critical issues in terms of recoverability
of the goodwill booked in the consolidated financial statements. The parameters that, taken individually
or keeping all other elements constant, zero the cover are:

WACC g Reduction in cash flow
IEG CGU 15.7% -3.6% 81.4%
CGU ltalia 16.8% -5.5% 77.7%
FB CGU 20.2% -35.3% 67.0%
HBG CGU 18.9% -12.6% 71.5%

The assumptions used for impairment purposes and the results achieved, were approved by the Board of
Directors of Italian Exhibition Group S.P.A. respectively on 27 February 2023 and 16 March 2023,
independently and before these financial statements.

3) Equity investments valued using the equity method and other equity investments
Associated companies and jointly controlled companies, stated in the table below, are booked and

measured in compliance with IAS 28 or using the equity method. Movements in the period are detailed in
the following table.

Changes 2022

Balance

Exchange  Other as at
rate effect variations [SIEYAPAYY]

% held Balance

as at as at Write-.
31/12/2022 31/12/2021 Increases back/Write- Decreases

down

Associated companies

Cesena Fiera S.p.A. 35.30% 1,490 388 1,891
IGECO Srl 50.00% 5,127
CAST Alimenti S.r.l. 23.08% 1,467 59 1,526
TOTAL ASSOCIATED

COMPANIES 2,957 8,544

Jointly controlled
companies




Expo Estrategia Brasil Ltda 23 0
Destination Services srl 50.00% 42 36
Rimini Welcome Scarl 48.00% 16 15
EAGLE 100.00% 358 0
EECE 60.00% 279
TOTAL JOINTLY CONTROLLED
COMPANIES 440 330
TOTAL EQUITY
INVESTMENTS MEASURED

S S su 3,397 8,874

USING THE EQUITY
METHOD

The item in question as at 31 December 2022 came to 8,874 thousand, marking a net increase of 5,477
thousand euros.

The increases of 5,127 thousand euros relate to the acquisition of the shares relative to 50% of the capital
of IGECO S.r.l. - new joint venture with Hannover Fairs International Inc., whilst for 400 thousand euros,
they relate to the net value of write-backs and write-downs of equity investments applied according to the
equity method. The investment in Eagle has been eliminated from the companies under joint control
insofar as this Company was merged into the consolidation following the acquisition of the additional 50%
and the name change to IEG China. This merger meant that the Group has also acquired the investment
in the joint venture EECE for 279 thousand euros.

4) Equity investments in other companies

The movements in the period for the item in question are reported below.

Changes 2022
Balance

Write- as at
Increases backs/Write- Decreases Transfers EXYibIplery]

% held at Balance
31/12/2022 31/12/2021

downs
Uni Rimini S.p.A. 7.64% 62 62
Rimini Congressi S.r.l. 10.06% 10,770 (1,522) 9,248
Observice — Citta dei maestri 15 28
BCC Alto Vicentino <0.5% 1 1
BCC San Giorgio <0.5% 10 10
TOTAL EQUITY INVESTMENTS IN 10,858 (1,522) 9,349

OTHER COMPANIES

In December 2020, the incorporation took effect of Societa del Palazzo dei Congressi S.p.A: (in which
IEG has an investment) into Rimini Congress S.r.l. and IEG became the holder of 10.36% of the share
capital of Rimini Congressi S.r.l.

The equity investment in Rimini Congressi S.r.l. is measured at fair value (through OCI without recycling):
the write-down for the period, therefore, relates to the adjustment for the period.

At 31 December 2022, the group held:

- An equity investment in Uni.Rimini spa for 7.64%, consortium company with the aim of promoting
university training in Rimini.

- An equity investment in the consortium Observice Citta dei Maestri, a corporate academy
specialised in training for trade fair stand fittings through paths aiming to train highly specialised
professional figures. This equity investment was increased with a further payment of 13 thousand
euros in 2022.
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- Two small investments (each < 0.5%) in BCC San Giorgio and BCC Alto Vicentino, unchanged
on 31 December 2021.

5) Deferred tax assets

“Deferred tax assets” are recognised up to the limits in which future taxable income will be available
against which to utilise the temporary differences. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset given that
they refer to the same tax authority. During the period, no additional Deferred tax asset provisions have
been made on the reported loss booked for 2021 by the IEG Group.

Balance as at Balance as at
31/12/2022 31/12/2021
Credits for advance IRES/IRAP 8,464 9,478
Total deferred tax assets 8,464 9,478
Provision for deferred IRES (3,178) (2,742)

Total deferred tax liabilities (3,178) (2,742)
TOTAL DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 5,286 6,736

Net deferred tax assets relate to both the temporary differences between the book values of the assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding values recognised for tax purposes and
the losses from tax consolidation deemed recoverable based on company plans, whose materialisation
is subject to the intrinsic risk of non-implementation inherent in the provisions contained therein.
Management, with the support of its tax advisors, prepared an analysis based on the forecasts of the
2022-2027 Plan, approved by the Board of Directors on in July 2022, aimed at verifying the recoverability
of deferred tax assets. These analyses did not highlight any problems connected with the recoverability
of the prepaid tax booked in the financial statements, which, at the end of FY 2022, included prepaid tax
connected with tax losses of 3,404 thousand euros, whilst overall the Group had around 37 million euros
in tax losses recorded in the Covid period, which can be used for up to 80% against future annual taxable
income.

6) Non-current financial assets for rights of use
“Non-current financial assets for rights of use” amounting to 290 thousand euros refer to financial
receivables for active sub-leases of rights of use.

7) Non-current financial assets

The changes in the item in question are shown below.

Balance Changes in 2022 Balance as
as at - at
31/12/2021 Increases/ erte—. Exchange Transfers 31/12/2022
decreases backs/Write- rates effect
downs
Gambero Rosso shares 29 (4)
TFR policy 331 9
Receivables from jointly  controlled 159

companies




Derivative assets 0 1,945 1,945

TOTAL NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL 519 1,945 3,011
ASSETS

“Non-current financial assets” came to 3,011 thousand euros at 31 December 2022. The most significant
change is the shift in Derivative assets with positive values, which recorded 1,945 thousand euros at 31
December 2022. As regards receivables from jointly controlled companies, an increase is recorded of 619
thousand euros, as well as an exchange loss of 47 thousand euros.
The nature and classification according to the categories established by IFRS 9 of “Non-current financial
assets” is reported in the Fair value section of these Explanatory notes. For the measurement of the fair
value of the Gambero Rosso shares, the prices quoted on active markets at the measurement date were
used.
Fair value of derivative instruments, which was negative at 31 December 2021 for 3.6 million euros, was
positive at 31 December 2022 for 1.9 million euros and therefore recorded amongst Non-current financial
assets.
The derivative stipulated on 04 November 2011 with Banca Popolare di Vicenza, now Banca Intesa
Sanpaolo S.p.A., was stipulated in order to hedge the interest rate risk of part of the underlying loan and
makes provision for the swapping of the 6-month Euribor with a fixed rate of 2.95%. The amortisation plan
of the derivative perfectly matched, at the date of stipulation of the contract, the repayment plan of the
Intesa Sanpaolo loan and, for said reason, was initially classified as a hedge, also for accounting
purposes.
In 2014, the company Fiera di Vicenza, transferred to Rimini Fiera S.p.A. effective from November 1st,
2016 (which subsequently changed its company name to Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A.), altered the time-
scales for repayment of the loan with respect to the original repayment plan, extending the pre-
amortisation period. Consequently, the derivative, whose notional value was 60% of the loan subject to
hedging, albeit continuing to guarantee an operational hedge given that it follows the amortisation plan of
the loan until 31/12/2026, no longer possesses all the characteristics to qualify for hedge accounting. For
the reasons just stated, the derivative is classified as an instrument measured at fair value through profit
and loss of the Parent Company.
The final date of repayment of the Intesa Sanpaolo loan is set for 03 June 2036, around 10 years after
the hedge of the first derivative contract stipulated in 2011. For this reason, IEG’s Risk Management
department opted to stipulate a second derivative contract on the residual amount of the loan not subject
to the previous hedge, in order to mitigate potential fluctuation in the interest rate risk, with the following
characteristics:

e trading date: 07 December 2018;

o effective date: 29 June 2018;

e maturity date: 30 June 2036;

e interest payment dates: six-monthly, 31 December and 30 June of each year;

e total notional: EUR 9,635,397.46;

e fixed rate (pay IEG): 0.96400%;

o floating rate (receive IEG): Euribor 6M (Actual/360).

On 16 April 2020, a new loan agreement was entered into with the pool of banks headed up by Credit
Agricole for a total loan of 15 million euros, due on 30 June 2028. Following this agreement, four new IRS
contracts were executed for a partial cover of the debt, in the total nominal value of 10.5 million euros.
Information is provided below on the four contracts stipulated during the year, respectively with Credit
Agricole, BPER, BNL, Banco Popolare di Milano, which have the same characteristics:

e Trading date: 23 June 2020;

o Effective date: 31 December 2020;

e Maturity date: 18 April 2028;
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e Interest payment dates: six-monthly, 31 December and 30 June of each year;
e Total notional (of the four contracts): EUR 10,546,876;

e Fixed rate (pay IEG): -0.01%;

e Floating rate (receive IEG): Euribor 6M (Actual/360).

In addition, during the year, the subsidiary Summertrade, continuing on from the stipulation of the loan
contract with Credit Agricole, subscribed an IRS contract with the following characteristics:

e Trading date: 18 May 2021,

e Effective date: 18 May 2021;

e Maturity date: 19 May 2025;

e Interest payment date: quarterly aligned with the underlying;

e Total notional: EUR 1,500,000;

e Fixed rate (pay IEG): -0.01%;

e Floating rate (receive IEG): Euribor 6M (Actual/360).

The table below shows the impacts of the change in the fair value of the seven derivative instruments as
at 31 December 2022.

VALUATION DATE IRS Fair Financial income (charges) Change in
Value through profit and loss CFH reserve

31/12/2019 (5,228)

31/12/2020 (5,517) (179) (483)

31/12/2021 (3,583) 1,346 588

31/12/2022 1,945 3,328 2,200

8) Other non-current assets
“Other non-current assets” amounted to 271 thousand euros (142 thousand euros as at 31 December
2021), and refer primarily to security deposits.

CURRENT ASSETS

9) Inventories

Details are given below.

Balance as at Balance as at
31/12/2022 31/12/2021
Raw materials and consumables 446 323
Finished goods and goods for resale 406 408
TOTAL INVENTORIES 852 731

The item "Inventories" is composed of finished products and goods relating to the stand fitting company
Prostand S.r.l. and FB International Inc. and raw materials relating to the catering activities performed by
Summertrade S.r.l.. The balance at 31 December 2022 was 852 thousand euros, up 121 thousand euros




on the previous ear. The increase is explained by a resumption of business following forced closure

periods due to the Covid-19 pandemic.

10) Trade receivables

Balance as at

Balance as at

31/12/2022 31/12/2021
Receivables from customers 28,859 22,313
Receivables from associated companies 268 83
Receivables from jointly controlled companies 54 54
Receivables from parent companies 861 676
TOTAL TRADE RECEIVABLES 30,041 23,126

The item in question represents the balance of amounts due from organisers and exhibitors for services
relating to the provision of trade fair/conference spaces and the supply of event-related services and
increase due to the resumption of trade fair activities in 2022, following the block of activities in 2021 and
2020. For more information on the past due brackets, please refer to the section "Credit risk", while as
regards the estimate evaluations, please see the section "Use of estimates".

“Receivables from associated companies” totalled 268 thousand euros and refer primarily to trade
receivables due to the subsidiary Summertrade S.r.l. and to the Parent Company in respect of Cesena
Fiera S.p.A.. “Receivables from jointly controlled companies” include receivables of the Parent Company
due from the company DV Global Link LLC, while “Receivables from Parent Companies” shows the
portion due in respect of Rimini Congress S.r.l. by the Parent Company for Euro 837 thousand and the
receivable of 24 thousand in respect of Vicenza Holding S.p.A.

Receivables are stated net of the bad debt provision, whose changes are reported in the table below.

Changes in 2022

Balance as
at

Balance as at e R v
rovisi X n r.
31/12/2021 [T OvISIEXChange 1 - hsters a

ons difference Area 31/12/2022
Bad debt provision 989 (94) 1,652 5 2.739
Bad debt provision - taxed 4,727 (57) 978 2 5,505
TOTAL BAD DEBT
PROVISION 6,036 & 2,630 8,245

As regards the measurement of receivables, the provision for doubtful debt reflects the hypothesised
losses expected on the Group’s customer portfolio. Prudent provisions have been made, estimated on
the basis of past experience of receivables with similar credit risk levels and the careful monitoring by the
Group companies’ debt collection department, which also consider the historic and economic context of
the reference market. The estimates and assumptions, which are reviewed from time to time, are posted
directly on profit and loss in the year to which they pertain.

11) Tax receivables for direct taxes

Balance as at Balance as at

31/12/2022 31/12/2021
Tax receivables for direct taxes 468 352
TOTAL TAX RECEIVABLES FOR DIRECT TAXES 468 352

The balance at 31 December 2022, of 468 thousand euros, up 116 thousand euros on the previous period,
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refers to direct tax receivables due mainly to FB International Inc. and Prostand S.r.l.

12) Current financial assets for rights of use

“Current financial assets for rights of use” amounting to 197 thousand euros refer to financial receivables
for active sub-leases of rights of use.

13) Current financial assets

Balance as at Balance as at
31/12/2022 31/12/2021

Financial receivables from associated companies 93 48
Destination Services srl 85 45
DV Global Link LLC (9 3
Financial receivables due from Shareholders 0) 169
Receivables for capital payments to be made (0] 169
Short-term securities 43 44
USA Security Deposit 44
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS CURRENT 261

“Current financial assets” amounted to 137 thousand euros, a decrease of 124 thousand euros compared
to 31 December 2021.

14) Other current assets

Details are given below.

Balance as at Balance as at
31/12/2022 31/12/2021
Other tax receivables 504
Receivables due from others 1,949
Accrued income and prepaid expenses 1,150
Costs paid in advance pertaining to subsequent years 2,071
TOTAL OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 5,674

Other current assets amounted to 6.9 million euros at 31 December 2022, a rise of 1.2 million euros
compared to the previous period.

“Prepaid expenses” refer to portions of costs not pertaining exclusively to 2022, which have already been
recorded in the accounts. “Accrued income” refers to revenues pertaining to the period which will be
recorded in the accounts in a subsequent period. In all, the item came to 1.2 million euros at 31 December
2022, essentially unchanged on the same period of last year.

The costs already incurred for the staging of trade fairs that will be held in the next few months, and
therefore fully pertaining to subsequent years, were accounted as “Costs advanced pertaining to
subsequent years”. This item amounted to 3.1 million euros at 31 December 2022, up 1 million euros
compared to the 31 December 2021. The increase lies in the normal resumption of activities with respect
to the previous period.

“Other tax receivables”, which totalled 1.2 million euros at 31 December 2022, represent VAT credits to




be used for offsetting.

Below are details of “Other receivables”:

Balance as at Balance as at
31/12/2021 31/12/2021
Down payments 19 18
Suppliers - advances 1,040 1,265
Trade receivables 90 63
Receivables due from employees 29 58
Receivables due from social security institutions ] 87
Agents - advances a7 a7
Sundry receivables 411
TOTAL Receivables due from others 1,949

15) cCash and cash equivalents

The item “Cash and cash equivalents” amounted to 50,586 thousand euros as at 31 December 2022, and
includes almost exclusively short-term deposits remunerated at floating rate.

The trend in cash flows with respect to the previous year has been reported in the “Consolidated Cash
Flow Statement” to which reference should be made.
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COMMENTS ON THE MAIN ITEMS OF LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

16) Shareholders’ equity

Balance as at

31/12/2020
®) Increases

Changes in 2021
Allocation

Balance as

Period at

Decreases 31/12/2021

Share capital 52,215
Share-premium reserve 13,947
Revaluation reserves 67,160
Legal reserve 10,401
Statutory reserves 2,531
Capital grants 5,878
First-time adoption reserve (46,306)
CFH reserve (784)
Actuarial reserve (499)
Translation reserve (107)
OCl reserve 339
Put option reserve (9,967)
Retained earnings (losses carried forward) 8,781
Profit (loss) for the year (11,289)
SHAREHOLDERS’ NET ASSETS OF THE 92 301
PARENT COMPANY '
Capital and reserves pertaining to minority 1923
interests '
First-time adoption reserve of minority interests 8
Actuarial reserve of minority interests (20)
Profit (loss) attributable to minority interests (1,160)
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY PERTAINING TO 752
MINORITY INTERESTS

TOTAL GROUP SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 93,052

1,230

result

of profit

52,215
13,947
67,160
10,401

2,531
5,878
(46,306)
(337)
(520)
283
135
(9,967)
(2,507)
1,638

(11,289)
11,289

0 94,550

(231) 93,378

(*) Some of the amounts shown in this column do not correspond to those of the financial statements published as at 31/12/2020,
as they reflect the valuations made at the time of the Purchase Price Allocation of HBG Events at final values.

Changes in 2022 Balance as
Balance as at

31/12/2021
Share capital 52,215
Share-premium reserve 13,947
Revaluation reserves 67,160
Legal reserve 10,401
Statutory reserves 2,531
Restricted reserve from consolidation
Capital grants 5,878
First-time adoption reserve (46,306)
CFH reserve (337)
Actuarial reserve (520)
Translation reserve 283
OCl reserve 135
Put option reserve (9,967)
Retained earnings (losses carried forward) (2,507)
Profit (loss) for the year 1,638
SHAREHOLDERS’ NET ASSETS OF THE 94.550

Increases

2,641

Period at
result 31/12/2022
(105) 52,110
(22) 13,924
67,160
10,443
2,540
20
5,878
(46,306)
1,334
(12
730
(1,387)
(9,967)
(938)
772

Allocation

Decreases .
of profit

(1,649)

96,301




PARENT COMPANY

Capital and reserves pertaining to minority

interests 1157 (638)
First-time adoption reserve of minority interests 8 8
Actuarial reserve of minority interests (25) 19)
Profit (loss) attributable to minority interests (2,311) (1,546) (1,546)
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY PERTAINING TO

MINORITY INTERESTS (1.172) o2l (2.199)
TOTAL GROUP SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 93,378 3,162 (1,649) 94,106

The total shareholders’ equity of the Group as at 31 December 2022 totalled 94.1 million euros, of which
96.3 million euros attributable to the shareholders of the Parent Company and -2.2 million euros
attributable to minority interests.

The Parent Company’s Share Capital, fully subscribed and paid-up, amounted to 52.1 million euros and
is divided into 30,864,197 shares.

As of 31 December 2022, the Parent Company holds 64,000 treasury shares, equal to 0.21% of the share
capital.

No dividends were distributed to shareholders of the Parent Company during the year.

Minority capital reduced by 1.0 million euros, due to the negative period results mainly obtained by the
subsidiaries FB International Inc. and Summertrade Srl.

The table below analyses the reconciliation between the shareholders’ equity and the profit for the year
of the Parent Company with those of the consolidated financial statements.

Shareholders’
equity (including  Profit for the year
the result for the
year)

Shareholders’ equity and result of the Parent company

Group Companies valued with the Equity Method 196 175

Elimination of book value of consolidated companies

- Difference between the book value and the pro-rata value of shareholders’ (21,380) 0
equity

- Pro-rata results of the investees (11,995) (2,104)
- Value adjustments of the net assets of the investees (4,008) 223

- Consolidation difference 16,776 0

Elimination of the effects of intercompany transactions

Elimination of business combinations of entities under common control 9,178 (34)

Shareholders' equity and result pertaining to the Group

Share pertaining to minority interests (2,195) (1,546)

Consolidated shareholders’ equity and result for the year 94,106 (774)

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is presented in the following table:

(in Euro) 2022 2021
Basic EPS 0.0251 0.0531
Diluted

EPS 0.0251 0.0531

The calculation is based on the following data:
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(in Euro) 2022 2021
Period result 772,169 1,638,320
Number of shares outstanding 30,800,197 30,864,197

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
17) Payables due to banks

The group’s bank debt at 31 December 2022 was 103 million euros, down by approximately 11 million
euros on last year (114 million at 31 December 2021) as a consequence of the repayment of the
instalments envisaged on the amortisation plans. Note that at 31 December 2022, the group did not use
short-term credit facilities and overdrafts; the item Other short-term payables includes exposure for credit
card use.

Following are details about the Payables due to banks in the short and long term and beyond 5 years.

Balance as at Balance as at
31/12/2022 31/12/2021
Cla debit balances - -
Other short-term payables 188 2,676
Credit Agricole mortgage - POOL 10,196 12,027
Banco BPM mortgage - 1,128
Volksbank mortgage 1,192 2,019
Banca Intesa Sanpaolo (former Banca Popolare di Vicenza) 1,733 1,676
mortgage
ICCREA mortgage 540 1,205
Unipol mortgage 113 334
MPS mortgage 497 451
Malatestiana mortgage PASK] 145
Banca Popolare Valconca mortgage 257 251
Credit Agricole mortgage 491 246
Loan - Cassa Depositi e Prestiti - SACE 937 -
Loan - Intesa San Paolo — SACE 2,051 -

TOTAL SHORT-TERM PAYABLES DUE TO BANKS 18,488 22,157

OIANIH 6 IIEES Balance as
Balance as at

beyond 5 at
si/falz0z2 years 31/12/2021

Banca Intesa Sanpaolo (former Banca Popolare di Vicenza) mortgage 27,578 19,978 29,311
Volksbank mortgage 1,192
ICCREA mortgage -
Unipol mortgage 113
MPS mortgage 1,545
Malatestiana mortgage 1,352
Credit Agricole mortgage 1,249
Banca Popolare Valconca mortgage 345
Loan - Cassa Depositi e Prestiti - SACE 15,000
Loan - Intesa San Paolo — SACE 32,812
SIMEST loan - Trade fair entities 9,352
Other loans 6
TOTAL MEDIUM/LONG-TERM PAYABLES DUE TO BANKS 92,277

Below is the IEG Group’s comprehensive net financial position defined by the new ESMA guidelines of
04 March 2021.




IEG Group
Net financial position (based on the ESMA format)

Net financial position (Euro/000) Balance as
Balance as at at
Sifi2/2022 31/12/2021
A. Cash and cash equivalents 50,586 52,651
B. Cash equivalents s -
C. Other current financial assets 137 290
D. Liquidity: (A) + (B) + (C) 50,723 52,941
E. Current financial payables (10,272) (10,723)
F. Current portion of non-current financial debt (18,301) (19,480)
G. Current financial debt: (E) + (F) (28,573) (30,203)
H. Current net financial indebtedness: (G + D) 22,150 22,738
l. Non-current financial liabilities (114,073) (115,815)
J. Debt instruments 2 -
K. Trade payables and other non-current payables (3,431) (12,523)
L. Non-current financial debt: (1) + (J) + (K) (117,504) (128,338)
M. Total financial debt: (H) + (L) (95,354) (105,600)

Net financial position as defined by the new ESMA Guidelines of 04 March 2021 (Consob warning notice no. 5/21 to Consob
Communication)

The Net Financial Position (hereinafter NFP) at 31 December 2022 amounted to 95.4 million euros, a
decrease of net indebtedness for 10.2 million euros compared to 31 December 2021.

“Liquid funds” for 50.7 million euros includes for the most part the Group’s liquid funds at 31 December
2022. The change with respect to the previous period shows a decrease in liquid funds for 2.2 million
euros. For more details on the breakdown of cash changes, reference is made to the statement of cash
flows.

Current financial debt is 28.6 million euros, down 1.6 million euros on 2021. This category includes 18.3
million euros on loans due in the short-term, down 1.1 million euros on 2021. This category also includes
current payables for rights of use for 4.8 million euros and financial payables for put options for the
totalitarian purchase relative to the 20% of the subsidiary Prostand S.r.l., of 2.5 million, as well as short-
term financial payables relative to the measurement of the variable price portion to be paid after the
purchase of the subsidiary HBG Eventz LLC for an amount equal to 2.4 million euros.

The category “Non-current financial indebtedness” is worth 117.5 million euros, down 10.8 million euros
on the previous year. This category includes financial payables for 84.8 million euros relative to non-
current portions of loans stipulated by the various Group companies, 29.5 million euros relative to non-
current financial payables for rights of use and 4.5 million euros relative to non-current financial payables
for put options.

The balance of the consolidated net financial position comes under the basis for calculating some financial
covenants to which the Parent Company is contractually bound.

Parameter per Year 2025

Bank
year and later

Intesa SanPaolo SpA NFP/EBITDA <3.0
Cassa Depositi e Prestiti NFP/EBITDA <=8.5 <=5.0 <=3.0 <=3.0
SpA

Cassa Depositi e Prestiti NFP/SE <=2.0 <=1.8 <=15 <=1.1
SpA
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| Credit Agricole Italia SpA NFP/EBITDA <=3.5 <=3.0 <=3.0 | <=3.0

Intesa SanPaolo requests the first verification at the Calculation Date of 31 December 2023
(NFP/EBITDA), while the Cassa Depositi e Prestiti Group at 31 December 2022 (NFP/EBITDA and
NFP/SE).

The annual measurement at 31 December 2022 revealed that the covenants linked to the loans stipulated
with Cassa Depositi e Prestiti had been respected.

It should instead be noted that the consolidated results achieved in 2022 involved the verification of the
covenant breach in relation to the NFP/EBITDA ratio (covenant <3.5) at the end of the year identified in
the loan agreement stipulated by the Parent Company with Credit Agricole Italia Spa (Pool Agent Bank).
On 5 December, the Parent Company asked that the application of the covenant be suspended for FY
2022; this request was granted on 10 March 2023. However, in compliance with the provisions of IAS 10,
the loan payables of approximately 10 million euros were classified entirely as short-term.

We also report the present, and respect at 31 December 2022, of financial covenants for which the
subsidiary Pro.Stand S.r.I. has made a commitment to ICCREA Banca; details are given below. These
parameters are to be calculated on the financial statements of the subsidiary and are respected at 31
December 2022.

Parameter per year 2022 2023

NFD/EBITDA <3.5 <3.5

NFD/SE <2.0 <2.0

18) Non-current financial liabilities for rights of use
The balance of 29.5 million euros represents the non-current portion of liabilities recognised for lease fees
still not paid at the close of the half, in compliance with the introduction of accounting standard IFRS 16

on 1 January 2019. It should be noted that the item includes 12.6 million euros relating to the parent
company Rimini Congressi S.r.l. for the rental contract on the Rimini Palacongressi.

19) Other non-current financial liabilities

Details are given below.

Balance as at Balance as at
EEW:E 31/12/2021

Fair value of derivative instruments 3,583
Financial liabilities for Pro.Stand put option 2,413
Financial liabilities for FB International Inc. put option 3,299
Financial liabilities for minimum guarantee amounts to minority shareholders of Pro.Stand 42
Financial liabilities for the purchase of HBG - estimated variable 1,923
Financial liabilities for the purchase of IGECO - estimated variable -
Payables due to other lenders 1,263
TOTAL OTHER LIABILITIES FIN. NON-CURRENT 12,523

Other non-current liabilities at 31 December totalled 5.3 million euros, down 7.2 million euros on 31
December 2021.




The reduction is mainly due to the reversal of sign of the fair value of derivatives, thus recorded amongst
non-current financial assets and to the allocation to current financial liabilities of the put option liabilities.

The items “Financial liabilities for put options” relate to the valuation, at the moment of the acquisition of
the equity investment, increased as necessary due to the financial charges for the period, in the sale
options granted to the minority shareholder of FB International Inc. and the minority shareholders of
Pro.Stand S.r.l..

The financial liability for the Pro.Stand put option and the financial liability for the portion of variable price
relative to the purchase of the subsidiary HBG Eventz LLC were moved to “Other current financial
liabilities” insofar as they will be settled in 2023.

"Financial liability for the estimated variable purchase of IGECO” is the portion of the variable price
estimated to complete purchase of 50% of the Joint Venture IGECO S.r.I. on 11 October 2022. The portion
to be disbursed beyond the year is correlated with the Company’s performance and that of its subsidiaries
from 2022 to 2026.

“Payables due to other lenders beyond 12 months” includes the balance of the Government Small
Business Loan disbursed starting end FY 2020 for the Covid-19 emergency, in the favour of FB
International Inc. for an initial amount of 1,130 thousand euros and the Economic Injury Disaster loan
obtained in 2021, by the US subsidiary for an amount of 132 thousand euros. During the year, the
subsidiary FB benefited from the booking as grant of a portion of the premium for an amount of
approximately 626 thousand euros, hence the residual balance of the Government Small Business Loan
is 636 thousand euros at 31 December 2022.

20) Provisions for non-current risks and charges

The changes in the item in question are shown below.

Changes 2022

Balance Balance
. Exchange
as at Provisions Uses/decreases Releases difference as at
31/12/2021 31/12/2022

Provision for dispute risks 1,766 500 (116) (61) (0] 2,089
Other provisions for risks 64 19 1) 0] ] 85
TOTAL PROVISIONS FOR RISKS

1,830 (117) (61) 3 2,174

AND CHARGES

Provisions for risks and charges amounted to 2,174 thousand euros at 31 December 2022, a rise of 292
thousand euros compared to the previous year. The increases mainly refer to the provision made for
dispute risks by the Parent Company in respect of possible tax litigation and the related accessory cost
for the Group’s legal defence.

21) Employee provisions

The changes in the item in question are shown below.

Balance Changes in 2022

as at
31/12/202
1

Balance as
Actuarial at

Provisions  Uses/decreases (Gains)/Loss EINapIpirys
es
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Provision for customers’ leaving indemnities 94 108
Provision for employee severance indemnity 3,660 2,850
TOTAL EMPLOYEE PROVISIONS 3,754 2,959

The balance is composed primarily of employee severance indemnity accrued during the lockout period.
By contrast, for a total of 108 thousand euros, it is composed of the “Provision for agents’ leaving
indemnities” allocated in compliance with article 1751 of the Italian Civil Code and the collective economic
agreement for the regulation of the agency and commercial representation relationship of the commerce
sector signed on 16 February 2009.

The value of the provision for employee severance indemnity at the end of the year conforms to the
amount due to personnel and the allocation was calculated in respect of the laws, the company
employment contract and, for matters not provided for, the C.C.N.L. (national collective labour agreement)
for the trade sector. It should also be pointed out that, following the supplementary pension reform (ltalian
Legislative Decree no. 252/2005; Italian Law no. 296/2006, article 1, paragraphs 755 et seq and
paragraph 765), the amount indicated in the column “Provisions” does not include the sums paid to forms
of supplementary pension or to the “INPS Treasury Fund”.

The IEG Group, in determining the actuarial calculations, avalils itself of the support of a professional listed

in the appropriate Register of Actuaries. The main hypotheses/assumptions used for the actuarial
calculation of the defined benefit plans are shown below.

Demographic assumptions

Probability of death Mortality tables broken down by gender - ISTAT 2015

Probability of disability Zero probability (in consideration of the type of company under analysis)
Probability of resignations The probability of company turnover of 3% was used

Probability of anticipation An annual value of 3% was presumed with respect to an average value of

accumulated employee severance indemnity of 70%

Economic-financial assumptions for calculation of the TFR (employee
severance indemnity)

2022 2021
Annual discount rate 3.77% 0.98%
Annual inflation rate 2.73% 1.75%
Assumption of real salary growth 2.73% 1.75%

The discounting of future services for employees deriving from Employee severance indemnity was
measured by recognising market yields according to the provisions of IAS 19. For the discount rate, the
rate relating to high credit rating Corporate Bonds AA with a duration equal to the plan of company
commitments to its employees was taken as a reference.

The results of the actuarial evaluations depend strictly on the financial, demographic and behavioural
assumptions adopted.

The following table, as required by the international accounting standard, shows the results of the DBO
deriving from the change in assumptions.




Sensitivity Analysis — DBO IEG CS;;(XJp Prostand Srl Summer;rrzlide TOTAL V;:'
Central Assumption 1,877 702 221 2,799
Discount rate (+0.5%) 1,799 665 212 2,676 -4.40%
Discount rate (-0.5%) 1,960 742 229 2,931 4.72%
Rate of payments Increases (+0.5%) 1,882 705 221 2,808 0.34%
Rate of payments Decreases (-0.5%) 1,870 698 220 2,789 -0.36%
Rate of Price Inflation Increases (+0.5%) 1,928 731 226 2,885 3.09%
Rate of Price Inflation Decreases (-0.5%) 1,827 674 215 2,716 -2.95%
Rate of Salary Increases (+0.5%) 1,877 714 221 2,811 0.44%
Rate of Salary Decreases (-0.5%) 1,877 690 221 2,787 -0.41%
Increase the retirement age (+1 year) 1,866 700 219 2,785 -0.50%
Decrease the retirement age (-1 year) 1,888 704 222 2,814 0.55%
Increase longevity (+1 year) 1,877 702 221 2,799 -0.00%
Decrease longevity (-1 year) 1,877 702 221 2,799 0.00%
Assumptions of the previous year 2,287 912 262 3,461 23.67%
Economic assumpt. of the previous and 2,287 912 262 3,461 23.67%
new demographic assumpt.

22) Other non-current liabilities

The item “Other non-current liabilities” includes the amount of the grant disbursed by the Emilia-Romagna
Region for the construction of the Rimini Trade Fair District, still not booked to the income statement,
amounting to 1,718 thousand euros (1,913 thousand euros as at 31 December 2021).
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CURRENT LIABILITIES

23) Current financial liabilities for rights of use
The item includes current financial liabilities relative to the application of IFRS 16, in the amount of
4,779 thousand euros, up 1,433 thousand euros on the previous year. It should be noted that the item

included a total of 1,001 thousand euros relating to the parent company Rimini Congressi S.r.l., which
took over the leases in place previously with Societa del Palazzo S.p.A.

24) Other current financial liabilities

The table shows a breakdown of the item in question:

Balance as at Balance as at
31/12/2022 31/12/2021

Accrued expenses on mortgages 50
Payables due to shareholders 304
Payables for exercise of put options - Prostand 535
Current financial payables for the variable portion of the purchase of HBG Eventz 0
LLC

Payables due to other lenders within 12 months 7 3,995
TOTAL OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 4,884

Accrued expenses relate to amounts of interest expense on mortgages pertaining to this year

and debited the following year.

“Payables due to shareholders” amounted to 645 thousand euros and related to payables due to the
minority shareholder of FB International Inc., which, in accordance with the Parent company, has
subscribed to a loan in the company’s favour.

“Payables for exercise of put options - Prostand” of 2,449 thousand euros refer to the purchase of the
additional 20% of the share capital of the subsidiary Prostand S.r.l. by the parent company, to be settled
in 2023.

The item "Current financial payables for the variable portion of the purchase of HBG Eventz LLC"
represents the variable portion of the price estimated to be disbursed to the selling shareholders for the
acquisition of the new subsidiary HBG Events FZ LLC, which took place on 31 October 2020. Such portion
to be disbursed is correlated with the performance of the Dubai Muscle Show, held in November 2022.




25) Trade payables

The details of the item in question are provided below.

Balance as at Balance as at
31/12/2022 31/12/2021
Trade payables 42,767 33,751
Vehicle ownership tax 16 71
Membership fees and contributions 8 3
Payables to other related parties 16 0
TOTAL TRADE PAYABLES 42,807 33,825

Trade payables refer, for the most part, to purchases of the services needed for the staging of trade fairs
and increase as a result of the resumption of core business. Trade payables are recorded on an accruals
basis when the service has been received, the goods production process has been completed and
ownership has essentially been transferred of the goods sold. Payables due to associated companies
relate, for 10 thousand euros, to Cesena Fiera S.p.A. and, for 6 thousand euros, to CAST Alimenti S.r.l.;
payables due to joint ventures refer to DV Global Link LLC and the remainder, for an additional 16
thousand euros, to other related parties.

26) Tax payables for direct taxes

Balance as at Balance as at
Tax payables 438 19
TOTAL TRADE PAYABLES 438

19

“Tax payables for direct taxes” reported a debt of 438 thousand euros in 2022, of which 398 thousand
euros for the IRAP payable.

27) Other current liabilities

The details of the item in question are provided below.

Balance as at Balance as at

31/12/2021 31/12/2021
Advance payments 8,670 4,384
Payables due to social security institutions Soc. 1,382 1,281
Other payables 7,215 5,044
Accrued expenses and deferred income 911 704
Revenues paid in advance pertaining to subsequent years 32,393 21,373
Other tax payables 1,671 3,486

TOTAL OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 52,242 36,272

The item recorded an increase of 16 million euros compared to the previous year, primarily relating to the
item 'Revenues paid in advance pertaining to subsequent years and Advances'.

“Revenues paid in advance pertaining to subsequent years” include revenues billed in the year, but
relating to events pertaining to subsequent years. During the last quarter of 2022, invoices were issued
for SIGEP 2023 and Vicenza Oro January 2023, important events pertaining to January 2023, whilst the
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values recorded at 31 December 2021, both as regards the item in question and the item “Advances”
suffered the postponement of two events from the original dates to March.

“Advances” is divided up between the subsidiary Prostand S.r.l. for 1,308 thousand euros and the
subsidiary FB International for 1,684 thousand euros, V Group for 720 thousand euros, the parent
company for 4,750 thousand euros and, to a residual extent, the Brazilian subsidiary.

“Other payables” mainly include payables to employees such as accrued holidays, leave, ‘hour bank’,
deferred monthly pay and other payables accrued and still not enjoyed or paid to personnel, fees accrued
and not paid to statutory bodies.




COMMENTS ON MAIN ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
28) Revenues from contracts with customers

The following table shows the breakdown of revenues by business type:

Balance as at Balance as at
31/12/2022 31/12/2021

Organised Events 85,057 37,381
Hosted Events 3,148 2,096
Conferences 14,767 6,882
Related Services 50,330 22,358
Publishing, Sporting Events and Other Activities 2,730 2,459

REVENUES FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 156,032 71,177

Revenue from contracts with customers came to 156,032 thousand euros as at 31 December 2022, up
84,856 thousand euros on last year. The increase is due to the resumption of normal trade fair and
congress activities in 2022 compared with 2021, the year characterised by government rulings that
significantly reduced the Group’s activities.

As regards the analysis of the trend in revenues in 2022 and the comparison with the data in the previous
year, please refer to the information already outlined in the Directors’ Report on Operations, where the
variation is analysed by breaking it down into the various components that generated it.

29) Other revenues

“Other revenues and income” are detailed as follows:

Balance as at Balance as at
31/12/2022 31/12/2021
Covid contributions 690 28,199
Other operating grants 1,764 779

Other revenues and income 3,454 2,349
TOTAL OTHER REVENUES 5,908 31,327

Other revenues came to 5,908 thousand euros at 31 December 2022, compared with 31,327 thousand
euros at 31 December 2021. The decline of 25,418 thousand euros is mainly due to the fact that in 2021,
the Company benefited from Covid contributions of 28,199 thousand euros, which were not reproposed
in 2022 by Italian Government thanks to the resumption of economic activities, post-pandemic.

“Other operating grants” mainly related to ICE contributions received by the parent company in 2022 and
to promotional activities.

The item “Other revenues and income” came to 3,454 thousand euros, up 1,105 thousand euros on the
previous period and includes mostly accessory trade fair income, but falling under the ordinary activities
of the IEG Group, for example revenues from concessions, costs pertaining to third parties relating to
events managed in collaboration with other parties, income from publications and subscriptions and other
minor revenues.
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30) Operating costs

Operating costs amounted to Euro 146.1 million (Euro 80.9 million as at 31 December 2021) and are
detailed as follows:

EEIEQEESEIEE Balance as at

31/12/2022 31/12/2021
Costs for raw materials, consumables and goods for resale (14,661) (7,537)
Costs of services (88,128) (43,569)
For use of third-party assets (370) (596)
For personnel (38,102) (27,003)
Wages and salaries (26,961) (18,929)
Social security costs (7,151) (5,242)
Employee severance indemnity (1,730) (1,493)
Other costs (647) (323)
Directors’ fees (1,613) (1,016)

Change in inventories 19 (53)
Other operating costs (4,871) (2,134)

TOTAL OPERATING COSTS m (80,892)

Operating costs of 146.1 million euros at 31 December 2022 rose by 65.2 million euros (+80.6%) on the
previous period. The increase is fairly generalised and does not refer to any particular item but rather is
due to the “recovery” effect following FYs 2020 and 2021, which were considerably impacted by the effects
of the Covid-19 pandemic on the business. Indeed, in order to limit the spread of the virus, again during
the first quarter of 2021, the government authorities took precautionary measures which had a significant
impact on the Groups business, in particular all the trade fair districts and the congress centre, were
closed.

Costs of services include a non-recurring charge of 3.0 million euros relative to design costs, noted
amongst Fixed assets under construction during previous years, the project to extend and requalify the
Rimini district that envisaged the development of a large circular, multi-purpose hall measuring around
117,000 square metres in display space. During the presentation and approval of the new Business Plan
through to 2027, the Board of Directors expressed a desire to abandon this project, in the favour of less
onerous solutions.

During the year, write-downs were also noted of receivables considered to be unable to collect, in the
amount of 2.7 million euros.

The table below provides details of the main costs included in the item “Other operating costs”.

Balance as at Balance as at
31/12/2022 31/12/2021
Municipal taxes (non-income based taxes) (2,150) (1,038)
Membership fees and contributions (312) (443)
Capital losses from fixed asset disposal (16) (41)
Other operating expenses (724) (612)

Receivable depreciation (2,669) 0

TOTAL OTHER OPERATING COSTS (4,871) (2,134)




31) Amortisation, depreciation and impairment

Balance as at Balance as at

31/12/2022 31/12/2021

Amortisation of intangible fixed assets (1,834) (2,010)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (13,432) (13,231)
Write-downs of fixed assets (42) (1,428)
Provision for risks (457) (485)

Value adjustments of financial assets other than equity investments (28) (1,603)

TOTAL AMORTISATION, DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT (15,793) (18,757)

Amortisation, depreciation and impairment came to 15.8 million euros at 31 December 2022, down 3.0
million on the previous period. The change mainly relates to the item “Write-downs of fixed assets”, which
at 31 December 2021 included the value entered in respect of the work to redo the roof of Pavilion 7 at
the Vicenza trade fair district, which entailed the write-off of the net carrying amount originally entered for
this portion of property and the impairment of the receivable due from the shareholder Vicenza Holding
S.p.A., for an amount equal to 1.1 million euros, in connection with the bankruptcy procedure of Biblioteca
della Moda S.r.l..

32) Financial income and expense

Financial income and expense are noted on the income statement in the year in which they are incurred,
as per accruals accounting.

It is also specified that following application of the accounting standard IFRS 16, financial expense on
lease contracts have also been noted under this item.

Specifically, interest income and interest expense, of any source, have been entered at the value accrued
during the year, net of any deferrals.

Details of “Financial income” are reported below:

Balance as at Balance as at
31/12/2022 31/12/2021

From securities in Current assets other than equity investments 26 36
Interest income on bank deposits 26 1
Actuarial value of the TFR provision
IRS positive differential
Other sundry financial income
Income other than the above
TOTAL FINANCIAL INCOME

Financial income totals 3.6 million euros, mainly due to the fair value measurement of the hedging
derivative, solely for management purposes, contracted by the Parent Company with former Banca
Popolare di Vicenza (now Banca Intesa San Paolo), between 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022.

Details of the item “Interest and financial charges” are provided below:

10C



Balance as at Balance as at

31/12/2022 31/12/2021
Interest expense on payables due to banks (1,605) (1,565)
Other interest expense and charges (104) (201)
Negative differences of swaps (CZ)) (1,044)
IRS negative differential - 1,346
Financial charges on put options and earn-out (€9) (1,485)
Actuarial value of the TFR provision - (35)

Interest expense on rights of use - IFRS 16 (523) (511)

TOTAL INTEREST AND FINANCIAL CHARGES (3,119) (3,495)

Financial charges encumber almost exclusively Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A., which acts as the treasury
for several of the Group’s operating companies, and relate to mortgages taken out and the temporary use
of short-term credit facilities.

Bank interest expense, which totalled 1,605 thousand euros, concern almost entirely the loans stipulated
by the Group and, to a residual extent, the cost for the use of the short-term facilities available to it.

It should be noted that, as a result of the application of IFRS 16 - Leases, the company recognised interest
expense totalling 523 thousand euros.

The “IRS Differential” represents the change in the fair value of the derivative, solely for management
purposes, contracted by the Parent Company with former Banca Popolare di Vicenza (now Banca Intesa
San Paolo), between 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022 and has been recorded amongst
financial income insofar as the differential is positive at 31 December 2022.

The “Negative differences of swaps”, which came to 849 thousand euros, refers to the interest paid by
the Group in respect of the variables of the underlyings. In detail, the Parent company pays Intesa
SanPaolo the fixed rate of the above contract and the second subscribed in 2018, in addition, in 2021,
the negative differences of swaps were noted, and added here, on the interest paid to the four banks of
the pool loan (Bper, Banco BPM, BNL and Credit Agricole).

Exchange gains and losses result in a net loss for the Group of 327 thousand euros.

33) Gains and losses from equity investments

Equity investments in associated companies were measured using the equity method. The other equity
investments are booked at cost and are written down in the event of a significant and prolonged reduction
in the fair value with respect to the cost of recognition.

For more information, please refer to the previous comments on financial fixed assets.

Balance as Balance as

at at

31/12/2022  ERIVEWIPIPAN
Cesena Fiera S.p.a. 388
Destination Service (6)
Rimini Welcome S.c.a.r.l. 1)
C.A.S.T. Alimenti Srl 59
Expo Estrategia Brasil Eventos e Producoes Ltda (26)
IEG China (formerly Eagle) (26)
Fitness Festival International S.r.l. (in liquidation) (0]

TOTAL GAINS/LOSSES FROM EQUITY INVESTMENTS 388




34) Taxation

Period income tax totalled 1,345 thousand euros, down 1,713 thousand euros on 31 December 2021,

where the tax represented income of 368 thousand euros.

Current tax was present for 581 thousand euros and tax relative to previous years for 3 thousand euros.
Prepaid/deferred tax contributed a cost on the statements for 761 thousand euros.
Deferred tax liabilities have been calculated according to the global allocation approach, taking into
account the cumulative amount of all temporary taxable differences, based on the expected average rates

in force when these temporary differences are offset.

Deferred tax assets were recorded given there is reasonable certainty as to the existence, in the years in
which the temporary deductible differences will carry forward, in respect of which prepaid taxes were

recognised, of a taxable income not lower than the amount of the differences that will be cancelled.

Temporary
differences

Deferred tax assets:

Bad debt provision

Provisions for risks and charges

Agents’ leaving indemnities

Taxes for previous losses

Membership fees paid in subsequent year
Emoluments of statutory bodies not paid in the year
Amortisation/depreciation not deductible in the year
Asset impairment

Photovoltaic prepaid amounts

Statutory/fiscal misalignment on revaluation of land
Value adjustments of equity investments

Fair value of derivatives

Service cost and interest cost components

IFRS16

Exchange differences and other

Tax losses that can be carried forward

Total deferred tax assets charged to Income
Statement

Tax effect on “Actuarial Gain & Losses” component of
actuarial calculation of Employee benefits

Effect of cash flow hedge derivatives
IFRS16

Total deferred tax assets charged to Shareholders'
equity

Deferred tax liabilities:

Statutory/fiscal misalignment on revaluation of land
Amortised cost - loans

Recognised of deferred tax liabilities on PPA
Exchange differences

Total deferred tax liabilities charged to Income
Statement

Statutory/fiscal misalignment on revaluation of land
Effect of cash flow hedge derivatives

Rate

24.00%
27.90%
27.90%
24.00%
24.00%
24.00%
25.48%
24.37%
27.90%
27.90%
n.a.
n.a.
24.00%
27.90%
24.00%
24.00%

24.00%

n.a.
23.32%

27.90%
24.00%
27.90%
24.00%

27.90%
24.00%

Tax
effect

2021

Temporary Tax
differences Rate effect
6,417 24.00% 1,540
1,287 24.24% 312
100 28.00% 28
78 24.00% 19
10 24.00% 2
144 24.00% 35
3,489 25.63% 951
817 27.90% 208
1,181 27.90% 334
1,657 27.90% 462
227 1.20% 3
3,139 24.00% 753
(12) 24.00% (©)]
(182) 17.56% (55)
579 24.00% 139
17,723 24.00% 4,239
36,654 8,967
377 24.00% 90
444  24.00% 106
1,941 23.32% 453
2,762 649
4,537 27.90% 1,266
548 24.00% 132
3,856 27.90% 1,052
8,941 2,450
1,542 27.90% 430
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Total deferred tax liabilities charged to

Shareholders’ equity Sty = 1542 430

The tables below show the differences between theoretical tax charges (IRES 24% and IRAP 3.9%) and
the tax charge that can actually be recorded in the financial statements, as suggested by IAS 12.

RECONCILIATION BETWEEN THEORETICAL IRES AND IRES AS PER THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Pre-tax result
Theoretical tax charge (24.0%)

Variations on decrease

Photovoltaic plant

Use/cancellation of provisions allocated in previous years

Deductible portion of board and lodging expenses

Dividends from subsidiaries/revaluation of equity investments

Tax amortisation exceeding statutory amortisation

Other decreases

IRS differential

IMU tax

IRAP and lump-sum portion on employee severance indemnity paid

Total decreases (6,760)
Variations on the increase

Write-down of investments and Advances Provision for impairment Equity investments

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses 506
Non-deductible amortisation/depreciation and other non-deductible provisions 2,439
IMU tax 482
Non-deductible portion of board and lodging expenses 3,473
Other variations on the increase 1,667
Total increases 8,702
Reductions in Income for Asset Increase (ACE) (285)
Taxable amount for IRES (regional business tax) purposes pertaining to the year 2,228
Use of previous tax losses (1,059)
Actual taxable amount for IRES (regional business tax) purposes 1,169
IRES (corporate income tax) pertaining to the year (24% of actual IRES income) (281)
Revenue/(charges) from tax consolidation 766
Local tax effect (637)
Actual tax (151)

Actual tax burden 26.4%

RECONCILIATION BETWEEN THEORETICAL IRAP AND IRAP AS PER THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Difference between production revenues and costs 1,114
Non-relevant costs for IRAP purposes 30,607
:I'heoretlcal taxable 31,721
income

Theoretical tax charge (3.90%) -1,237

Variations on decrease

INAIL (ltalian National Institute for Insurance against Accidents at
Work), Trainees, Tax wedge and similar

Excess tax amortisation 27

(22,013

)
)

Use/cancellation of provisions allocated in previous years (437)
Other decreases (543)
Total decreases (23,020)




Variations on the increase
Directors' fees
Municipal Property Tax
Other variations on the increase
Total increases

Taxable amount for IRAP (regional business tax) purposes pertaining to the year

IRAP in Income statement

35) Related party transactions

A definition of “Related Parties” is given both in the international accounting standard IAS 24, approved
by Regulation EC no. 1725/2003 and in the Related Party Transaction Procedure approved by the Board
of Directors on 04 November 2010 (most recently amended on 23 June 2021), available for consultation
on the Company’s website www.iegexpo.it.

Infragroup transactions are carried out under the scope of ordinary operations and at arm’s length. In
addition, related party transactions are in progress, always carried out under the scope of ordinary
operations and at arm's length, or of negligible value in accordance with and pursuant to the “RPT
Procedure”, essentially involving subjects under joint control.

Related party transactions mainly refer to commercial, financial and real estate transactions (instrumental
and non-instrumental premises rented or leased by the Group). For the most part, they are not of any
great economic or strategic value for the Group insofar as the receivables, payables, revenues and costs
involving related parties do not account for a significant percentage of the total value of the financial
statements. The only exception is the contract regulating the lease of Palazzo dei Congressi in Rimini,
stipulated between the Parent company and its parent company, through which IEG S.p.A. carries out its
congress organisation.

In accordance with Art. 5, paragraph 8 of the Consob Regulation, it is noted that in the period 01.01.2022
- 31.12.2022, the Company’s Board of Directors did not approve any significant transaction, as defined
by Art. 3, paragraph 1, letter b) of the Consob Regulation, whilst it did approve a transaction with related
parties classified as “of minor importance” with respect to the equity relevance indicators given in the
Related Party Transactions Procedure.

The table below shows the amount and the nature of the receivables/payables as at 31 December 2022
and details of the costs/revenues in the year deriving from transactions between consolidated companies
and associated companies, jointly controlled companies and the Parent Company Rimini Congressi
S.p.A.

DV
Rimini Vicenza Destinat Rimini Cesen CAST  Other
Related party . . ) Global Igeco Igeco .
. Congressi  Holding ion . Welcom Igeco Srl . a Alime related
transactions . Link Mexico (USYAN . . .
*) Spa Services LLC e Fiera nti Srl  parties
Trade receivables 837 24 (0] 54 18 30 268 (0]
Current financial 0 85 8 0 0
assets
TOTAL
RECEIVABLES

Trade payables
Financial payables  N@EER7#))
Tax payables for

. (0]
direct taxes
TOTAL
PAYABLES (13,522)
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Revenues from
sales and services
Other revenues
Costs of services,
use of third-party
assets, other
expenses

Income from equity
investments

®)

TOTAL
REVENUES AND (6)
COSTS

(*) In applying IFRS 186, costs for use of third-party assets are completely eliminated and replaced with amortisation/depreciation on
rights of use for 1,025 thousand euros and financial charges for 275 thousand euros.

Rimini Congressi is the parent company of the Group in which, following the merger by incorporation
between the aforementioned company and Societa del Palazzo S.p.A. and the share capital increase that
took place in 2022, the Group holds a stake of 10.06%. In addition, it should be noted that, on application
of the new IFRS 16 accounting standard, the costs for the use of third-party assets, relating to rental
agreements for the Palacongressi di Rimini stipulated between IEG S.p.A. and Rimini Congressi S.r.l.,
were completely eliminated and replaced with amortisation/depreciation and financial charges. Financial
payables amounting to 14.0 million euros relate entirely to the discounting of lease instalments to be paid
for the rental of Palacongressi di Rimini, as set forth in IFRS 16.

36) Disclosure no. 124 pursuant to 04 August 2017

The information required pursuant to art. 1, paragraph 125 of Law no. 124 of 04 August 2017, divided up
between amounts received and benefits.

Name of disbursing entity Reason Sum collected (€) Cogzct:;ion
1 |G.SE.SpA. Photovoltaic incentives November 2021 538 31/01/2022
2 Municipality of Vicenza Municipality of Vicenza grant VIOFF22 24,000 20/05/2022
3 | Municipality of Vicenza Municipality of Vicenza grant VOS22 10,000 07/12/2022
4 Municipality of Arezzo Grant OAR22 13,673 29/07/2022
5 | Fondirigenti Open organisation & change management 3,200 09/08/2022
6 Fondimpresa Contribution for training and development 31,267 13/12/2022
11 | Veneto Innovazione Buy Veneto 21 project 12,164 01/04/2022
12 | APT Servizi sl Candidature for MICE International events 25,000 01/06/2022
13 | Fondimpresa Contribution for training and development 1,366 12/10/2022
14 | Assoform Contribution for training and development 587 12/12/2022
15 E;%iggfd Lombardia (Region of 2020 trade fair tender (Decree 869/2019) 35,000 07/09/2022

Total 156,795

Name of disbursing entity [REER Benefit granted (€) ggﬁi d
1 |ADE Contributions Cr. Amount of Electricity 14,706 Q32022
2 | ADE Contributions Cr. Amount of Gas 28,362 Q3 2022
3 INPS COVID-19: INPS CONTRIBUTION RELIEF 1,000 25/11/2022

Total 44,068




37) Independent Auditors' fees

The following table shows the fees paid to auditors of group companies and to their network, broken down
into audit and related services.

COMPENSATION FOR THE STATUTORY AUDIT Balance as at Balance as at
31/12/2022 31/12/2021
Audit services 261 217

Related Services 47 183

38) Disclosure on financial guarantees, commitments and other contingent liabilities
Sureties and guarantees granted to third parties

It should be noted that, as at 31 December 2022, the Group has guarantees in place relating to sureties
and third party assets at IEG totalling 716 thousand euros.
The following guarantees were issued:
- by the Parent Company in favour of the lessor who owns the Milan offices for 193 thousand euros;
- by the Parent Company in favour of the lessor who owns Pavilion 9 of the Vicenza trade fair
district for 75 thousand euros;
- by the Parent Company in favour of other entities for a total of 124 thousand euros;
- by Pro.Stand S.r.l. in favour of the lessors for 212 thousand euros to guarantee the contractual
commitments relating to leases on industrial depots/warehouses;
- by Summertrade S.r.l. in favour of Riva del Garda S.p.A as a guarantee for the contractual
commitments concerning the management of the catering services internal to the trade fair
complex for 65 thousand euros and to other parties for 47 thousand euros.

Potential liabilities

At 31 December 2022, there were no contingent liabilities not entered on the financial statements.

It should also be noted that Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A. replaced Fiera di Vicenza S.p.A. in the
guarantees issued by the latter in favour of the investee C.I.S. S.p.A. in liquidation in the amount of Euro
1,200 thousand. This amount was not recorded under guarantees given as the associated provision for
risks is allocated in the financial statements for the same amount.

39) Other information

Employees

The average number of employees is expressed as the number of FTE (full-time equivalent) workers. The
comparison between the average number of employees in 2022 and the previous year is shown below.

FTE 2021
Executives 13.8

Middle managers/White-collar workers 3711
Blue-collar workers 128.1
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AVERAGE NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES En 513.0

The exact number of workers (headcount) as at 31 December 2022 compared with the figure as at 31
December 2021 is shown here below.

Headcount 31/12/2022 31/12/2021

Executives 15
Middle managers/White-collar workers
Blue-collar workers

TOTAL HEADCOUNT AT THE END OF THE PERIOD
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ANNEX 1

These annexes contain additional information with respect to the contents of the Explanatory Notes, of
which they constitute an integral part.

COMPANIES ACCOUNTED FOR IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31
DECEMBER 2022 USING THE LINE-BY-LINE METHOD

Share
capital

% Share held by the Group
Group
company

Indirect - other
Group
Companies

Direct -
(figures in Total IEG
thousands)  Group SpA.

Registered office Core business

Organiser and host site

Ital|:?1n. ) Via Emilia, 155 — of trade
Exhibition o . Parent Company
Group S.pA 47921 Rimini fairs/events/conference
P.A. S
Italian Organiser of trade
Exhibition Av. Angeélica, 2530  fairs/events/conference
Group Brasil - 12° andar - Sao s and other trade fair REAL 4,300 75% 75%
Eventos Paulo (Brazil) activity accessory
LTDA services
Organiser and host site
Fieravicola Via Emilia, 155 — of trade
1 1% 1%
S.r.l. 47921 Rimini fairs/events/conference 0o 51% 51%
s
Summertrade  Via Emilia, 155 — . .
1 % %
Sl 47921 Rimini Catering services 05 65% 65%
Prostand
Via Emilia, 129 — Pro.
Exhibition la Emilia, 129 Trade fair stand fittings 78 100%  51% 49% ro.Stand
) 47900 Rimini S.rl(1)
Services S.r.l.
Poggio Torriana,
Pro. )
fo.stand va . Trade fair stand fittings 182 100%  100% o
S.r.l. Santarcangiolese
18
1001 Brickell Bay . .
IEG USA Inc.  Dr., Suite 2717° Eg;'t’;:c"d'ng USD7,250 | 100%  100%
Miami (FL) pany
B 1 Raritan Road,
. Oakland, New . - IEG USA
International Trade fair stand fittings USD 598 51% 51%
Inc Jersey 07436 - Inc.
' USA
Prime Servizi  Via Flaminia, 233/A  Cleaning and porterage
L . 60 51% 51%
S.rl — 47924 Rimini services ° ’
Creative Tower
HBG Event . ' (¢} isati f trad
VeN'S 4422, Fujairah, rganisation ot frade AED 369 100%  100%
FZ LLC fair events
UAE
V Group Sl Vi.a Emilia, 155 - Organiser of trade fair 10 75% 75%
Rimini events
IEG Munich — German Trade fair business
Deutschland (DE) y services 25 100% 100%
Gmbh
Tianshan Road, Organiser of trade fair
IEG China Ltd Changning District evgnts 7000 CNY 100% 100%
— Shanghai , China
1010 Cecil Street
IEG ASIA Pt L O i f trade fai
€ Tong Eng Building roaniser ot trade fair 500 SGD 100% 100%
Ltd events

— Singapore

(1) This percentage considered as regards the equity investment in Pro.Stand S.r.l. includes an option equal to 20% of the share

capital.




COMPANIES ACCOUNTED FOR IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31
DECEMBER 2022 USING THE EQUITY METHOD

Company
INETgg[]

Registered
office

Core business

Share
capital
(figures in
thousands)

% Share held by the
Group

Total Direct
Grou - IEG
p S.p.A.

Indirect
- other
Group
Compan
S

Group company

DV Global Link  P.O. Box 9292, g{gi?'tsrz;:"d host
LLC in Dubai, United . AED 500 49% 49%
liquidation (2) Arab Emirates fairsfevents/confere
nces
Via Dismano
. ' Organiser of trade

CesenaFiera  3845-47522 ¢ sjevents and 2,288 353% 20%  153% |Pro.Stand S.r.l. (1)
S.p.A. (2) Pievesestina di conferences

Cesena (FC)
C..AS.T. Via Training courses 23.08
Alimenti S.p.A.  Serenissima, 5 and professional 126 23.08% %
2 — Brescia (BS) training courses
Destination x:ltﬁri)oﬁrio Promotion and
Services S.r.l. L organisation of 10 50% 50%
2) 47923 Rimini tourist services

(RN)
Rimini Via Sassonia, Promotion and Destination Service
Welcome S.rl. 30 - 47922 organisation of 100 48% 5% 43% S.rland
2) Rimini (RN) tourist services Summertrade S.r.l.
Green Box S.rl. via Sordello O.rganiser of trade
@ 11/A - 31046 fairs/events and 15 20% 20%

Oderzo (TV) conferences

(1) The percentage considered of the equity investment in Pro.Stand S.r.I. includes an option equal to 20% of share capital.
(2) Data referring to 31/12/2021
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ANNEX 2

SUMMARY REPORT OF ESSENTIAL DATA OF THE LAST FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS INCLUDED IN THE

CONSOLIDATION (ART. 2429, PARAGRAPH 4 OF THE ITALIAN CIVIL CODE)

Registered office Financial Revenues Profit Employe Sharehold
Statements (loss) for es (FTE) ers’ Equity
the year

Subsidiaries

Prostand Exhibition Services  Via Emilia, 155 - 47921 Rimini 31/12/2022 0 @) 0 109

Sl

Prime Servizi S.r.l. Via Flaminia, 233/A - 47924 31/12/2022 3,497 53 1 546
Rimini

Summertrade S.r.l. Via Emilia, 155 - 47921 Rimini 31/12/2022 17,368  (1,296) 99 (2,037)

FB International Inc. (USD) 1 Raritan Rd, Oakland, NJ 07436 31/12/2022 20,501 (1,976) 44 (3,185)

IEG USA Inc. (USD) 1001 Brickell Bay Dr., Suite 2717 31/12/2022 0 (49) 0 6,688
Miami (FL)

Prostand S.r.l. Via Santarcangiolese 18 — 47824 31/12/2022 31,986 629 67 6,522
Poggio Torriana (RN)

Fieravicola S.r.l. Via Emilia, 155 — 47921 Rimini ~ 31/12/2022 0 (14) 0 113

HBG Events FZ LLC (AED) Creative Tower, 4422, Fujairah, 31/12/2022 3,237 800 12 1,042
UAE

Italian  Exhibition ~ Group  Av. Angelica, 2530 — 12° andar — 31/12/2022 490 (557) 5 531

Brasil Eventos LTDA Sao Paolo (Brazil)

Italian  Exhibition ~ Group  Munich — Germany (DE) 31/12/2022 0 (106) 3 19

Deutschland Ghmh

V — Group S.r.l. Via Emilia, 155 - 47921 Rimini 31/12/2022 3,486 899 3 426

leg China Ltd Tianshan Road, Changning 31/12/2022 0 4 0 306
District Shanghai, China

leg Asia Pte Ltd 1010 Cecil Street, Tong Eng 31/12/2022 0 ?3) 0 347

Associated companies

Building — Singapore

Cesena Fiera Spa Via Dismano 3845 — Cesena 31/12/2021 5,680 540 12 4,799
(FC)

Green Box S.r.l. Via Sordello 11/A - 31046 n.a. n.a. n.a. n.a. n.a.
Oderzo (TV)

Cast Alimenti S.r.l. Via Serenissima, 5 - Brescia (BS) 31/12/2021 4,006 47) 26 2,569

Jointly controlled
companies
Dv Global Link LLC in P.O.Box 9846 — Dubai— U.A.E. 31/12/2020 1 (205)
liquidation
Europe Asia Global Link no.18 Tian Shan Road 900-341, 31/12/2021 7 (124) n.a. 366
Exhibitions Co., Ltd Changning District, Shanghai,
China
Europe China Environmental ~Getan Building 1, No. 588, n.a. n.a. n.a n.a. n.a
Exhibitions Co., Ltd. Yizhou Avenue, High-tech Zone
Chengdu, China
Destination Services S.r.l. Viale Roberto Valturio 44 - 31/12/2021 205 4 n.a. 37
Rimini (RN)
Rimini Welcome S.c.a.r.l. Via Sassonia, 30 — Rimini (RN)  31/12/2021 1,056 4 n.a 143
Igeco S.r.l. Via Emilia, 155 — 47921 Rimini ~ 31/12/2022 0 (38) 0 7,510
Other equity investments
Centro Interscambio Mercie  Contra Gazzolle 1, 36100 - n.a. n.a. n.a n.a. n.a
Servizi Vicenza (VI)
- C.I.S. S.p.A. in liquidation
Turismo e Benessere soc. Via Rasponi 8 — Ravenna (RA)  31/12/2019 55 0 1 20
cons.
Uni.Rimini Via Anghera, 22, Rimini RN 31/12/2019 1,211 14 n.a. 1,408




ANNEX 3

RECONCILIATION OF ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (API)

The following is a reconciliation of Operating Profit/Loss (EBIT) and Adjusted EBIT as of 31 December 2022

compared with 31 December 2021.

31.12.2022
Adjusted Operating Income (EBIT) 2,274
Revenues 690
Operating costs (2,929)
Staff costs
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation of financial assets other than equity investments

Total Non-recurring Income and Expenses
Operating Profit/Loss (EBIT)

% 31.12.2021 % Variation
1.4% (21,921) -21.4% 24,195
0.4% 28,483 27.8% (27,793)
-1.8% (796) -0.8% (2,134)
0.0% (342) -0.3% 342
0.0% (2,427) -1.4% 1,427
0.0% (1,143) -1.1% 1,143
-1.4% 24,775 24.2% (27,015)
0.0% 2,855 2.8% (2,820)

The following is a reconciliation of Operating Profit/Loss (EBITDA) and Adjusted EBITDA as of 31 December

2022 compared with 31 December 2021.

31.12.2022 % 31.12.2021 % Variation
Adjusted EBITDA 18,068 11.2% (5,734) -5.6% 23,802
Revenues 690 0.4% 28,483 27.8% (27,793)
Operating costs (2,929) 1.8% (796) 0.8% 2,133
Staff costs - 0.0% (342) 0.3% (342)
Total Non-recurring Income and Expenses (2,239) 1.4% 27,345 -26.7% 29,584
EBITDA 15,829 9.8% 21,611 21.1% (5,782)

The alternative performance indicators shown above are adjusted for income components arising from non-
recurring events or operations, restructuring activities, business reorganization, depreciation of fixed assets,
ancillary expenses related to acquisitions of businesses or companies or their disposals, extraordinary
transactions, and any other events not representative of normal business activity.
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ANNEX 4

ATTESTATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH ART.
154 BIS, PARAGRAPH 5 OF ITALIAN LEGISLATIVE DECREE 58/1998

1. The undersigned, Corrado Peraboni, as Chief Executive Officer and Teresa Schiavina as Manager
responsible for preparing the company’s financial documents of Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A. hereby
certify, also taking into account the provisions of article 154-bis, paragraphs 3 and 4 of Legislative
Decree no. 58 of 24 February 1998:

- the adequacy with respect to the company’s profile, and

- the effective application
of the administrative and accounting procedures for the preparation of the Consolidated Financial
Statements as at 31 December 2022.

2. ltis also certified that:
2.1. the consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2022:

- were prepared in accordance with the international accounting standards recognised by the
European Union pursuant to European Parliament and Council Regulation no.
1606/2002/EC of 19 July 2002;

- correspond to the results of the books and the accounting records;

- are suitable to provide a true and fair representation of the capital, economic and financial
situation of the issuer and group of companies included within the scope of consolidation.

2.2. the Directors’ Report on Operations includes a reliable analysis of the trends and results of
operations as well as of the position of the issuer and of all entities included within the scope of
consolidation, together with a description of the main risks and uncertainties they are exposed
to.

Rimini, 16 March 2023

Statement by the Manager responsible for preparing the company's financial documents
Corrado Arturo Peraboni Teresa Schiavina
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Independent auditor’s report
in accordance with article 14 of Legislative Decree n® 39 of 27 January so1o and article 10 of
Regulation (EU) n® 537/2014

To the Shareholders of
Ttalian Fxhibition Group Spa

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have andited the consolidated fimancial statements of Italian Exhibition Group (hereinafter, also
the “IEG Group”), which comprize the consolidated statement of financial position as of 31 December
oo, the consolidated profit income statement, the comprehensive consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of chanses n equity, the consolidated cash flow statement for the vear then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In pur opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a troe and fair view of the financial position
of the IEG Group as of 31 December 2022, and of the result of its operations and cash flows for the
vear then ended in accordance with International Financial Eeporting Standards as adopted by the
Enropean Undon, as well as with the regulations issued to implement article g of Legislative Decres
n* 38/ 2005,

Basts for Opinion

We conducted our andit in accordance with International Standards on Anditing (ISA Ttalia).

Cnar responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of thiz report. We are independent of
Ttalian Exhibition Group Spa (hereinafter, also the “Company™) pursnant to the regulations and
standards on ethics and independence applicable to andits of financial statements under Halian law.
We believe that the andit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

0T Opinicm,

Key Audit Matters

Eey andit matters are those matters that, i our professional jodsement, were of most significance in
our andit of the consolidated financial statements of the corrent period. These matters were addreszed
in the context of cur audit of the consclidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

PricewaterhouseCoopers SpA
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Fey Audit Matters

Auditing procedures performed in
response to key audit matters

Recoverability of the value of intangible
assets

Notes to the consolidated financial statements as
of 21 December 2022, “Accounting policies”
section and note 2 - “Intangible assets”

Az of 31 December 2022, the value of intansible
assets in the consolidated financial statements of
the IEG Group was Euro 57,734 thousand,
accounting for 10.9% of total consolidated assets,
and includes goodwill for Euro 25,686 thousand
and intangible assets with findte lives for Euro
12,048 thousand.

In accordance with LAS 36 — Impairment of
assets, management tests the value of zoodwill
for impairment at least annmally, by comparing
the carrving amount of the cash generating units
(CGUs) to which goodwill is allocated with the
respective recoverable amount, i.e. the hisher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal,

With reference to goodwill, the recoverable
amonnt as of 31 December 2022 of the CGUs to
which the soodwill is allocated was determimed
on the basis of value in use, by discounting to
present value the estimated fubure cashflows in
the so2o-zoz7 basiness plan, approved by the
Company's Board of Directors on 18 July zo22
and later revized on the basis of the 2023 budget
approved by the Board of Directors on 19
December 2022, plas the terminal value,

Other intansible assets with findte lives are
tested only if indicators of impairment are
presant,

We considered the recoverability of intangible
asset values a key audit matter in consideration
of the materiality of the amounts and of the
elements of uncertainty and estimation intrinsic
to the Directors’ assessment of thedir

Cmur andit approach consisted, preliminarily, in
understanding and evaluating the methods and
procedures defined by the Company to
determine the recoverable amounts of the
CGUs to which goodwill is allocated and to
identify impairment indicators for mtangible
assets with finite lives,

With reference to goodwill, also with the
support of business valuation experts from the
adopted by management to determine the
recoverable amonnts of the CGUs to which
goodwill is allocated, we verified the
reasonableness of the key assumptions
reflected in the valuation models, including the
accuracy of the models used, and we compared
the value in use of each CGU with its carrping
amonmnt.

We verified manasement’s considerations
about the identification of the C©GUs and the
process of allocation of socdwill, verifyine their
consistency with the organdsational structure of
the IEG Group.

We analy=ad the forecasts used to assess the
recoverability of gocdwill, verifying their
consistency with the soz3-2027 business plan
and malking a critical assessment of the
reasonableness of the estimated cashflows, also
in light of the historical resalts of the IEG
Froup.

With regard to intangible assets with finite

lives we verified the absence of impairment
indicators.

ooff



IEG Group

-

pwec

The key element= of uncertainty and estimation  Fmally, our procedures inchuded analysing the
are related to the correct defmition and nobes to the consolidated financial statements
identification of the OGUs and to the estimation  and the overall adequacy and completensss of
of the future cashflows and the definition of the  related disclosures.

dizcount rates to be applied to those cashflows.

Responsibilities of the Directors and the Board of Statutory Auditors for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of consclidated financial statements that give a troe
and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
Eunropean Union, as well as with the regulations issued to implement article g of Legislative Decree
n® 35/2005 and, in the terms prescribed by law, for such internal control as they determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to frand or error.

The Directors are responsible for assessing the IEG Group's ability to continue as a going concern and,
in preparing the consolidated fimancial statements, for the appropriate application of the soing concern
basis of accounting, and for disclosing matters related to going concern. In preparimg the comsolidated
financial statements, the Directors use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend
to liguidate Ttalian Fxhibition Groop Spa or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do s0.

The board of statutory auditors is responsible for oversesing, in the terms prescribed by law, IEG

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Car objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated finamncial statements
as a whole are free from material mizstatement, whether due to frawd or error, and to issue an anditor's
report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a kigh level of assurance bt iz not a
guarantee that an andit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Anditing (ISA Halia)
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from frand or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggresate, they could reasonably be expected to
infloence the economdic dedsions of users taken on the basis of the consclidated fnancial statements.

Ac part of our andit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Anditing (ISA Ralia),
we exercised profeszional judgement and maintained professional sceptici=m throuzhout the andst.
Furthermore:

* We identified and assessed the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to frand or error; we designed and performed andit procedures
responsive to those risks; we obtained andit evidence that iz sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion, The rizk of not detecting a material mizstatement resulting
from frand is kigher than for one resulting from error, as frand may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;
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L We obtained an understanding of internal control relevant to the andit in order to design andit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opirdon on the effectivensss of the IEG Group's internal control;

. We evaluated the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related diselosures made by the Directors;

* We conchided on the appropriateness of the Directors' use of the poing concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast sipnificant doabt on the IEG Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, If we conclode that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our anditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated Snancial
statement= or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinicn. Our conclusions are
based on the andit evidence obtained up tothe date of our anditors report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the IEG Group to cease to continne as a going concern;

* We evaluated the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statement=, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlving trancactions and events in 3 manner that achieves fair presentation;

* We obtained sufficient appropriate andit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the TEG Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
andit of the IEG Group. We remain solely responsible for our andit opinion on the consolidated
financial statements.

We commnndcated with those charged with sovernance, identified at an appropriate level as required by
I5A Talia regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the andit and sisnificant
andit,

We alzo provided thosa charged with sovernanca with a statement that we complied with the
regulations and standards on ethics and independence applicable under Ttalian law and commumnicated
with them all relationzhips and cther matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate the related risks, or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determined those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the oorrent period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We described these matters in our anditor's report.

Addirional Disclosures required by Article 10 of Regularion (EL7T) n* 537/2014

Om 17 October 2015 the Shareholders of Italian Exhibition Group SpA in general meeting engaged us to
perform the stabwbory andit of the Company's and the consolidated finaneial statements for the years
ending 31 December 2019 to 31 December o027,

We declare that we did not provide any prohibited non-audit services referred to in article 5, paragraph

1, of Regulation (E1T) n® 537,/2014 and that we remained independent of the Company in conducting the
statutory andit.
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We confirm that the opinion on the consclidated financial statements expressed in this report is
consistent with the additional report to the board of statutory anditors, in its capacity as andit
committee, prepared pursuant to article 11 of the aforementioned Regulation.

Report on Compliance with other Laws and Regulations

Opinton on compliance with the provisions of Commission Delegated Regulation {ELT)
n* zo19/815

The Directors of Italian Exhibition Group SpA are responsible for the application of the provisions of
Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) n* 2019815 concerning regulatory technical standards on the
specification of a single electronic reporting format (ESEF - European Single Electronic Format)
(bereinafter, the “Commission Delesated Eegulation™) to the consclidated financial statements as of 32
December 2022, to be included in the annual report.

We have performed the procedures specified in anditing standard (SA4 Fakia) n® rooB in order to
eXpress an opinson on the compliance of the consolidated financial statements with the provisions of the
Commiizsion Delegated Resulation.

In our opimion, the consolidated financial statement= as of 31 December so22 have been prepared in

XHTML format and have been marked up, in all sisnificant respects, in compliance with the provisions
of the Commizzion Delegated Regulation.

Ime to certain technical imitations, some information included in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when extracted from the EHTHL format to an XBRL instance may not be
reproduced in an identical manner with respect to the corresponding information presented in the
consolidated financial statements in XHTHL format.

Opinton in accordance with Article 1.4, paragraph 2, letter e). of Legislative Decree n®
39/zo10 and Article 123-bis. paragraph 4, of Legislative Decree n® 58/1908

The Company's Directors are responsible for preparing a report on operations and a report on the
corporate governance and ownership strocture of the IEG Group as of 31 December 2022, incliding

We have performed the procedures required under anditing standard (SA Halia) n® 7208 in order to
express an opindon on the consistency of the report on operations and of the specific information
included in the report on corporate governance and ownership stracture referred to in article 123-bis,
paragraph 4, of Legizlative Decree n® 58 1998, with the consolidated financial statements of the TEG
Group as of 31 December 2022 and on their compliance with the law, as well as to issue a statement on
material misstatements, if any.

In gur opimion, the report cn operations and the specific mformation included in the report on
corporate governance and ownership strocture mentioned above are consistent with the consolidated
financial statements of the IEG Group as of 31 December 2022 and are prepared in compliance with the
lawe,
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Tﬁ"ﬁﬂlreferennetuﬂmstatmmtmﬂeuedtomarhc]eu,pmagnphz,]eﬁere),uflegﬁhhwDe::ree n®
259/2010, issned on the basis of our knowledge and understanding of the Company and it environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have nothing to report.

Sratement in accordance with article 4 of Consob’s Regulation implementing
Legislative Decree n® 254 of 30 December 2016

The Directors of Italian Fxhibition Group SpA are responsible for the preparation of the non-financial
statement pursuant to Legizlative Decree n® 254 of 30 December 2016,
We have verified that the Directors approved the non-financial statement.

Pursuant to article 5, paragraph 10, of Legislative Decree n® 254 of 30 December 2016, the non-financial
statement iz the sabject of a separate statement of compliance issued by ourselves.

EBologna, 6 April soog,

PricewaterhouseCoopers SpA

Signed by

Giuseppe Ermocida
(Partner)

As diselosed by the Directors in the paragraph “General information”, the accompanying
consolidated financial statements of ftalian Exhibition Group SpA constitute a non-official version
which is not compliant with the provisions of the Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) zo19,/815.
This independent auditor's report has been translated into the English language solely for the
convenience of international readers. Accordingly, only the original text in Tralian language is
authoritative.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS  (Figures in units) IN[eaN=N3 31/12/2022 31/12/2021

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, Plant and Equipment 1 pgNGHe ol 180,408,115
Intangible fixed assets Al 19,015,195 19,645,505
Equity investments in subsidiaries Kl 25,123,409 19,977,759
Equity investments valued using the equity A 7,740,068 2,728,451

method

Equity investments in other companies I 9,344,366 10,855,042
Of which with related parties 9,247,858 10,770,064
Deferred tax assets M 4,257,575 5,311,087

Non-current financial assets YA 2,227,199 360,040

Other non-current assets 8 184,145 69,389

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

240,538,037 239,355,388

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories -
Trade receivables I 24,284,581 19,069,420
Of which with related parties 4,178,919 3,530,117
Tax receivables for direct taxes 10 41,970 100,084
Current financial assets iNB 7,078,897 3,125,871
Of which with related parties 7,078,897 3,125,871
Other current assets 12 3,664,095 4,747,460
Cash and cash equivalents I 41,578,272 42,177,524
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 76,647,815 69,220,359
TOTAL ASSETS cHARLRYAN 308,575,747
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LIABILITIES (in Euro units)

NOTES

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Share capital

Share premium reserve

Other reserves

Profit (loss) for previous years

Profit (loss) for the year

14

14

14

14

14

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Payables due to banks

Non-current financial liabilities on rights of use
Of which with related parties

Other non-current financial liabilities
Of which with related parties

Provisions for non-current risks and charges

Employee provisions

Other non-current liabilities

15

16

17

18

19

20

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Payables due to banks

Current financial liabilities on rights of use
Of which with related parties

Other current financial liabilities
Of which with related parties

Trade payables
Of which with related parties

Tax payables for direct taxes
Of which with related parties

Other current liabilities
Of which with related parties

15

21

22

23

10

24

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

31/12/2022

52,110,008

13,924,458

33,909,092

6,077,821

1,512,748

107,534,127

81,754,796

17,116,764
12,623,899

1,441,359
(0]

1,788,726

1,990,695

1,805,485

105,897,825

16,109,380

1,680,940
1,000,778

2,738,314
349,650

37,285,400
10,118,520

290,442
0

45,649,423

103,753,899
317,185,851

31/12/2021

52,214,897

13,946,713

33,337,227

4,538,068

1,609,692

105,646,597

87,667,219

19,416,184
14,169,553

5,496,230
0

1,937,147

2,716,371

2,020,045

119,253,196

18,549,514

1,246,617
863,404

4,736,589
227,737

26,779,962
6,479,400

32,345,272

83,675,954
308,575,747



INCOME STATEMENT

Notes 31/12/2022 31/12/2021

REVENUES
Revenues from sales and services 26 105,500,786 47,971,085
Of which with related parties 3,741,112 2,171,934
Other revenues 26 4,456,489 24,615,458

Of which with related parties 1,058,764 503,300
TOTAL REVENUES 109,957,275 72,586,543
OPERATING COSTS

Change in inventories (0] 0

Costs for raw materials, consumables and goods for resale (1,833,920) (937,104)
Of which with related parties (29,178) 0
Costs of services (69,727,650) (34,599,662)

Of which with related parties (20,334,690) (8,368,415)
Costs for use of third-party assets (122,648) (475,095)
Of which with related parties

Personnel costs (22,488,765) (16,723,001)

Other operating costs (2,880,891) (1,830,144)
Of which with related parties (32,730)

TOTAL OPERATING COSTS 27 (54,565,006)

GROSS OPERATING PROFIT (EBITDA) 12,903,401 18,021,537

Amortisation, depreciation and impairment (11,143,545)
OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 1,759,856 4,075,654
FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSE

Financial income 3,614,848 32,101
Of which with related parties 115,007 14,211
Financial charges (2,820,378) (1,689,387)

Exchange rate gains and losses (163,828) 31,909

TOTAL FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSE 29 630,642 (1,625,377)

TOTAL GAINS AND LOSSES FROM EQUITY INVESTMENTS 30 (637,495)

PRE-TAX RESULT 2,603,378 1,812,782

TOTAL INCOME TAXES 31 (1,090,630) (203,090)

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 1,512,748 1,609,692
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Other Comprehensive Income which will be

subsequently reclassified under profit/(loss) for the year:
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges

Gains/(losses) on translation of financial statements in foreign currency

Total other comprehensive income components which will be subsequently be
reclassified under profit/(loss) for the year

Other Comprehensive Income which will not be

subsequently reclassified under profit/(loss) for the year:

Actuarial gains/(losses) from defined benefit plans for employees — IAS 19
Gains/(losses) on financial assets measured at FVOCI

Total other comprehensive income components which will not be subsequently be
reclassified under profit/(loss) for the year

TOTAL PROFIT/(LOSS) BOOKED TO SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

1,512,748

1,624,839
14,982

1,639,821

384,311
(1,522,206)

(1,137,895)

501,926

2,014,674

2021

1,609,692

454,259
40,645

494,904

(100,865)
(204,000)

(304,865)

190,039

1,799,731



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

103,846,867

0

(100,865)

(204,000)

40,645

454,259

1,690,692

104,646,598

0

(127,144)

384,310

(1,522,206)

14,982

1,624,839

1,512,748

Retained
Share capital prSe:?irjm Revaluation Legal Statutory Other ?f;rsnsneij Profit (loss)
reserve reserves reserve reserve reserves carried for the year
forward

Balance 31/12/2020 52,214,897 13,946,713 67,159,789 10,400,794 2,531,806 (46,945,202) 17,221,060 (12,682,991)
Allocation of profit for the year
- Allocation to reserves (12,618)2,99 12,682,091
Measurement of defined-benefit plans * (100,865)
Fair value OCI reserve* (204,000)
SRtheer::/eentf;):translatlon of foreign financial 40,645
CFH reserve* 454,259
Result of the period 1,609,692
Balance 31/12/2021 52,214,897 13,946,713 67,159,789 10,400,794 2,531,806 (46,755,163) 4,538,069 1,609,692
Allocation of profit for the year
- Allocation to reserves 42,185 8,049 19,706 1,539,752  (1,609,692)
Other variations (104,889) (22,255)
Measurement of defined-benefit plans * 384,310
Fair value OCI reserve* (1,522,206)
SRtheerrr:/:nl‘;)l;translatlon of foreign financial 14,982
CFH reserve* 1,624,839
Result of the period 1,512,748
Balance 31/12/2022 52,110,008 13,924,458 67,159,789 10,442,979 2,539,855 (46,233,532) 6,077,821 1,512,748

107,534,127

* These items fall under the components of the statement of comprehensive income




CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Values in euros

iiﬁﬂ3l/12/2021

PO 1,812,782
Of which with related parties (USSR (7,615,759)

Profit/(loss) before tax

Adjustments to trace profit for the year back to the cash flow from operating activities:

Costs for use of third-party assets (IFRS 16) (AL (2,263,272)
Amortisation, depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets jl0f:¥isR:IiMN 12,343,163
Appropriations and losses 3,446,516 400,000
Other provisions 288,854 113,307
Charges/(income) from valuation of equity investments in other companies with the equity method J@aFa:1:0)) 637,495
Write-down of financial assets 28,810
Net financial charges ((CRINZIRN 1,625,377
Of which with related parties 115,007 14,211
Other non-monetary changes (PAVRSTS )N (193,970)
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital pZNoISHIM KN 14,474,882
Change in working capital:
Inventories
Trade receivables (CHNGIRel) N (9,265,920)
Of which with related parties (CZER0ZN (850,080)
Trade payables 10,283,598 RSO eLHN
Of which with related parties RNl 2,028,031
Other current and non-current assets 978,489 (959,080)
Other current and non-current liabilities IR RN 17,069,724
Receivables/payables for current taxes (323,030) (29,302)
Of which with related parties 0
Prepaid/deferred taxes (32,395)
Cash flow from changes in working capital 15,363,077
Income tax paid 0
Employee provisions and provisions for risks (70,965) (452,595)
Cash flows from operating activities oy R0k IN 29,385,365
Cash flow from investment activities
Net investments in intangible fixed assets (CErIS)IN (217,419)
Net investments in property, plant and equipment (3,954,650)
Disinvestments in intangible fixed assets 0
Disinvestments in property, plant and equipment 13,446
Change in current and non-current financial assets (810,245)

Of which with related parties (922,276)
Acquisitions net of cash and cash equivalents acquired
Changes in equity investments in associated companies and other companies
Cash flow from investment activities
Cash flow from financing activities
Change in other financial payables

Payables due to shareholders
Obtainment/(repayment) of short-term bank loans
Loans 9,353,999
Loan repayment 8,864,000
Net financial charges paid
Dividends paid

Purchase of treasury shares
Change in Group reserves

Cash flow from financing activities (N r92i5))(3,991,822)

Net cash flow for the period
Opening cash and cash equivalents
Closing cash and cash equivalents
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A. (hereinafter “IEG”, the “Company” or the “Parent Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, associated companies and/or jointly controlled companies, the “Group” or the “IEG
Group”) is a joint-stock company domiciled in Italy, with registered office in Via Emilia 155, Rimini, and
organised according to the legal system of the Italian Republic. IEG is the Parent Company, created as a
result of the transfer of Fiera di Vicenza S.p.A. to Rimini Fiera S.p.A. and the simultaneous change of the
latter's company name to Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A..

The company successfully completed the process of listing on the MTA (screen-based equities market)
organised and managed by Borsa lItaliana S.p.A. on 19 June 2019.

It should be noted that, pursuant to article 70, paragraph 8 and article 71, paragraph 1-bis, of the
Regulation adopted by CONSOB by means of resolution no. 11971/1999, as supplemented and
amended, (the “Issuers’ Regulation”), the company signed up to the opt-out system set forth in the
aforementioned articles, availing itself of the option to depart from the obligations of publication of the
information documents set out in Annex 3B of the Issuers’ Regulation, at the time significant transactions
are being carried out incorporating mergers, demergers, share capital increases through contribution of
assets in kind, acquisitions and sales.

Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A. is controlled by Rimini Congressi S.r.l., which holds 49.50% of the share
capital and holds voting rights for 55.86%. The Company, nonetheless, is not subject to management and
coordination by Rimini Congressi S.r.l. pursuant to art. 2497 et seq. of the Italian Civil Code. In fact, none
of the activities that typically prove management and coordination activities, pursuant to art. 2497 et seq.
of the Italian Civil Code, exists since, by way of a non-exhaustive example:

¢ Rimini Congressi does not exercise any significant influence over the management decisions and
operations of the Issuer, but limits it relations with said entity to the normal exercise of
administrative and equity rights owing to its status of holder of voting rights; there is no connection
between the members of the administration, management control bodies of the two companies;

e the Company does not receive - and, at any rate, is not subject in any way - to the financial or
credit directives or instructions from Rimini Congressi;

e the Company has an organisational structure composed of expert professionals who, based on
the powers conferred and the positions held, operate independently in line with the indications of
the Board of Directors;

o the Company prepares the strategic, industrial, financial and/or budget plans of the Issuer and of
the Group independently, and autonomously implements these;

e the Company operates fully independently, from a contractual perspective, in relations with its
customers and its suppliers, without any external interference from Rimini Congressi.

At the date of drafting of this document, it should also be noted that: (i) there are no acts, resolutions or
communications of Rimini Congressi that lead us to reasonably believe that the company’s decisions are
the result of a domineering and commanding will of the parent company; (ii) the company does not receive
centralised treasury services (cash pooling) or other functions of financial assistance or coordination from
Rimini Congressi; (iii) the company is not subject to regulations or policies imposed by Rimini Congressi.
The Group’s activities consist of the organisation of trade fairs (Exhibition Industry) and hospitality for
trade fairs and other events, through the design, management and provision of fitted-out exhibition spaces
(mainly in the “trade fair districts”), the supply of services connected to trade fairs and conferences, as
well as the promotion and management, in both its own locations and those of third parties, of
conferences, conventions, exhibitions, cultural events, shows and leisure activities, including not related
to organised events and conferences.

For the purposes of economic and financial comparability of the company, it should be noted that

e the profit trend, in contexts of normal operations, is influenced by seasonality factors,
characterised by more significant events in the first and fourth quarters of the year, as well as the
presence of important two-yearly trade fairs, in even-numbered years.
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e the financial trend, in contexts of normal operations, is therefore characterised by an increase in
working capital in the first half, while the fourth quarter generally, thanks to the advances received
on events organised at the start of the next period, shows a significant improvement in the net
financial position.

The publication of this financial report closed at 31 December 2022 was approved by resolution of the
Board of Directors on 16/03/2023. Please note that this version of the separated financial statements of
IEG S.p.A. constitutes an additional non-official version and that it is not compliant with the provisions of
the Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2019/815 ("ESEF Regulation™).

STRUCTURE AND CONTENTS OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pursuant to article 25 of Law No. 306 of 31 October 2003 and the associated application regulations
contained in Legislative Decree No. 38 of 28 February 2005, in exercise of the option provided therein,
the IEG Group (hereinafter also “the Group”) adopted the International Accounting Standards (IFRS)
issued by the 1.LA.S.B — International Accounting Standard Board for financial statements for the year
ended as at 31 December 2015. More specifically, International Accounting Standards mean all
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), all International Accounting Standards (IAS), all
interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Standards Interpretations Committee (IFRIC),
previously named the Standard Interpretations Committee (SIC) which, at the date of approval of the
Separate Financial Statements as at 31 December 2016, had been approved by the European Union in
accordance with the procedure laid down in Regulation (EC) no. 1606/2002, by the European Parliament
and the European Council of 19 July 2002.

As regards the preparation of the separate financial statements of ITALIAN EXHIBITION GROUP S.p.A.,
the Company exercised the option set out in article 25 of Law No. 306 of 31 October 2003, of adopting
the international accounting standards at the same date of FTA adopted by the consolidated financial
statements.

The statement of financial position was classified on the basis of the operating cycle, separating current
and non-current items. Based on this distinction, the assets and liabilities are considered current if they
are expected to be realised or extinguished in the normal operating cycle. Non-current assets held for
sale and the related liabilities, where present, are shown in the appropriate items.

The income statement layout reflects the analysis of aggregated costs by nature given that this
classification was considered more significant for the purposes of understanding the economic result. The
revenue and costs items recognised in the year are presented through two tables: an income statement
table for the year, which reflects the analysis of the aggregated costs by nature, and a table of
comprehensive income.

The result of discontinued operations and/or assets held for disposal, where present, is shown in the
appropriate item of the income statement.

Lastly, the cash flow statement was prepared by using the indirect method for the determination of the
cash flows from operating activities. With this method, the operating profit/loss (EBIT) is adjusted for the
effects of non-monetary transactions, any deferral or provision of previous or future operating collections
or payments and by elements of revenues or costs connected with cash flows from investment or financing
activities.

The functional and presentation currency is the Euro, expressed in thousands, unless specified
otherwise.
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GOING CONCERN

Although considering the complexity and uncertainty that characterise the current international context,
the Company considers the assumption of operation as a going concern to be appropriate and correct,
taking into account its capacity to meet its obligations for the foreseeable future and in particular for the
next 12 months, having adequately considered the economic and equity position for FY 2022 and the
economic forecasts of the business plan approved by the Board of Directors on 18 July 2022 and the
2023 Budget approved by the Board of Directors on 19 December 2022 and taking into account the
forecast performance of working capital and the expected outlook for the cash position, the financial
statements have been prepared considering the business as a going concern.

MEASUREMENT CRITERIA
Property, plant and equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are booked to the financial statements at purchase or production cost,
including directly attributable expenses, and adjusted for the respective accumulated depreciation.

The cost includes any expense incurred directly to prepare the assets for use plus any dismantling and
removal costs that will be incurred to restore the asset to its original conditions and the financial charges
related to construction or production which require a significant period of time to be ready for use and sale
(qualifying assets).

Property, plant and equipment are amortised systematically in every period on a straight-line basis, based
on the economic-technical rates determined in relation to the residual possibility of use of the assets.
Ordinary maintenance costs are charged to the income statement when they are incurred.

Maintenance costs which determine an increase in value, or functionality, or useful life of the assets, are
directly attributable to the assets to which they refer and amortised in relation to the residual possibility of
use of said assets.

Improvements to third-party assets are classified in the item “Other assets”; the depreciation period
corresponds to the lower of the residual useful life of the tangible fixed asset and the residual duration of
the lease agreement.

The depreciation rates applied are as follows:

Items Rates %

Land -

Buildings 1.9% -
10%

Plant and machinery 7.5% -
30%

Industrial and commercial 15% - 27%

equipment

Other assets 12% - 25%

If indicators of impairment emerge, the property, plant and equipment are subject to an impairment test
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through the procedure outlined in the section “impairment of assets”.

Following the entry into force of new IFRS 16, from 1 January 2019, leases are accounted for in the
financial statements based on a single accounting model similar to the one governed by IAS 17 regarding
the accounting of financial leases.

At the moment of the stipulation of each contract, the Group:

» determines whether the contract is or contains a lease, a circumstance that is verified when

said contract gives the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange

for a consideration. This measurement is repeated in the event of the subsequent change to the

terms and conditions of the contract.

» separates the components of the contract, by distributing the consideration of the contract

between the lease and non-lease component.

» determines the duration of the lease as the period that cannot be cancelled of the lease,

augmented by any periods covered by a lease extension or termination option.
At the date of effectiveness of each contract in which the Group is the lessee of an asset, the asset
consisting of the right of use, measured at cost, and the financial lease liability, equal to the present value
of the residual future payments discounted by using the implicit interest rate of the lease or, alternatively,
the marginal financing rate of the Group, are recognised in the financial statements. Subsequently, the
asset consisting of the right of use is measured by applying the cost model, or netted of
amortisation/depreciation and any accumulated impairment and adjusted to take account of any new
lease measurements or amendments. By contrast, the lease liability is measured by increasing the book
value to take account of interest, decreasing the book value to take account of the payments due made
and redetermining the book value to take into account any new lease measurements or amendments.

The assets are depreciated on the basis of a period of depreciation represented by the duration of the
lease agreement, except where the duration of the lease is less than the useful life of the asset based on
the rates applied for property, plant and equipment and there is a reasonable certainty of the transfer of
ownership of the leased asset on the natural expiry of the contract. In that case, the depreciation period
will be calculated on the basis of the criteria and rates indicated for the property, plant and equipment.

For leases ending within 12 months of the date of initial application and that do not make provision for
renewal options, and for leases for which the underlying asset is of low value, lease payments are booked
to the income statement on a linear basis for the duration of the respective contracts.

Intangible fixed assets

An intangible asset is recognised in the accounts only if it is identifiable and controllable, it is likely to
generate future economic benefits and if its cost can be reliably determined. The booking of an intangible
asset is based on its useful life, an intangible asset with a defined useful life is amortised, whilst an
intangible asset with an undefined useful life, is not.

Goodwill and intangible assets with an indefinite useful life

Goodwill and intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are no longer amortised from the date of first
time adoption (1 January 2014). Goodwill and other intangible assets with an indefinite useful life relating
to the acquisitions completed after 1 January 2014 are, nonetheless, not amortised. An intangible asset
is considered as having an undefined useful life when, on the basis of an analysis of the relevant factors,
no limit can be estimated as to when the asset will cease generating net incoming cash flows for the
company.

Goodwill
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Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase cost with respect to the portion pertaining to the purchaser
of the fair value of the net identifiable assets and liabilities of the entity acquired. After initial recognition,
goodwill is valued at cost, less any impairment deriving from the impairment test (see paragraph
“impairment of assets”).

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets with a definite useful life are measured at purchase or production cost, including any
accessory charges, and are amortised systematically on a straight-line basis during the period of their
expected future use. If indicators of impairment emerge they are subject to an impairment test which is
outlined in the section “impairment of assets”.

Industrial patent and intellectual property rights are amortised over a period of 3 and 5 years, licences
and concessions are amortised starting from when the cost is incurred and for the duration of the licence
or concession envisaged contractually, while trademarks have a useful life which may vary between ten
and twenty-five years.

Compared with last year, there have been no changes made to amortisation/depreciation periods; there
are therefore no changes to the rates applied.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with a definite useful life, subject to
amortisation/depreciation, are subject to an impairment test only if indicators of impairment emerge.

The recoverability of the values recognised is verified by comparing the carrying amount with the net sale
price and the value in use of the asset, whichever is higher. The net sale price is the amount which can
be obtained from the sale of an asset in a transaction between independent, informed and willing parties,
less disposal costs; in the absence of binding agreements, reference must be made to the prices
expressed by an active market, or the best information available, by taking into account, among other
things, recent transactions for similar assets carried out in the same business sector. The value in use is
defined on the basis of the discounting at an appropriate rate, which expresses the cost of capital of an
entity not indebted with a homogeneous risk profile, the expected cash flows from use of the asset (or
from an aggregation of assets - the so-called cash-generating units) and its disposal at the end of its
useful life.

Subsequently, when an impairment loss on an asset other than goodwill ceases to exist or decreases,
the book value of the asset is increased to the new estimated recoverable value and cannot exceed the
value that would have been calculated if no impairment loss had been recorded. The reversal of
impairment is recognised to the income statement.

Goodwill and the other intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are subject to a systematic verification
of recoverability (“impairment test”) carried out on an annual basis, at the date of year-end, or more
frequently if there are indicators of impairment.

Goodwill impairment is calculated by assessing the recoverable value of the cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill was
allocated, impairment is recognised. The decrease in value to goodwill cannot be restored in future
periods.

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method set out in IFRS 3 revised in 2008.
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According to this method, the consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair
value, determined as the sum of the fair values of the transferred assets and liabilities assumed by the
purchaser at the acquisition date and capital instruments issued in exchange for the control of the acquired
entity. Transaction accessory costs are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when
incurred.

The contingent considerations, considered part of the transfer price, are measured at fair value at the
acquisition date. Any subsequent fair value changes are booked to the statement of comprehensive
income.

At the date of acquisition, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are booked at fair
value. Goodwill is determined as the excess between the sum of the considerations transferred in the
business combination, of the portion of shareholders’ equity pertaining to minority interests and of the fair
value of any equity investment held previously in the acquired entity, with respect to the fair value of the
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date. If the value of the net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date exceeds the sum of the considerations transferred, of the
portion of shareholders’ equity pertaining to minority interests and the fair value of any equity investment
held previously in the acquired entity, this excess is booked immediately to the statement of
comprehensive income as income deriving from the transaction concluded.

NCI can be measured at fair value or at its proportionate share of the fair value of the net assets of the
acquiree at the acquisition date. The measurement method is decided on a transaction by transaction
basis.

In the process of fair value measurement of business combinations, the Group avails itself of the available
information, and for the most significant business combinations, also of the support of external
evaluations.

Financial assets

At the time of initial recognition, financial assets must be classified into one of the three categories
indicated below based on the following elements:

e the business model of the entity for the management of financial assets; and

e the characteristics relating to the contractual cash flows of the financial asset.
Financial assets are derecognised from the financial statements only if the sale involved the substantial
transfer of all risks and benefits related to them. Conversely, whenever a significant part of the risks and
benefits related to the financial assets sold have been maintained, these continue to be recognised in the
financial statements, even if legal ownership of the assets has effectively been transferred.

Financial liabilities designated at amortised cost
This category includes financial assets that meet both of the following conditions:
e the financial asset is held in accordance with a business model whose objective is achieved
through the collection of contractually agreed cash flows ("Hold to Collect” business model); and
e the contractual terms of the financial asset envisage, at certain dates, cash flows represented
solely by payments of principal and interest on the amount of principal to be repaid (the “SPPI
test” passed).
Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value, considering the transaction costs and revenues
directly attributable to the instrument itself. Subsequent to their initial recognition, financial assets under
examination are measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. The amortised cost
method is not used for assets - measured at historical cost - whose short duration makes the effect of the
discounting principle negligible, for those without a set maturity and for revocable loans.
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Financial assets designated at fair value through comprehensive income
This category includes financial assets that meet both of the following conditions:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets (“Held to Collect and Sell” Business Model);
and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset envisage, at certain dates, cash flows represented
solely by payments of principal and interest on the amount of principal to be repaid (the “SPPI
test” passed).

This category includes equity interests, not qualifying as controlling, associated or jointly controlled, which
are not held for trading purposes, for which the option of designation at fair value through comprehensive
income is exercised.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value, considering the transaction costs and revenues
directly attributable to the instrument itself. Subsequent to initial recognition, equity interests that are non-
controlling, associated or of joint control, are measured at fair value and the amounts recorded as a
balancing entry to shareholders' equity (Statement of comprehensive income) must not be subsequently
transferred to the income statement, even in the event of disposal. The only component relating to the
equity securities in question that is recorded in the income statement is represented by the relative
dividends.

For equities included in this category, not listed in an active market, the cost criterion is used as an
estimate of the fair value only in a residual manner and in limited circumstances, i.e. when the most recent
information available for measuring the fair value is insufficient, or there is a wide range of possible
valuations of the fair value and the cost represents the best estimate of the fair value in that range of
values.

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit and loss

This category includes financial assets other than those classified under financial assets measured at
amortised cost and financial assets designated at fair value through comprehensive income.

This category includes financial assets held for trading and includes derivative contracts not classifiable
as hedging derivatives (which are represented as assets if the fair value is positive and as liabilities if the
fair value is negative).

On initial recognition, financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss are recorded at fair
value, without considering the transaction costs or revenues directly attributable to the instrument itself.
At subsequent reference dates, they are measured at fair value and the effects of the measurement are
booked to the income statement.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with the provisions of IFRS 9, the Group applies a simplified approach to estimate expected
credit losses over the entire life of the instrument and takes into consideration its past experience
regarding credit losses, corrected on the basis of specific forward-looking factors of the nature of Group
receivables and the economic context.
In brief, the Group measures the expected losses of the financial assets so as to reflect:
e atarget amount weighted on the basis of the probabilities determined by evaluating a range of
possible results;
e the time value of money; and
e reasonable and demonstrable information that is available without undue costs or efforts at the
reporting date on past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
The financial asset is impaired when one or more events are verified that have a negative impact on the
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future cash flows estimated from the financial asset. Observable data relating to the following events (it
may be the case that a single event cannot be identified: the impairment of financial assets may be due
to the combined effect of different events) constitute proof that the financial asset is impaired:
g) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or debtor;
h) breach of contract, such as non-fulfilment of an obligation or failure to respect an expiry;
i) for economic or contractual reasons relating to the debtor’s financial difficulty, the creditor grants
the debtor a concession that the creditor would not otherwise have considered,;
j) the probability that the debtor will file for bankruptcy or other financial restructuring procedures;
k) disappearance of an active market for that financial asset due to financial difficulties; or
I) the purchase or creation of the financial asset with huge discounts that reflect the credit losses
incurred.
For financial assets measured using the amortised cost method, when impairment has been identified, its
value is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
expected future cash flows, discounted on the basis of the original effective interest rate. This value is
recognised in the income statement.

Derivative financial instruments

The derivative financial instruments are accounted for in accordance with the provisions of IFRS 9.

At the date of stipulation of the contract, the derivative financial instruments are initially accounted for at
fair value, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss when the fair value is positive or as a
financial liability designated at fair value through profit and loss when the fair value is negative.

If the financial instruments are not accounted for as hedging instruments, the fair value changes
recognised after the initial recognition are treated as components of the result for the year. If, by contrast,
the derivative instruments satisfy the requirements to be classified as hedging instruments, subsequent
fair value changes are accounted for by applying the specific criteria outlined below.

A derivative financial instrument is classified as a hedge if formal documentation exists of the relationship
between the hedging instrument and the hedged element, including the risk management objectives, the
strategy for carrying out the hedge and the methods which will be used to check the prospective and
retrospective effectiveness of the hedge. The effectiveness of each hedge is verified both at the time each
derivative instrument is entered into and during its life, and in particular, at the close of the financial year
or interim period. Generally, a hedge is considered highly “effective” if, both at the inception and during
its life, fair value changes, in the event of a fair value hedge, or hedge of expected future cash flows, in
the event of cash flow hedges, in the hedged element are essentially offset by fair value changes in the
hedging instrument.

IFRS 9 provides the possibility of designating the following three hedging relationships:

d) fair value hedge: when the hedge concerns the fair value changes of assets and liabilities booked
to the financial statements, both the fair value changes in the hedging instrument and the changes
in the object of the hedge are booked to the income statement.

e) cash flow hedges: in the event of hedges aimed at neutralising the risk of changes in cash flows
originating from the future fulfilment of obligations defined contractually at the reporting date, the
fair value changes in the derivative instrument recorded after the initial recognition are accounted
for, limited solely to the effective portion, in the statement of comprehensive income and,
therefore, in a shareholders’ equity reserve called “Reserve for cash flow hedges”.

When the economic effects originating from the object of the hedge materialise, the portion
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accounted for in the statement of comprehensive income is reversed to the income statement. If
the hedge is not fully effective, the change in fair value of the hedging instrument relating to the
ineffective portion of the same is immediately recognised in the income statement.

¢) hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation (net investment hedge).

If the checks do not confirm hedge effectiveness, as from that moment, accounting for the hedging
transactions is suspended and the derivative contract is reclassified under financial assets designated at
fair value through profit and loss or under financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit and
loss. The hedging relationship also ceases when

o the derivative expires, is sold, cancelled or exercised,

e the element being hedged is sold, expires or is reimbursed,

e itis no longer highly probable that the future hedged transaction will be carried out.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised from the financial statements when:
o the rights to receive the cash flows from the asset are extinguished;
¢ the company has transferred the right to receive the cash flows from the asset or assumed the
contractual obligation to pay them in full and without delay to a third party and (a) has transferred
substantially all rights and benefits of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all risks and benefits of the asset, but has transferred
control of it.

In cases in which the company has transferred the rights to receive the cash flows from an asset and has
not substantially transferred or retained all the risks and benefits or has lost control of the asset, the asset
is recognised in the company’s financial statements to the extent of its continuing involvement in said
asset. In this case, the company also recognises an associated liability. The asset transferred and the
associated liability are measured to reflect the rights and obligations that the company has retained.

Equity investments

Equity investments in subsidiary, associated and jointly-controlled companies, according to IAS 27, are
initially entered at cost and, following acquisition, are adjusted as a result of changes in the investor’s
share in the investee company’s net assets. The profit or loss of the investor reflects its own share of the
profit (loss) for the year of the investee and other comprehensive income (expense) of the investor reflects
its own share of other comprehensive income (expense) of the investee. Subsequent assessment are
carried out in accordance with the previous paragraph “Impairment of non-financial assets”

According to the provisions of IFRS 9 and IAS 32, the equity investments in companies other than
subsidiaries, associated companies and jointly-controlled companies are classified as assets at fair value
and entered in the income statement or shareholders’ equity reserve depending on whether they fall into
the FVOCI or FVPL measurement categories. Gains and losses deriving from value adjustments are
therefore booked to the income statement or a shareholders’ equity reserve respectively.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at purchase cost, including any accessory expenses, determined in accordance
with the FIFO method, and the presumed net realisable value drawn from market trends, whichever is the
lower. IEG Group inventories are composed primarily of consumables and products held for sale in bars
and catering services.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand as well as on-demand bank deposits and other treasury
investments with an original envisaged maturity of no more than three months.

The definition of cash and cash equivalents of the cash flow statement corresponds to that of the balance
sheet.

Provisions for risks and charges

Allocations to provisions for risks and charges are made whenever the Group must meet a present
obligation (legal or implicit) as the result of a past event, whose amount can be estimated reliably and
involving a probable outlay of resources to meet the obligation. If the expectations of the use of resources
go beyond the next year, the obligation is booked at the present value, determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows discounted at a rate which also takes into account the cost of borrowing and
the risk of the liability.

Risks for which the occurrence of a liability is only possible are indicated in the appropriate section on
“guarantees given, commitments and other contingent liabilities” and no allocation is made.

Employee benefits

The employee benefits provided on or after the termination of the employment contract are composed of
employee severance indemnity or retirement provisions.

Law no. 296 of 27 December 2006, the “2007 Finance Law” introduced major changes to the allocation
of amounts of the provision for employee severance indemnity. Until 31 December 2006, employee
severance indemnity fell under post-employment plans known as “defined-benefit plans” and were
measured according to IAS 19, using the projected unit credit method carried out by independent
actuaries.

This calculation consists of estimating the amount of the benefit that an employee will receive at the
presumed date of termination of employment by using demographic assumptions (e.g. mortality rate and
staff turnover rate) and financial assumptions (e.g. discount rate and future salary increases). The amount
determined in this way is discounted and reproportioned on the basis of the length of service accrued with
respect to total length of service and represents a reasonable estimate of the benefits that each employee
has already accrued based on their work services.

Following said reform, the provision for employee severance indemnity, for the part accrued from 1
January 2007, is to be considered essentially similar to a “defined contribution plan”. In particular, these
changes introduced the possibility for the worker to choose where to allocate their employee severance
indemnity being accrued: the new flows of the employee severance indemnity can, in companies with
more than 50 employees, be allocated by the worker to pre-established pension funds or maintained in
the company and transferred to the INPS (ltalian National Social Security Institute). In short, for the
employee severance indemnity accrued prior to 2007, the IEG Group carried out an actuarial evaluation,
without subsequently including the component relating to future salary increases. The part subsequently
accrued was instead accounted for according to the methods attributable to defined contribution plans.

EC Regulation no. 475/2012 was issued in 2012, which acknowledged, at EU level, the revised version
of IAS 19 (Employee Benefits) applicable, as per mandatory requirements, from 1 January 2013 according
to the retrospective method. Therefore, the IEG Group applied said revised version of IAS 19 from the
date of transition to the IAS/IFRS, or 1 January 2014.
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Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value, equal to the consideration received at the
relevant date, augmented, in the case of payables and loans, by the directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequently, non-derivative financial liabilities are measured using the amortised cost criterion, by using
the effective interest rate method.

Financial liabilities that are included in the scope of application of IFRS 9 are classified as payables and
loans, or as hedging derivatives, depending on the case. The Company determines the classification of
its financial liabilities on initial recognition.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the liability is extinguished as well as
through the amortisation process.

The amortised cost is calculated by recognising all discounts or bonuses on the purchase and the fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Amortisation at the effective interest rate is
included among financial charges in the income statement.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation underlying the liability is discharged, cancelled, or
expires.

In the event that an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender, in substantially
different conditions, or the conditions of an existing liability substantially change, the exchange or
amendment is treated as an accounting derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, with any differences in the carrying amount recorded in the income statement.

Put options on minority interests

The Group granted put options to minority shareholders which entitle the latter to sell to the Group the
shares held by them at a future date.

As regards EU-IFRS, the treatment applicable to put options regarding minority interests is not fully
regulated. While, in fact, it has been established that the accounting of a put option on minority interests
gives rise to the recognition of a liability, its contra-entry has not been governed. In this regard, when an
entity becomes party to a contract as a result of which it assumes an obligation to pay cash or another
financial asset in exchange for one of its equity instruments, in compliance with the provisions of
paragraph 23 of IAS 32, it must record a financial liability. At the moment of initial recognition, the financial
liability will be recognised to the extent corresponding to the amount, appropriately discounted, which
must be paid for the exercise of the put option. The subsequent changes in the value of the liability will
be recognised in the consolidated income statement.

In order to identify the contra-entry of the recognition of the liability, the company must evaluate whether
the risks and benefits of ownership of the minority interests forming the object of the put option have been,
due to the conditions of exercise of the option, transferred to the parent company or have remained with
the owners of said interests. Based on the results of this analysis, it will depend whether the minority
interests forming the object of the put option continue to be represented or not in the consolidated financial
statements. They will be if the above-mentioned risks and benefits are not transferred to the parent
company through the put option, vice versa, where the transfer has occurred, these minority interests will
cease to be represented in the consolidated financial statements.

Therefore, the accounting treatment of the put options on the shares of the parent company can be
summarised as follows:

e in the event in which the minority interests do not need to be represented in the financial
statements given that the related risks and benefits have been transferred to the parent company,
the liability relating to the put option will be recognised:

» with a goodwill contra-entry, if the put option is recognised to the seller as part of a
business combination; or

> with contra-entry of minorities’ shareholders’ equity to these interests in the event in which
the contract is signed outside this scope; vice versa
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e if the transfer of the risks and benefits has not occurred, the contra-entry for the recognition of the
aforementioned liability will always be the shareholders’ equity pertaining to the Parent Company.

Tax payables for direct taxes and other liabilities

Payables are recognised at nominal value. Payables are eliminated from the financial statements when
the underlying financial obligations have been extinguished.

The liabilities, if expiring after twelve months, are discounted in order to bring them back to the current
value through the use of a rate as such to reflect the market evaluations of the present value of money
and the specific risks connected with the liability. Discounting interest is classified under financial charges.

Hedging instruments
The IEG Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. The Group
has never owned speculative financial instruments. These financial instruments are accounted for using
the rules of hedge accounting when:
- Atthe inception of the existing hedge, the formal designation and documentation of said hedging
relationship;
- Itis presumed that the hedge is highly effective;
- The effectiveness can be reliably measured and said hedge is highly effective during the
designated periods.
The IEG Group applies the accounting of cash flow hedges in the event in which there is formal
documentation of the hedging relationship of the changes in cash flows originating from an asset or liability
or a future transaction (underlying element hedged) considered highly likely and which could impact the
income statement.
The measurement criterion of the hedging instruments is represented by the fair value at the designated
date. The fair value of the interest rate derivatives is determined by their market value at the designated
date when it refers to future cash flow hedges. It is booked to the hedging reserve of shareholders’ equity
and transferred to the income statement when the underlying financial charge/income materialises.

In cases in which the instruments do not meet the required conditions for the accounting of hedging
instruments set out in 1AS 39, the fair value changes are booked to the income statement as financial
charges/income.

Translation of foreign currency items

Transactions in foreign currency are initially recognised in the functional currency, using the spot
exchange rate at the transaction date. Monetary assets and liabilities, denominated in foreign currency,
are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period. The
differences are posted to the income statement.

Shareholders’ equity

Share capital

The amount of Share Capital to be entered in the financial statements coincides with that of Capital Issued,;
the latter must be stated on the Balance Sheet at nominal value, i.e. the number of shares (ordinary,

preferential and savings) multiplied by their nominal value, net of any part of the Share Capital Subscribed
that has not yet been paid-up.
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Company’s own shares

Treasury shares are entered as a reduction of the share capital for the nominal value and the share
premium reserve for the excess amount, the original cost of the treasury shares and the revenues from
any subsequent sales are recognised as changes in shareholders’ equity.

With reference to the IAS/IFRS, and more specifically to IAS 32, when purchasing treasury shares, the
amount equal to the nominal value of the securities is used as a direct reduction of share capital while the
amount ranging between this and the purchase price affects the share premium reserve. In the event of
sale, the share capital is re-formed, as is the share premium reserve, thereby assigning the same amounts
as had been respectively reduced during purchase and noting any gains/losses brought about by the
differences between the purchase price and price of sale, directly to other reserves.

The transaction costs of these transactions are booked as a reduction of the shareholders' equity, without
any impact on the income statement.

Acknowledging the proceeds
Revenues from contracts with customers are recognized when the following conditions are met:
¢ the contract with the customer has been identified;
¢ the performance obligations contained in the contract have been identified;
e the price has been determined;
e the price has been allocated to the individual performance obligations contained in the contract;
o the performance obligation contained in the contract has been satisfied.

The Group recognises revenues from contracts with customers when (or as) it fulfils the obligation by
transferring the promised good or service (or asset) to the customer. The asset is transferred when (or
as) the customer acquires control over it.
The Group transfers control of the good or service over time, and therefore fulfils the performance
obligation and recognises the revenues over time, if one of the following criteria is satisfied:
e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the entity's
performance as the entity performs;
e the Group’s performance creates or enhances the asset (for example, work in progress) that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced,;
e the Group’s performance does not create an asset that has an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to the date considered.

If the performance obligation is not fulfilled over time, it is fulfilled at a point in time. In that case, the Group
recognises the revenue at the moment in which the customer acquires control of the promised asset.

Revenue is recorded at fair value equal to the amount received or due, taking into account any trade
discounts granted or reductions linked to quantities sold.

The Group believes that the customer acquires control of all services provided to it at the end of the event,
owing to its short duration.

Public grants are only noted where we can be reasonably certain that they will be received and all related
conditions have been met, regardless, therefore, of the presence of any formal concession resolution.
Grants are noted as income in the year in which they fall due and when correlated with an asset, they are
recognised as income on a straight-line basis, throughout the expected useful life of the underlying asset.
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Note that the Covid Contributions are classified as “non-recurring” items in these financial statements.

Operating costs

Costs are recognised when they relate to goods and services sold or consumed in the period or for
systematic allocation or when their future use cannot be identified.

Personnel expenses also include, on an accruals basis, taking into account the period of actual service,
the fees to directors, both fixed and variable.

Sundry tax other , than income tax and rates , are noted directly as profit or loss and therefore come under
the item of operating costs.

Costs that do not meet the conditions to be recognised under balance sheet assets are booked to the
income statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Financial income and expense
Financial income and expense are recognised according to a time criterion that takes into account the
actual return/expense of the relevant asset/liability.

Dividends

Revenues for dividends are recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment is established,
which normally coincides with the date of the annual shareholders’ meeting that resolves on the
distribution of the dividends, , taking into account treasury shares held.

Taxation

Taxes for the period include current and deferred taxes. Income tax are generally booked to the income
statement, except where they relate to events recorded directly in shareholders’ equity. In this case, the
income taxes are also booked directly to shareholders' equity.

Current taxes are the taxes the company expects to have to pay on taxable income in the year and are
calculated in compliance with the legislation in force at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are calculated based on the liability method applied to the temporary differences
between the amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding values recognised for tax purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are calculated using tax rates
that are expected to apply at the moment in which in which the asset is realised or the liability settled.
Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is likely that taxable income sufficient for said assets to be
realised will be generated in the following years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only offset when there is a legal right to offset and when they refer
to taxes due to the same tax authorities.

The tax provisions that may be generated by the transfer of non-distributed profit from the subsidiaries
are made only when there is a real intention to transfer said profit.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires Directors to use accounting principles
and methods that, in some instances, require the use of complex and subjective valuations and estimates
drawn from historical experience and assumptions that, in each case, are deemed to be reasonable and
realistic under the circumstances existing at that time.

The use of these estimates and assumptions has an impact on the amounts reported in the financial
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statements, which include the statement of financial position, the income statement and the cash flow
statement, as well as the explanatory notes.

The final amounts shown in the consolidated financial statements for which the above-mentioned
estimates and assumptions were used may differ from the amounts reported in the financial statements
of the individual companies due to the uncertainty that is inherent in the assumptions and the conditions
upon which the estimates were based.

The financial statements items that, more than others, require greater subjective input by the Directors in
the preparation of estimates and for which a change in the conditions underlying the assumptions used
could have a material impact on the company’s separate financial statements mainly concern:
e the measurement of fixed assets (amortisation/depreciation and any write-downs due to
impairment, price allocations);
e the measurement of receivables;
e the recognition and quantification of contingent assets and liabilities;
e the determination of deferred tax assets/liabilities and income taxes;
¢ the determination of liabilities relating to “Employee severance indemnity” accrued prior to 2007,
which was carried out by making use of the actuarial evaluation prepared by independent
actuaries;
¢ financial payables on put options and conditional earn-outs;
e risk provisions;
e fair value of financial instruments.
With reference to fixed assets, notice is hereby given that, for the impairment test, the processes and
measurement methods and the methods for calculating the estimates are based on complex assumptions
relating to revenues, operating costs, margins, investments, rates of growth in the terminal value and
discount rates differentiated for each of the CGUs identified, to which the different scenarios subject to
sensitivity analysis are applied.
With reference to the measurement of receivables, notice is hereby given that the bad debt provisions
reflects the estimates of expected losses for the Group's loan portfolio. Allocations were made to cover
expected losses on loans, estimated on the basis of previous experience with reference to loans with
similar credit risk, to amounts of current and historical unpaid amounts, as well as careful monitoring of
the quality of the loan portfolio and the current and expected conditions and reference markets. The
estimates and assumptions are periodically reviewed and the impact of any change recognised in the
income statement in the relevant year.
With reference to the measurement of financial instruments, notice is hereby given that the fair value of
unlisted financial assets is determined through financial measurement techniques used that require basic
assumptions and estimates. These assumptions may not materialise in the times and methods envisaged.
Therefore, the estimates prepared by the Group may differ from the final data.
The parameters used to draw up the estimates are commented on in the Explanatory notes to the
consolidated financial statements. The estimates and assumptions are periodically reviewed and the
impact of any change recognised immediately in the income statement. For matters not specifically
addressed, please refer to the respective paragraphs in "Measurement criteria”.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The company is exposed to financial risks related to its activities, in particular relating to the following
types:
e credit risk, deriving from commercial transactions or financing activities;
¢ liquidity risk, relating to the availability of financial resources and access to the credit market;
o market risk (composed of exchange rate risk, interest rate risk, price risk), with particular reference
to interest rate risk, relating to the exposure to the company on financial instruments that generate
interest.

Credit risk

The credit risk to which the company is subject falls under normal commercial activities, both owing to the
fragmentation of positions and the excellent credit quality historically recorded. The positions considered
at risk were, nonetheless, written down accordingly. In order to contain the risks deriving from the
management of trade receivables, an appropriate department has been set up to systematically
coordinate the reminder activities managed, in the initial phase, by the sales structures, subsequently by
the credit manager and, finally, entrusted to the legal representative or specialised companies. The
software implemented by the company keeps a track of each reminder.

The table below shows the breakdown by past due brackets, of the receivables past due as at 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2021 and the overall value of the Bad Debt Provision.

Analysis of past due

Falling Past 91-180 181-365 Beyond 365  Bad debt
0-90 days L
due due days days days provision
TRADE
RECEIVABLES 24,284 10,402 19,214 12,095 1,055 783 5,282 (5,332)
Balance as Analysis of past due
Falli P 1-1 181- B B
alling ast 0-90 days 91-180 81-365 eyond 365 ad .d.ebt
due due days days days provision
TRADE
RECEIVABLES 6,059 17,429 10,665 1,129 471 5,163 (4,419)

The bad debt provision is calculated on the basis of the criteria of presumed recoverability, through both
internal evaluations and with the support of external legal representatives. For more details on changes
in the Bad debt provision, please refer to Note 9) Trade receivables.

Liquidity risk
The company believes it is fundamentally important to maintain a level of available funds suited to its
requirements and those of the Group.
The two main factors that determine the liquidity situation are, on the one hand, the resources generated
or absorbed by operating and investment activities, and on the other, the maturity and renewal
characteristics of the debt or of the liquidity of financial investments and market conditions.
The company has adopted a series of policies and processes for optimising the management of financial
resources, reducing liquidity risk through:

¢ maintenance of an adequate level of available liquidity;

e obtainment of adequate credit lines;

e monitoring future liquidity conditions in relation to the company's planning process.
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As part of this type of risk, as regards the composition of net financial indebtedness, the company tends
to finance investments with medium/long-term payables, while it meets current commitments with both
the cash flow generated by operations and by using short-term credit lines.

The table below shows the breakdown and maturity of financial payables and trade payables:

Euro/000 Within 1 year From 1to 5 years Due after 5 years Total

31/12/2022

Payables due to banks 16,109 61,777 19,978 97,864
Financial liabilities on rights of use 1,681 5,815 11,302 18,798
Other financial liabilities 2,738 1,441 4,179
Trade payables 37,285 37,285

158,126

Euro/000 Within 1 year From 1to 5 years Due after 5 years Total
31/12/2021

Payables due to banks 18,459 54,371 33,297 106,127
Financial liabilities on rights of use 1,265 5,956 13,460 20,681
Other financial liabilities 4,687 5,496 10,183
Trade payables 26,780 26,780

163,771

For further information on the breakdown of the items reported in the table, please refer to Notes 15, 16, 17, 21, 22, 23.

It is noted that the balance of “Other financial liabilities” at 31 December 2022 does not include the fair
value of derivatives, insofar as these have been reclassified amongst non-current financial assets.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company can rely on 18.5 million euros of unused credit lines, cash and
cash equivalents of 41.5 million euros and trade receivables, for 24 million euros; it therefore has sufficient
liquid funds to cope with the short-term financial needs, even taking into account the general economic
context of the period.

Market risk

The company reserves the right to intervene with suitable hedges if the market risk factors should become
significant.

The market risk consists of the exchange rate risk, the interest rate risk and the price risk, as described
below.

Exchange rate risk

The IEG Group, operating in a global context, is naturally exposed to exchange rate risk deriving from the
fluctuation in exchange rates, in particular, vis-a-vis the US Dollar for the investment made in the
subsidiary FB International Inc., vis-a-vis the United Arab Emirates for the investment made in HBG FZ
LLC, vis-a-vis the Brazilian Real for the investment made in the subsidiary IEG Brasil and vis-a-vis the
Chinese Renminbi for the investment made in the Subsidiary Europe Asia Global Link Exhibition Ltd and
vis-a-vis the Singapore dollar following the establishment of IEG Asia Pte Ltd, based in the Republic of
Singapore.

The exchanges rates against the Euro (foreign currency for euro units) adopted to translate the items
denominated in another currency are shown below:
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Currency Exchange rate at Average Exchange rate at Average

31/12/2022 exchange rate 31/12/2021 exchange rate

3.9171 3.8673 4.15950 4.34361
US dollar 1.0666 1.0530 1.13260 1.18274

Brazilian Real 5.6386 5.4399 6.31010 6.37789

Chinese Renminbi 7.3582 7.0788 7.19470 7.62823

Singapore Dollar 1.4300 1.4512 1.5279 1.5891

The functional currency, defined by the IAS as the currency of the economic environment in which the
company mainly operates, is the euro.

As at 31 December 2021, a change of +/- 1% in the above rates versus the Euro, based on all other
variables remaining the same, would not have involved significant differences to the pre-tax result and,
therefore, to the corresponding variation in shareholders’ equity.

Interest rate risk

In order to carry out its activities, the company obtains finance on the market by taking out primarily floating
rate debt (linked to the Euribor), hence exposing itself to the risk deriving from an increase in interest
rates.

The objective of interest risk management is to limit and stabilise flows of expenses due to interest paid
primarily on medium-term payables to ensure close correlation between the underlying and the hedging
instrument.

The hedging activity, evaluated and decided on a case by case basis, is carried out predominantly through
derivatives, typically purchases of caps and sales of floors that, when a certain level is reached, transform
a variable rate to a fixed rate.

In 2022, the company constantly monitored market conditions so as to be able to take action promptly in
the event of repeated changes in scenario.

Price risk

The type of activity performed by the company, essentially represented by the provision of services that
do not require a process of purchase-transformation of assets, is as such that the risk of fluctuations in
asset prices is not particularly significant. The majority of the purchases made in relation to business
activities is represented by the provision of service whose value is not immediately influenced by
macroeconomic changes in the prices of the main commaodities. In addition, as stated in relation to
exchange rate risk, sales are almost all in the accounting currency and purchases not in Euro are
negligible.

The risk on the price changes in raw materials, with electricity and gas being amongst the most significant,
called for greater checks and controls by the Company. Maintenance of consumption was guaranteed by
the favourable temperatures that continued through to late autumn and the centralised heating
management policy, in line with government indications.

For the sake of complete disclosure, it should be noted that, as at 31 December 2022, the company is
exposed to a minimal extent to the price risk associated with investments in listed equities, as it has made
a small investment in the shares of the company Gambero Rosso.

Fair value
IFRS 13 defines the following three levels of fair value to which to refer the measurement of financial
instruments recognised in the statement of financial position.

o Levell: prices quoted on an active market;
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o Level 2: Inputs other than the listed prices described for Level 1, which can be directly (price)
or indirectly (price derivatives) observed on the market;

e Level 3: Inputs that are not based on observable market data.

The following tables show the classification of financial assets and liabilities and the level of inputs used

for the fair value measurement, as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

31/12/2022
Amortised el viElis {:harigl:/gaLue
Notes Level cost through profit and Total
oel loss
ASSETS
Other equity investments 5 2-3 9,248 70 9,344
Non-current financial assets 7 1-2 1,703 524 2,227
Other non-current assets 8 184 184
Trade receivables 9 24,285 24,285
Current financial assets 11 2 7,079 7,079
Other current assets 12 3,664 3,664
Cash and cash equivalents 13 41,578 41,578
TOTAL ASSETS 76,790 10,951 594 88,361
LIABILITIES
Non-current payables due to banks 15 81,755 81,755
Other non-current financial liabilities 17 2 18,558 18,558
Other non-current liabilities 20 1,805 1,805
Current payables due to banks 15 16,109 16,109
Other current financial liabilities 22 4,419 4,419
Trade payables 23 37,285 37,285
Other current liabilities 25 45,649 45,649
TOTAL LIABILITIES 205,580 0 0 205,580
31/12/2021
: : Fair value
Level Amortised Fair value through profit Total
cost through OCI
and loss
ASSETS
Other equity investments 5 2-3 10,770 70 10,840
Non-current financial assets 7 1-2 360 360
Other non-current assets 8 69 69
Trade receivables 9 19,069 19,069
Current financial assets 11 2 3,126 3,126
Other current assets 12 4,747 4,747
Cash and cash equivalents 13 42,178 42,178
TOTAL ASSETS 69,189 10,770 430 80,389
LIABILITIES
Non-current payables due to 15 87,667 87,667
banks
Other non-current financial 17 2 21,339 434 3,139 24,912
liabilities
Other non-current liabilities 20 2,020 2,020
Current payables due to banks 15 18,550 18,550
Other current financial liabilities 22 6,001 6,001
Trade payables 23 26,780 26,780
Other current liabilities 25 32,345 32,345
TOTAL LIABILITIES 194,702 434 3,139 198,275
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If the fair value is not borne out by a price listed on a market or not based on a measurement technique
based purely on observable market data, the Group will not, as specified by accounting standard IFRS
7, note the gain or loss as profit and loss when initially booked and shall specify which accounting
standards it adopted in noting the difference between the initial fair value recorded and the transaction
price on the income statement, to reflect a hypothetical change in factors (including time) that the market
participants may take into consideration to determine a specific price.
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IFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS APPLIED FROM 1
JANUARY 2022 OR APPLICABLE IN ADVANCE

In 2022, the IEG Group adopted the following new accounting standards, amendments and
interpretations, revised by the IASB.
o Amendment to IFRS 3 — Business combinations. This document, issued by the IASB on
22 October 2018, is targeted at resolving the difficulties that arise when an entity
determines whether it has acquired a company or a group of assets. The application of this
amendment on the consolidated financial statements of the IEG Group has not had any
significant impact.

o Amendment to IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. This
amendment, issued by IASB in May 2020, indicates which costs must be considered in
order to evaluate whether a contract can be defined as an onerous contract. The
application of this amendment on the consolidated financial statements of the IEG Group
has not had any significant impact.

o Annual Improvements 2018-2020: In May 2020, the IASB issued some amendments to
IFRS 1 First time adoption of IFRS, IFRS 9 Financial instruments, IAS 41 Agriculture and
to the illustrative examples accompanying IFRS 16 Leases. The application of this
amendment on the consolidated financial statements of the IEG Group has not had any
significant impact.

o Amendment to IAS 16, Property Plant and Equipment. The purpose of the amendment is
to set some constraints on some types of capitalisable expenses in order to make the asset
available and ready to be used. The application of this amendment on the consolidated
financial statements of the IEG Group has not had any significant impact.

NEW IFRS AND IFRIC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS NOT
YET APPLICABLE AND NOT ADOPTED EARLY BY THE IEG GROUP

Following are the new accounting standards, amendments and interpretations, approved by the
competent bodies of the European Union. The IEG Group is assessing the impacts that the application of
these will have on the consolidated financial statements. The new accounting standards, amendments
and interpretations will be adopted according to the effective dates of introduction as reported below:

+ Amendment to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, to IFRS Practice Statement 2:
Disclosure of Accounting policies and IAS 8 Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors: Definition of Accounting Estimates. The specified amendments
issued by the IASB on 12 February 2021 aim to improve the disclosure on accounting
policies and aim to help companies distinguish between the effects that can cause changes
in the accounting estimates with respect to those deriving from changes in the main
accounting policies. The amendments came into effect from 1 January 2023.

+ IFRS17 Insurance Contracts: this standard introduces a new accounting approach to
insurance contracts by insurance companies, to date indicated in IFRS 4 (in force). These
amendments aim to make the accounting of insurance products more transparent and to
improve the consistency of their accounting representation. The standard came into force
on 1 January 2023.
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Amendments to IFRS17 Insurance contracts: Initial Application of IFRS17 and IFRS9 —
Comparative Information: this amendment is intended to help the entities to avoid
temporary accounting mismatches between financial assets and liabilities deriving from
insurance contracts and thus improve the usefulness of comparative information for
financial statement readers. This amendment came into force on 1 January 2023.

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes: Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction: this amendment clarifies how deferred taxes should be
accounted for on certain transactions that can generate assets and liabilities of equal
amounts, such as leases and decommissioning obligations.
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COMMENTS ON MAIN ASSET ITEMS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

1) Property, plant and equipment
The fixed assets were subject to a monetary revaluation in previous years pursuant to law no. 266/2005
carried out, partly, through the revaluation of the historical cost and, partly through the reduction of
accumulated depreciation. Therefore, the historical cost of the fixed assets at the end of the previous year
was determined as follows:

Monetary revaluations

Historical cost Law no. 266/2005 Balance as at
31/12/2021

Land and buildings 287,834 293,912
Accumulated depreciation - buildings (130,659) (130,125)
Plant and machinery 75,899 75,899
Accumulated depreciation - plant and (68,417) (68,026)
machinery
Industrial and commercial equipment 15,165 15,165
Accumulated depreciation - equipment (14,003) (14,003)
Other assets 18,132 18,132
Accumulated depreciation - Other assets (14,415) (14,415)
Fixed assets under construction and 3,870 3,870
payments on account

The table below details the changes in fixed assets in the last two financial years.

Changes 2021 Balance
Balance as at 31/12/2020 ncreases 'FRS 16 DecreasesWrite- . .~ Depreciation _ . [iiad at
changes downs IFRS 16 31/12/2021
Land and buildings
Book value 290,242 2,848 2,094 (1,806) 293,912
Amortisation (125,651) 1,513 379 (2,348) (130,125)
Total land and
- 164,591 2,848 3,607 (1,427) (1,348) 534 163,786
buildings
Plant and machinery 0
Book value 75,778 75,899
Amortisation (66,471) (68,026)
Total . plant and 9,307 7,873
machinery
Industrial and
commercial
equipment
Book value 15,131 15,165
Amortisation (13,606) (14,003)
Total industrial and
commercial 1,525 1,162
equipment
Other assets
Book value 17,924 18,132
Amortisation (13,698) (14,415)
Total other assets 4,225 3,717
Fixed assets under
construction and
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payments on account

Book value 3,732 3,870
Total Fixed assets
tructi
under  construction 3,732 3,870
and payments on
account
TOTAL 183,380 3,955 3,607 (1,441) (7,733) (1,360) 180,408
Changes 2022 Balance
Balance as at 31/12/2021 Increases IFRS Decreases Amortisation Amortisation/depreciation Transfers as
changes IFRS 31/12/2022
Land and
buildings
Book value 293,912 295,741
Amortisation (130,125) (136,683)
Total |
otal land and ;705 MR (4,966) 159,058
buildings
Plant and
machinery
Book value 75,899 78,120
Amortisation (68,026) (69,418)
Total.plant and 7,873 8,702
machinery
Industrial and
commercial
equipment
Book value 15,165 15,390
Amortisation (14,003) (14,375)
Total industrial
and commercial 1,162 1,015
equipment
Other assets
Book value 18,132 180 (150) 18,461
Amortisation (14,415) 128 (734) (15,066)
Total —other 5,5 180 22) (734) 3,395
assets
Fixed assets
under
construction and 0
payments on 477
account
Book value 3,870 (2,971)
Total Fixed
assets under
construction 3,870 (2,971) 477
and payments
on account
TOTAL 180,408 2,852 1,536 (2,993) (7,464) 172,646

The net value of “Land and buildings” as at 31 December 2022 amounted to roughly 159 million euros,
a net decrease of approximately 4.7 million euros. The increases of 0.5 million relate to improvements
made to the trade fair districts of Rimini and Vicenza and the Project for the requalification of green areas
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at the Rimini trade fair district. The increases linked to the application of IFRS 16 are due to the accounting
of the change to the rental contract of Palazzo dei Congressi. The reductions relate to period amortisation
for approximately 5 million and the amortisation of rights of use recorded in accordance with IFRS 16 for
1.6 million.

The net value of item “Plant and machinery” as at 31 December 2022 amounted to 8.7 million euros, a
net increase of 0.8 million. The increases of 1.6 million refer to improvements made to the plants of the
trade fair districts of Rimini and Vicenza for 1.3 million and the development of a new CED room for 0.3
million. Depreciation for the period totalled 1.4 million.

The item “Industrial and commercial equipment”, with a balance of 1 million, recorded a net decrease
of 0.1 million euros. The period increases do not record any significant changes and
amortisation/depreciation amounts to 372 thousand euros.

The item “Other assets”, with a balance of 3.4 million euros, recorded a net decrease of 0.3 million euros.
Period increases came to 0.3 million euros, due to the purchase of trade fair equipment, office machines
and vehicles and leasehold improvements. The increase in relation to the accounting for IFRS 16 of 180
thousand euros is due to the recording of new vehicle rental contracts. Period amortisation/depreciation
came to 734 thousand euros and the amortisation of rights of use under IFRS 16 came to 45 thousand
euros.

Finally, “Assets under construction & payments on account” shows a reduction of 3.0 million euros
relative to the abandonment of the project to expand and requalify the district of Rimini, which envisaged
the development of a large, circular, multi-purpose hall measuring approximately 17,000 square metres
in gross exhibition space, as per the decision taken by the Board of Directors on 18 July, during the
presentation and approval of the new Business Plan through to 2027. Note an increase of 165 thousand
euros relative to the requalification works on the trade fair pole of Vicenza, which began in 2022.

The property at Via Emilia 155 (Rimini trade fair district) is encumbered by a first mortgage of 150 million
euros issued as a guarantee of the loan granted by the pool of banks headed by Credit Agricole ltalia
S.p.A. The first priority mortgage is granted in favour of each of the Original Secured Creditors in the
following amounts:

- inreference to Crédit Agricole Italia, within the total limit of 50 million;

- inreference to BNL, within the total limit of 26 million;

- inreference to Banco Popolare - BPM, within the total limit of 22 million;

- inreference to BPER, within the total limit of 26 million;

- inreference to Credito Sportivo, within the total limit of 26 million.
The property in Vicenza, via dell’'Oreficeria 16 (Vicenza trade fair district) is encumbered by a first
mortgage of 84 million euros to guarantee the loan granted by Intesa San Paolo (formerly Banca Popolare
di Vicenza) and drawn down in 2008.
It is specified that the mortgages are noted at the time the entry is made in the register of properties.

2) Intangible fixed assets

The tables below indicate the changes in the last two financial years.

Changes in 2021

Balance
Amortisation,
Balance as at 31/12/2020 ot as at
depreciation 31/12/202
Increases Decreases Transfers
and 1
impairment
Industrial patent and intellectual property rights 581 217 (334) 465
Concessions, licenses, trademarks and similar 8,129 (496) 7,633
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rights
Goodwill 8,211 8,211
Other intangible fixed assets 4,330 (994) 3,336
TOTAL 21,251 (1,823) 19,646
Balance
Balance as at 31/12/2021 Amort's.at'.on’ as at
Increases Decreases depreciation Transfers 31/12/202
and 2
impairment
Industrial patent and intellectual property rights 465 478
CFoncessmns, licenses, trademarks and similar 7,633 7,138
rights
Goodwill 8,211 8,211
Other intangible fixed assets 3,336 2,544
Fixed assets under construction and payments on 644
account
TOTAL 19,646 (1,628) 19,015

Under the item “Industrial patents and intellectual property rights”, the costs for the purchase of
software licences and legally protected intellectual property are capitalised. The balance at the end of the
period amounted to approximately 0.5 million euros. The increases refer to software licence purchases
and the development of the new CRM (customer relationship management) software, while decreases
are due to period amortisation/depreciation.

The item “Concessions, licenses, trademarks and similar rights” recorded a decrease of 0.5 million
euros compared with 31 December 2021, due to the amortisations for the period.

"Other intangible assets” reduced by 792 million euros, mainly due to period amortisation.

“Assets under construction & payments on account” recorded a balance of 644 thousand euros and
relates to investments in the project to digitise the platforms called the “Rubicon Project

The item “Goodwill” includes the values generated by the surplus between the cost of the business
combinations and the fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired. At 31 December
2022, the balance of Goodwill came to approximately 8.2 million euros and did not change during the
year.

As outlined in the chapter relating to the “Measurement criteria”, goodwill is subject to impairment testing
at the date of year-end or more frequently if there are indicators of impairment. At the date of drafting of
this document, no indicators of possible impairment of the goodwill recorded were identified. The values
resulting from the acquisitions and booked to the company’s financial statements are set out below.

Balance as at Balance as at

31/12/2022 31/12/2021
Goodwill emerging from the transfer of Fiera di Vicenza 7,948 7,948
Other goodwill 263 263

TOTAL GOODWILL 8,211 8,211

As outlined in the chapter relating to the “Measurement criteria”, goodwill, excluding that emerged from
the recent acquisitions indicated previously, is subject to impairment testing at the date of year-end (or
more frequently if there are indicators of impairment), using the methodology described in the paragraph
“Impairment of non-financial assets”. In particular, the impairment test verifies the recoverability of
goodwill by comparing the Net Capital Invested, including the value of the goodwill, of the CGU to which
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the goodwill was allocated, with the Recoverable value of said CGU/group of CGUs, represented by the
higher of the fair value, less disposal costs, and the value in use.
Goodwill emerging from the transfer of Fiera di Vicenza was allocated to the “IEG CGU” as the recipient
of the benefits of the business combination. These benefits refer to the acquired capacity to be recognised
on the market as an aggregator, the synergies deriving from the use and optimisation of the workforce
with the elimination of duplications, the sharing of mutual best practices, the comparison of the services
provided by the suppliers with price savings, the acquisition of specific expertise to grow on the foreign
market.
For the IEG CGU, the relevant value in use was determined by adopting the CGU Discounted Cash Flow
(DCF) methodology. Unlevered free cash flows were determined by using the 2022- 2027 Business Plan
approved by the Board of Directors of IEG on 18 July 2022 and subsequently updated accordingly to the
2023 Budget approved by the Board of Directors of IEG on 19 December 2022
For the determination of the Terminal Value, a long-term growth rate “g” of 2% was used, in line with the
expected inflation forecast in Italy in 2027 based on International Monetary Fund estimates.
For the discounting of the explicit cash flows and the Terminal Value, a WACC of 11.68% was used, which
includes a Small Size Premium of 3.00%, in consideration of the smaller size of the Group with respect to
comparable companies (Source: Duff & Phelps) while, compared with previous valuations, the Specific
Risk Premium of 1.00% that had been inserted during the pandemic years to take account of the
“execution risk” resulting from the reduced forecasting capacity generated by the effects of COVID-19,
was eliminated.
The impairment test carried out, at the reference date based on the methods described above, brought to
light higher recoverable values than the book values of the net capital invested (including goodwill),
therefore excluding the need to reduce the value of the goodwill.
In support of the analysis, the company's Directors decided to further test the recoverable value of each
CGU and the groups of CGUs described above and two separate sensitivity analyses were conducted,
through which the WACC, the “g rate” and the estimates of the Operating Cash Flow were subject to
assumptions of change. More specifically:

e assumption 1: change in the WACC (+/- 1%) combined with the change in the g rate (+/- 0.4%)

e assumption 2: percentage change in operating cash flow (+/- 10%) combined with the change in

the WACC (+/- 1%)

The sensitivity analyses described herein did not bring to light any criticalities in terms of recoverability of
the goodwill booked in the separate financial statements of the Parent company. The parameters that,
taken individually or keeping all other elements constant, zero the cover are:

Reduction in
cash

flow
IEG CGU 15.7% -3.6% 81.4%

The assumptions used for impairment purposes and the results achieved, were approved by the Board of
Directors of Italian Exhibition Group S.P.A. respectively on 27 February 2023 and 16 March 2023,
independently and before these financial statements.

3) Equity investments in subsidiaries

The changes in the item in question are shown below.
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Balance nges in 2022
Balance as

as at
% held Lol (ncreases/ Account Revaluations/| at
1 Decreases transfer ViR oty 31/12/2022

Fieravicola S.r.l. 51% 51 51
leg Brasil Eventos Ltda 75% 502 502
Summertrade S.r.l. 65% 1,711 2,366
Prostand Exhibition Services S.r.l. 51% 148 148
Prime Servizi S.r.l. 51% 31 31
IEG USA Inc 100% 2,046 2,046
Prostand Srl 80% 9,546 9,546
IEG Deutschland Gmbh 100% 0 125
IEG China 100% 0 635
V Group S.r.l. 75% 0 3,380
IEG Asia Pte Ltd 100% 0 350
HBG Events FZ LLC 100% 5,943 5,943
TOTAL EQUITY INVESTMENTS IN

SUBSIDIARIES 19.978 25,123

The following companies were also established during the year:
- |EG Deutschland Gmbh, based in Munich (DE), whose shares are held entirely by the Company
- |EG Asia Pte Ltd, based in Singapore, whose shares are held entirely by the Company.

During the year, the following acquisitions were made:

-V Group S.r.l, based in Rimini (RN), which organises the annual event “My Plant & Garden”. The
Company has acquired 75% of the shares of V Group S.r.l. for 3,380 thousand euros.

- |EG China, based in Shanghai and previously called Eagle. The Company already held a 50%
stake and in 2022, the additional shares were acquired for 291 thousand euros, taking its stake
up to 100%. The Company has been renamed IEG China and moved to subsidiaries.

For the investee Summertrade S.r.l., a capital increase has been applied through a waiver of previous
receivables in an amount of 656 thousand euros, equal to 65% of the total capital increase performed in
the investee by all shareholders.

The table below provides a comparison between the book value in the financial statements of the equity
investments in subsidiaries and the value of the relative portion of shareholders’ equity resulting from the
last set of approved financial statements.

Company name Sharehold
ers’ % value
equity

Registered office of

capital result booked Sharehold

ers’ equity

Subsidiaries
Summertrade S.r.l. 65.00% 105 (1,296) (2,037) (1,324) 2,366
Rimini, via Emilia 155
Prostand Exhibition Services S.r.1. 51.00% 78 1) 109 56 148
Rimini, Via Emilia 155
Prime Servizi Srl 51.00% 60 53 546 279 31
Rimini, via Flaminia 233/A
IEG USA (*) 100% 6,797 (49) 6,688 6,688 2,046
1001 Brickell Bay Dr., Suite 2717° Miami (FL)
FB International Inc.* 51.00% 561 (1,976) (3,185) (1,624) 6,694
1 Raritan Road Oakland, New
Jersey 07436
Prostand Srl 80.00% 182 629 6,522 5,218 9,546

Poggio Torriana, via
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Santarcangiolese 18

HBG Events FZ Llc 100.00% 94 767 1,042 1,042 5,945
P.o Box 4422 Fujairah UAE

Fieravicola S.r.l. 51.00% 100 (14) 113 58 51
Rimini, via Emilia 155

IEG Brasil Eventos LTDA 75.00% 681 (577) 201 151 502
Av. Angelica, 2530 12° andar - San Paulo (Brazil)

Italian Exhibition Group

0,
Deutschland Gmbh 100.00% 25 (106) 19 19 125
Munich — Germany (DE)
V Group Srl 75.00% 10 (225) 426 320 3,380
Rimini, via Emilia 155
IEG China Co. Ltd 100.00% 951 4) 306 306 635
Tianshan Road, Changning District Shanghai, China
IEG Asia Pte Ltd 100.00% 350 3) 347 347 350

1010 Cecil Street, Tong Eng Building — Singapore
*The ultimate parent company of FB International Inc. is Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A. through the subsidiary IEG USA

The Company has carried out impairment testing on the qualified investment in Summertrade S.r.l., the
subsidiary worst struck by the pandemic first and then by the rise in the prices of materials.

That comprised of the flows of the individual stand alone company, was identified as the reference CGU.
Therefore, the value in use of the CGUs identified was determined, by adopting the Discounted Cash
Flow (DCF) methodology. Unlevered free cash flows were determined by using the 2022- 2027 Business
Plan approved by the Board of Directors of IEG on 18 July 2022 and subsequently updated accordingly
to the 2023 Budget approved by the Board of Directors of IEG on 19 December 2022.

The value in use, pro-rata with respect to the percentage stake held by IEG and net of the Net Financial
Position based on the financial statements of the subsidiary as at 31 December 2022 (equity value), was
compared with the value booked to the financial statements.

To determine the Terminal Value, a long-term growth rate (“g”) of 2.0% was used. The source of the data
is the estimate of the expected inflation envisaged in the aforementioned countries in 2027 by the
International Monetary Fund.

For the discounting parameter of the explicit cash flows and the Terminal Value, a WACC of 11.68% was
used and, in constructing the WACC, a Small Size Premium of 3.00% was included, in consideration of
the smaller size of the Group with respect to comparable companies (Source: Duff & Phelps while,
compared with previous valuations, the Specific Risk Premium of 1.00% that had been inserted during
the pandemic years to take account of the “execution risk” resulting from the reduced forecasting capacity
generated by the effects of COVID-19, was eliminated.

The assumptions used for impairment purposes and the results achieved, were approved by the Board of
Directors of Italian Exhibition Group S.P.A. respectively on 27 February 2023 and 16 March 2023,
independently and before these financial statements.

The analysis has revealed an equity value higher than the carrying amount of the investee.

4) Equity investments accounted for using equity method
Associated companies and jointly controlled companies, stated in the table below, are booked and

measured in compliance with IAS 28 or using the equity method.
The changes in the item in question are shown below.
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Balance Changes 2022 Balance
as at Exchan : : as at
% held  31/12/202 FRIECENERE RevaluationsiWrite- . r o [ATRRIZL:
1 offect downs 2

Associated companies
Cesena Fiera S.p.A. 20.00% 838 1,051
IGECo S.r.l.. 50.00% 0 5,127
CAST Alimenti S.r.l. 23.08% 1,467 1,526
TOTAL ASSOCIATED
COMPANIES 2,305 7,704
Jointly controlled
companies
Expo Estrategia Brasil Ltda 23 0
Destination Services srl 50.00% 42 36
EAGLE Asia 358 0
TOTAL JOINTLY CONTROLLED
COMPANIES 423 36
TOTAL EQUITY INVESTMENTS
MEASURED USING THE EQUITY 2,728 7,740
METHOD

Increases come to 5.2 million euros and refer to the contribution made to establish the company IGECo
S.r.l. during the third quarter of 2022.
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The measurements using the equity method contributed a total write-back of 214 thousand euros.

The table below provides a comparison between the book value in the financial statements of the equity
investments in associated companies and joint ventures and the value of the relative portion of
shareholders’ equity resulting from the last set of approved financial statements.

Company name ownership Share Operating Net book % value of Book
Registered office % capital result value of Sharehold value
sharehold ers’ equity
ers’

equity
Associated companies
Cesena Fiera S.p.A. # 20.00% 2,288 540 4,799 960 1,051
Via Dismano 3845
C.A.S.T. Alimenti Srl # 23.08% 126 47) 2,569 593 1,526
Via Serenissima, 5 - Brescia (BS)
IGECO S.r.l. 50.00% 11 (38) 7,472 3,736 5,127

Via Emilia, 155—- Rimini (RN)
Destination Services Srl [#] 50.00% 10 4) 37 18 36
Via Sassonia, 30 - Rimini

#] Data referring to 31/12/2021

All the holdings and shares of the companies referred to above are held directly, without recourse to trust
companies or third parties.

Through Prostand Srl, Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A. holds a further 15.3% in Cesena Fiere S.p.A. For
more information, please refer to the IEG Group’s consolidated financial statements.

5) Equity investments in other companies

The changes in the item in question are shown below.

Balance Changes 2022 Balance
as at as at
0, i ite-
% held at 31/12/2022 31/12/20 . Revalu;tlons/Wnte Transfers EXEIEN
21 owns 29
Uni Rimini S.p.A. 6.00% 62 62
Rimini Congressi S.r.1. 10.06% 10,770 (1,522) 9,248
Rimini Welcome Scarl 10% 8 1) 7
OB Service 15 27
TOTAL EQUITY INVESTMENTS IN
© QU S S 10,885 (1,523) 9,344

OTHER COMPANIES

In December 2020, the incorporation took effect of Societa del Palazzo dei Congressi S.p.A: (in which
IEG has an investment) into Rimini Congress S.r.l. and IEG became the holder of 10.36% of the share
capital of Rimini Congressi S.r.l.

The equity investment Rimini Congressi S.r.l. is measured at FV (through OCI without recycling); write-
downs in the period relate entirely to the adjustment to fair value of the aforementioned equity investment.

6) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
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Balance as at Balance as at
Deferred tax assets 7,424 8,042
Provisions for deferred tax liabilities (2,731)

TOTAL 4,257 5,311

“Deferred tax assets” are recognised up to the limits in which future taxable income will be available
against which to utilise the temporary differences. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset given that
they refer to the same tax authority.

7) Non-current financial assets

The movements in the period for the item in question are reported below.

Balance Changes in 2022 Balance
as at as at
31/12/20 Increases/decrease Revaluations/Write- 31/12/202
HEUSES
21 S downs 2
Gambero Rosso shares 29
Fair value of derivative instruments
TFR policy 331
TOTAL NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL 360
ASSETS

The nature and classification according to the categories established by IAS 39 of “Non-current financial
assets” is reported in the Fair value section of these Explanatory notes. For the measurement of the fair
value of the Gambero Rosso shares, the prices quoted on active markets at the measurement date were
used.
In 2022, a single position was redeemed in the collective TFR policy, for a liquidated total of 29 thousand
euros.

The most considerable change was generated by the reversal of sign of the fair value of financial
derivatives held by the Parent Company, thereby reclassified and coming from Other non-current financial
liabilities.

“Fair value of derivative instruments” in fact came to 1.9 million euros, up by approximately 5.5 million
euros on the balance of last 31 December.

The derivative stipulated on 04 November 2011 with Banca Popolare di Vicenza, now Banca Intesa
Sanpaolo S.p.A., was stipulated in order to hedge the interest rate risk of part of the underlying loan and
makes provision for the swapping of the 6-month Euribor with a fixed rate of 2.95%. The amortisation plan
of the derivative perfectly matched, at the date of stipulation of the contract, the repayment plan of the
Intesa Sanpaolo loan and, for said reason, was initially classified as a hedge, also for accounting
purposes.

In 2014, the company Fiera di Vicenza, transferred to Rimini Fiera S.p.A. effective from November 1st,
2016 (which subsequently changed its company name to Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A.), altered the time-
scales for repayment of the loan with respect to the original repayment plan, extending the pre-
amortisation period. Consequently, the derivative, whose notional value was 60% of the loan subject to
hedging, albeit continuing to guarantee an operational hedge given that it follows the amortisation plan of
the loan until 31/12/2026, no longer possesses all the characteristics to qualify for hedge accounting. For
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the reasons just stated, the derivative is classified as an instrument measured at fair value through profit
and loss of the Parent Company.
The final date of repayment of the Intesa Sanpaolo loan is set for 03 June 2036, around 10 years after
the hedge of the first derivative contract stipulated in 2011. For this reason, IEG’s Risk Management
department opted to stipulate, at end 2018, a second derivative contract at the end of the previous year
on the residual amount of the loan not subject to the previous hedge, in order to mitigate potential
fluctuation in the interest rate risk, with the following characteristics:

e trading date: 07 December 2018;

o effective date: 29 June 2018;

e maturity date: 30 June 2036;

e interest payment dates: six-monthly, 31 December and 30 June of each year;

e total notional: EUR 9635397.46

e fixed rate (pay IEG): 0.96400% (Actual/360)

¢ floating rate (receive IEG): Euribor 6M (Actual/360)

On 16 April 2020, a new loan agreement was entered into with the pool of banks headed up by Credit
Agricole for a total loan of 15 million euros, due on 30 June 2028. Following this agreement, four new IRS
contracts were executed for a partial cover of the debt, in the total nominal value of 10.5 million euros.
Information is provided below on the four contracts stipulated during the year, respectively with Credit
Agricole, BPER, BNL, Banco Popolare di Milano, which have the same characteristics:

e Trading date: 23 June 2020;

o Effective date: 31 December 2020;

e Maturity date: 18 April 2028;

e Interest payment dates: six-monthly, 31 December and 30 June of each year;

e Total notional (of the four contracts): EUR 10546876

o Fixed rate (pay IEG): -0.01% (Actual/360)

e Floating rate (receive IEG): Euribor 6M (Actual/360)

The table below shows the impacts of the change in the fair value of the six derivative instruments as at
31 December 2022.

. Financial income (charges) Change in CFH
VALUATION DATE IRS Fair Value through profit and loss reserve
31/12/2019 (5,228)
31/12/2020 (5,517) 194 (483)
31/12/2021 (3,573) 1,345 598
31/12/2022 1,893 3,328 2,138
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8) Other non-current assets

“Other non-current assets” amounted to 184 thousand euros (69 thousand euros as at 31 December
2021), and refer primarily to security deposits relative to utilities.

CURRENT ASSETS

9) Trade receivables

Details are given below.

TRADE RECEIVABLES CEIEGCEER:- 1M Balance as
31/12/2022 at 31/12/2021

Receivables from customers 20,106 15,559
Trade receivables due from subsidiaries 2,991 2,780
Trade receivables due from associated companies 240 0

Trade receivables from parent companies 861 676
Trade receivables due from jointly controlled companies 87 54

TOTAL TRADE RECEIVABLES 19,069

Receivables due from customers represent the balance of amounts due from organisers and exhibitors
for services relating to the provision of trade fair/conference spaces and the supply of event-related
services. For more information on the past due brackets, please refer to the section "Credit risk", while as
regards the estimate evaluations, please see the section "Use of estimates".

"Receivables due from subsidiaries" relate to trade receivables due from the companies Prostand Srl,
Summertrade Srl, Fieravicola Srl, HBG Events, FB International (held 51% by IEG USA), Prime Servizi
Srl and V Group Srl.

“Receivables due from associated companies” includes the trade receivables due from the associate
Cesena Fiera Spa.

“Receivables from jointly controlled companies” include receivables of the Parent Company due from the
company DV Global Link LLC and IGECO Srl.

“Trade receivables due from parent companies” referred to the receivables due from the parent company
Rimini Congressi, an investee of the Parent Company in the amount of 10.06%.

Receivables are stated net of the bad debt provision, whose changes are reported in the table below.
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Balance Changes in 2022 Balance
as at w Var. Scope of as at
31/12/2021 Provisions Transfers PRI 31/12/2022
Bad debt provision - 145 145
Bad debt provision - taxed 4,419 (145) 5,187
TOTAL BAD DEBT
PROVISION 4,419 5,332

As regards the measurement of receivables, the provision for doubtful debt reflects the hypothesised
losses expected on the Group’s customer portfolio. Prudent provisions have been made, estimated on
the basis of past experience of receivables with similar credit risk levels and the careful monitoring by the
Parent company’s debt collection department, which also considers the historic and economic context of
the reference market. The estimates and assumptions, which are reviewed from time to time, are posted
directly on profit and loss in the year to which they pertain.

Details of the items “Receivables due from subsidiaries”, “Receivables from associated companies” and
“Receivables due from jointly controlled companies”, relating to receivables exclusively of a trade nature,
are provided below:

RECEIVABLES DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES Balance as
Balance
at
as at

31/12/2022 31/12/2021
Receivables due from Summertrade S.r.l. 863
Receivables due from Prostand S.r.l. 1,803
Receivables due from FB International Inc 68
Receivables due from HBG Events lic 14
Receivables due from Fieravicola S.r.I. 32
Receivables due from Prime Servizi S.r.l. -
Receivables due from V Group S.r.l. -
TOTAL RECEIVABLES DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES 2,780

RECEIVABLES DUE FROM ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Receivables due from Cesena Fiera S.p.A.

TOTAL RECEIVABLES DUE FROM ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

RECEIVABLES FROM JOINTLY CONTROLLED COMPANIES

Receivables due from DV Global Link LLC
Receivables due from IGECO S.r.l.
Receivables from IGECO USA S.r.l.

TOTAL RECEIVABLES JOINTLY CONTROLLED COMPANIES

Balance as at
31/12/2022

240
240

Balance as at
31/12/2022
54
30
3

87

Balance as at
31/12/2021

Balance as at
31/12/2021
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10) Tax receivables and payables for direct taxes

Tax receivables for direct taxes Balance as at Balance as
31/12/2022 at 31/12/2021

IRES receivable 29 100
Tax receivables from subsidiaries for fiscal consolidation 0
Total tax receivables for direct taxes 100
Tax payables for IRAP 0
Tax payables for IRES 0

Total tax payables for direct taxes mi

“Tax receivables for direct taxes” recorded a net decrease of 58 thousand euros, in particular the disposal
of the IRES credit of the previous year, coming to 71 thousand euros, and the receivables recorded by
the Company in respect of its subsidiaries for the tax consolidation, coming to 13 thousand euros, of which
9 thousand euros in respect of Prime Servizi Srl and 4 thousand euros for Prostand Srl.

“Tax payables for direct taxes” came to 290 thousand euros at year end, of which 250 thousand euros for
IRAP payables and 40 thousand euros for IRES payables.
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11) Current financial assets

“Current financial assets” include the credit positions of a financial nature of Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A.
vis-a-vis the different subsidiaries and associated companies. An intercompany current accounts system
is in place with Summertrade S.r.l. and Prostand Srl in order to optimise the Group’s financial management

and debt.

Loans to subsidiaries

IEG USA

Summertrade S.r.l.

Prostand Exhibition Services S.r.l.
Prostand S.r.l.

IEG Brasil

HBG Events

Loans to jointly controlled companies

DV Global Link LLC
Destination Services Srl
Igeco Mexico

Igeco USA

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS CURRENT

Balance as at Balance as at

31/12/2022 31/12/2021
6,255 2,919
706 309
3,542 949
177 177
1,267 1,266

331 -
232 218
824 207
3
45
159
3,126

“Loans to subsidiaries” came to 6,255 thousand euros at 31 December 2022 compared with 2,919
thousand euros at 31 December 2021, thereby recording a net increase of 3,336 thousand euros in 2022,

relating to the following transactions:

- Greater use of the Intercompany current account relative to the increases of Summertrade Srl

and Prostand Srl, totalling 2,594 thousand euros;

- Disbursement of a loan in currency to IEG USA Inc. for 400 thousand dollars, i.e. 365 thousand
euros. The residual difference of 32 thousand euros is due to period exchange differences;

- Disbursement of a loan in currency to IEG Brasil for 1,863 thousand Brazilian Real, i.e. 343
thousand euros. The residual difference of (12) thousand euros is due to period exchange

differences;

- Period exchange difference on the loan disbursed to HBG Eventz LLC for 14 thousand euros.

“Loans to jointly controlled companies” amounted to 824 thousand euros at 31 December 2022, up 617
thousand euros compared to the 31 December 2021. The increase relates to the disbursement of a loan to
Destination Services Srl for 40 thousand euros and the disbursement of a loan in currency to Hannover
Fair USA, today IGECO USA, for 600 thousand dollars, i.e. 619 thousand euros. The residual differences

are due to period exchange differences.

12) Other current assets

Details are given below.

Receivables due from others
Accrued income and prepaid expenses
Costs paid in advance pertaining to subsequent years

EEIEGQCESEI@Balance as at
31/12/2022 31/12/2021
546 1,448
1,047 1,114
1,496 1,887
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Other tax receivables 299

TOTAL OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 4747

Details of “Receivables due from others” are provided in the following table:

EEIEGCESEI@Balance as at
31/12/2022 31/12/2021

Personnel - advances 19
Receivables due from agents 47
Suppliers - advances 969
Receivables due from social security institutions 10
Trade receivables 39

Sundry receivables 364

TOTAL RECEIVABLES DUE FROM OTHERS 1.448

“Receivables due from others” amounted to 546 thousand euros at 31 December 2022, a decline of 902
thousand euros compared to the previous year. The change is mainly due to lesser advances granted to
suppliers in 2022.

“Prepaid expenses” refer to portions of costs not pertaining exclusively to 2022, which have already been
recorded in the accounts. “Accrued income” refers to revenues pertaining to the period which will be
recorded in the accounts in a subsequent period. Prepaid expenses as at 31 December 2022 refer mainly
to insurance charges, rental expenses, software and maintenance fees.

The costs already incurred for the staging of trade fairs that will be held in the next few months, and
therefore fully pertaining to subsequent years, were accounted as “Costs advanced pertaining to
subsequent years”.
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13) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are composed of bank current accounts, deposits and available cash. The
trend in cash flows with respect to 31 December 2021 has been reported in the “Cash Flow Statement”
to which reference should be made. It should be noted that there are no restrictions on the use of the

liquidity reported hereunder.

EEIEGI-EER:IMB alance as at
31/12/2022 31/12/2021

Bank and postal deposits 41,557
Cash 21
TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 41,578
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COMMENTS ON THE MAIN ITEMS OF LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

14) Shareholders’ equity
The company’s Shareholders’ equity is detailed as follows:

Balance as Changes 2021 [PNPRINAPN Changes 2022 Balance as

at at at
IV VIV |ncreases Decreases EIMYIVAAN |ncreases Decreases [itaMipirei

Share 52,215 52,215 52,110
Share premium reserve 13,947 13,947 13,924
Revaluation reserves 67,160 67,160 67,160
Reserve pursuant to Law
413/91 1,888 1,888 1,888
Reserve pursuant to Law 21051 21051 21051
266/05 ' ' '
Reserve pursuant to Law
44,221 44,221 44,221
2/09
Legal reserve 10,401 10,401 10,443
Statutory reserve 2,532 2,532 2,540
Other reserves (46,945) 494 (305) (46,756) (46,234)
Prov. for cap. grant invest. 5878 5878 5878
tech. ' ' '
First time adoption reserve (52,806) (52,806) (52,806)
OCl reserve 339 135 (1,387)

Reserve for translation of
foreign financial statements
Reserve for transactions
under common control

Reserve for actuarial

(191) (151) (135)

1,019 1,019 1,019

gains/losses - Employee (400) (501) 384 (117)
severance indemnity
CFH reserve (784) (330) 1,625 1,295
Other reserves 20 20
Retained earnings (Losses) carried
forward 17,221 (12,683) 4,538 1,540 6,078
Profit (loss) for the year (12,683) 12,683 1,610 1,610 1,513 (1,610) 1,513
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 103,848 12,683  (11,073) [EUGKIYAM 5147 ) 107,534

The table below presents an analysis of the breakdown of shareholders’ equity in terms of availability and
distributability, as required by the reformed art. 2427, no. 7-bis of the Italian Civil Code, interpreted by
document no. 1 of the OIC (Italian Accounting Standards Setter).

Uses in the last three years

for
Nature/Description Amount Possibility of Port.ion to cover increase/replenish For other
use (*) available losses ment of share reasons
capital
Share 52,110
Capital reserves
Share premium reserve 13,924 A B, C 13,924
Revaluation reserves 12,034 A B 12,034
Prov. for cap. grants - prev. 5,878 A /B, C 5,878
inv.
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Profit reserves

Legal reserve 10,443 B 10,443
Statutory reserve 2,540 A B 2,540
Statutory reserves ex Ente 0 A B, C 0
Fiera

Extraordinary reserve 0 A B, C 0

Reserve for shares in the 9,248
Parent company

Retained earnings 19,474

Total
Non-distributable amount

Residual distributable portion

* Key S
A: for capital increase B: to cover losses
C: for distribution to shareholders

Detail of calculation of portion of non-distributable reserves Balance as at
31/12/2022

Non-distributable reserves 45,719
Share premium reserve (0]
Revaluation reserves 12,034
Prov. for cap. grants - prev. inv. (0]

Legal reserve 10,443
Statutory reserve 2,540
Losses carried forward 13,396
Other negative reserves 6,233

Plan for purchase of treasury shares 1,073

Value of equity investment in the parent company 9,248
Rimini Congressi Srl 9,248

Total 54,967

The amount of non-distributable reserves is composed of the “Legal reserve”, the “Statutory reserve”, and
“Revaluation reserves”. The “Share premium reserve” can be distributed entirely insofar as the legal
reserve is compliant with the legal limit of 20% of the share capital. In addition, given that the Company
now holds shares in the parent company Rimini Congressi S.r.l., based on art. 2359-bis of the Italian Civil
Code, the value booked to the financial statements for said shares, amounting to 9,248 thousand euros,
cannot be distributed. It should be noted that the “Legal reserve” can be used to cover losses after all
other reserves have been utilised.

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

15) Payables due to banks
The Parent company’s bank debt has reduce don last year by approximately 8.4 million euros as a
consequence of the repayment of instalments in respect of the amortisation plans and the essential non-
use of short-term credit facilities at 31 December 2022.
Following are details about the Payables due to banks in the short and long term and beyond 5 years.

Balance as at Balance as at
Current payables due to banks 31/12/2022 31/12/2021

Other short-term credit facilities -
Credit Agricole pool loan 10,196 12,027
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Banca Intesa SanPaolo (former Banca Popolare di Vicenza) mortgage 1,676
Banco BPM mortgage 1,128
Volksbank mortgage 2,018
Loan - Cassa Depositi e Prestiti - SACE -
Loan - Intesa Sanpaolo - SACE -
TOTAL Short-term payables due to banks 18,549
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Non-current payables due to banks Of which due

Balance as at e 5 Balance as at
31/12/2022 31/12/2021
years

Banca Intesa SanPaolo (former Banca Popolare di Vicenza) 29,311
mortgage

Volksbank mortgage 1,192
Loan - Cassa Depositi e Prestiti - SACE 15,000
Loan - Intesa Sanpaolo - SACE 32,812
SIMEST loan - Trade fair entities 9,352
TOTAL long-term payables due to banks 81,755 19,978 87,667

Below is the Company’s comprehensive net financial position, drawn up in accordance with the Consob
Communication 6064293 dated 28 July 2006 and the CESR guidelines dated 10 February 2005.

IEG S.p.A.
Net financial position (based on the ESMA format)

Net financial position (Euro/000)

31/12/2021

A. Cash and cash equivalents 41,578 42,178
B. Cash equivalents -

C. Other current financial assets 236
D. Liquidity: (A) + (B) + (C) 42,428 42,414
E. Current financial payables (4,505) (7,651)
F. Current portion of non-current financial debt (16,123) (16,850)
G. Current financial debt: (E) + (F) (20,529) (24,501)
H. Current net financial indebtedness: (G + D) 21,899 17,913
. Non-current financial liabilities (98,872) (107,083)
J. Debt instruments (0] 0

K. Trade payables and other non-current payables 452 (5,496)
L. Non-current financial debt: (I) + (J) + (K) (98,420) (112,580)
M. Total financial debt: (H) + (L) (76,520) (94,667)

Net financial position as defined by the new ESMA Guidelines of 04 March 2021 (Consob warning notice
no. 5/21 to Consob Communication)

Compared with last year, bank debt decreases by a total of approximately 8.4 million euros, determined
by the complete repayment of the credit facility opened at 31 December 2021 for 1.7 million euros (Hot
Money financial instrument) and repayments of loans already in place as per the instalments envisaged
by the amortisation plans; no new loans with payments by instalments have in fact been taken out.

Note that in 2022, mainly due to the exponential growth of inflation, central banks have focussed on a
generalised rise in rates, thereby making the debt far more expensive. This has also resulted in a reversal
of the sign of derivative hedges, stated at fair value of 1.9 million euros at 31 December 2022 and -3.6
million euros at 31 December 2021 (the balance at 31 December 2021 of the item “K” is the sum of the
mark to market of financial derivatives and financial debt for the purchase of the company IGECO in the
long-term).
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It should instead be noted that the consolidated results achieved in 2022 involved the verification of the
covenant breach in relation to the NFP/EBITDA ratio (covenant <3.5) at the end of the year identified in
the loan agreement stipulated by the Parent Company with Credit Agricole Italia Spa (Pool Agent Bank).
On 5 December, the Parent Company asked that the application of the covenant be suspended for FY
2022; this request was granted on 10 March 2023. However, in compliance with the provisions of IAS 10,
the loan payables of approximately 10 million euros were classified entirely as short-term.

16) Non-current financial liabilities for rights of use
The balance of 17.1 million euros represents the non-current portion of liabilities recognised for lease fees
still not paid at the close of the half, in compliance with the introduction of new accounting standard IFRS

16 on 1 January 2019.
It should be noted that the item includes payables due to Rimini Congressi S.r.l. for 12.6 million euros.

17) Other non-current financial liabilities

The breakdown of the item in question is shown below.

Balance as at Balance as at
31/12/2022 31/12/2021
Fair value of derivative instruments - 3,573
Other non-current financial liabilities 1,441 1,923
TOTAL OTHER LIABILITIES FIN. NON-CURRENT 1,441 5,496
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As a consequence of the rates increase by the Central Banks, “Fair value of derivative instruments” has
reversed sign and therefore been classified amongst non-current financial assets (for more details, see
paragraph 7) Non-current financial assets).

“Other non-current financial liabilities” represents the estimated price to be paid to the selling shareholders
to purchase the shares in IGECO S.r.l.

18) Provisions for non-current risks and charges

The changes in the item in question are shown below.

Balance Changes 2022
as at Balance as at
31/12/2021 Provisions Uses/decreases RN 31/12/2022

Provision for dispute risks 1,927
Other provisions for risks 10
TOTAL PROVISIONS FOR

RISKS AND CHARGES

1,937

Provisions for risks and charges amounted to 1,789 thousand euros at 31 December 2022, a decrease of
148 thousand euros compared to the previous period. The increases mainly refer to the provision made
for dispute risks by the Parent Company in respect of possible tax litigation and the related accessory
cost for the Group’s legal defence.

19) Employee provisions

The changes in the item in question are shown below.

Changes in 2022
Balance as at

Balance as Uses/decreas  Actuarial 31/12/2022

at 31/12/2021 Provisions

es (Gains)/Losses
Provision for customers’ leaving indemnities 94 14 -
Provision for employee severance indemnity 2,622 27 (262) 506
TOTAL EMPLOYEE PROVISIONS 2,716 42 (262) 506

The balance is composed primarily of employee severance indemnity accrued during the lockout period,
equal to 1,882 thousand euros as at 31 December 2022.

By contrast, for a total of 109 thousand euros, it is composed of the “Provision for agents’ leaving
indemnities” allocated in compliance with article 1751 of the Italian Civil Code and the collective economic
agreement for the regulation of the agency and commercial representation relationship of the commerce
sector signed on 16 February 2009.

The value of the provision for employee severance indemnity at the end of the year conforms to the
amount due to personnel and the allocation was calculated in respect of the laws, the company
employment contract and, for matters not provided for, the C.C.N.L. (national collective labour agreement)
for the trade sector. It should also be pointed out that, following the supplementary pension reform (ltalian
Legislative Decree no. 252/2005; Italian Law no. 296/2006, article 1, paragraphs 755 et seq and
paragraph 765), the amount indicated in the column “Provisions” does not include the sums paid to forms
of supplementary pension or to the “INPS Treasury Fund”.

The Company, in determining the actuarial calculations, avails itself of the support of a professional listed
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in the appropriate Register of Actuaries. The main hypotheses/assumptions used for the actuarial
calculation of the defined benefit plans are shown below.

Demographic assumptions

Probability of death Mortality tables broken down by gender - ISTAT 2015

Probability of disability Zero probability (in consideration of the type of company under analysis)
Probability of resignations The probability of company turnover of 3% was used

Probability of anticipation An annual value of 3% was presumed with respect to an average value of

accumulated employee severance indemnity of 70%

Economic-financial assumptions for calculation of the TFR (employee severance indemnity)

2022 2021
Annual discount rate 3.77% 0.98%
Annual inflation rate 2.73% 1.75%
Assumption of real salary growth 2.73% 1.75%

The discounting of future services for employees deriving from Employee severance indemnity was
measured by recognising market yields according to the provisions of IAS 19. For the discount rate, the
rate relating to high credit rating Corporate Bonds AA with a duration equal to the plan of company
commitments to its employees was taken as a reference.

The results of the actuarial evaluations depend strictly on the financial, demographic and behavioural
assumptions adopted.

The following table, as required by the international accounting standard, shows the results of the DBO
deriving from the change in assumptions.

Sensitivity Analysis - DBO IEG Group SPA

Central Assumption € 1,877
Discount rate (+0.5%) € 1,799
Discount rate (-0.5%) € 1,960
Rate of payments Increases (+0.5%) € 1,882
Rate of payments Decreases (-0.5%) € 1,870
Rate of Price Inflation Increases (+0.5%) € 1,928
Rate of Price Inflation Decreases (-0.5%) € 1,827
Rate of Salary Increases (+0.5%) € 1,877
Rate of Salary Decreases (-0.5%) € 1,877
Increase the retirement age (+1 year) € 1,866
Decrease the retirement age (-1 year) € 1,888
Increase longevity (+1 year) € 1,877
Decrease longevity (-1 year) € 1,877
Assumptions of the previous year € 2,287
Economic assumpt. of the previous and new demographic assumpt. € 2,287
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20) Other non-current liabilities

“Other non-current liabilities” mainly consists of the contribution paid by the Emilia-Romagna Region for
the development of the trade fair district of Rimini, not yet allocated to profit and loss, of 1,719 thousand
euros (1,913 thousand euros at 31 December 2021) and the remainder is the contribution disbursed, as
per Art. 1, paragraph 1051 to 1063, Law no. 178/2020, for investments in instrumental assets that have
not been allocated to the income statement.

CURRENT LIABILITIES

21) Current financial liabilities for rights of use
The item, for 1,681 thousand euros, is composed of the current portion of liabilities recognised for lease
fees still not paid at the close of the year, in compliance with the introduction of new accounting standard

IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019. The balance includes 1,001 thousand euros relating to the lease agreement
of Palazzo dei Congressi di Rimini, stipulated with Rimini Congressi S.p.A.

22) Other current financial liabilities

Details are given below.

EEIEGLCEEEB alance as at
at 31/12/2022 31/12/2021

Accrued expenses 14 50
Amounts due to shareholders for dividends 2 2
Payables due to other lenders within 12 months 4,463
Current financial payables due to subsidiaries 222
TOTAL OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,737

“Payables due to other lenders (beyond 12 months)” includes the residual payable for the purchase of
corporate shares in HBG for 2,373 thousand euros.

“Current financial payables due to subsidiaries” amounting to 349 thousand euros includes the payables
due to IEG ASIA for the equity investment.
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23) Trade payables

Details are given below.

CEIEG-R-EMBalance as at

31/12/2022 31/12/2021

Trade payables within 12 months
Payables due to parent company
Payables to subsidiaries

Vehicle ownership tax

Membership fees and contributions
Payables to other related parties

27,165

10,088

TOTAL TRADE PAYABLES

Payables to suppliers mainly refer to purchases of services necessary to the holding of trade fairs.
Trade payables are recorded on an accruals basis when the service has been received, the goods
production process has been completed and ownership has essentially been transferred of the goods

sold.

The “Payables due to subsidiaries” and “Payables due to associated companies” detailed in the following

tables are exclusively of a trade nature.

EEIEGICIEEMBalance as at
at
31/12/2022 31/12/2021

Payables due to Prostand Exhibition Services S.r.l.
Payables due to Prime servizi S.r.l.

Payables due to Summertrade S.r.l.

Payables due to HBG Events FZ LLc

Payables due to Prostand S.r.I.

1 1
837 831
1,601 544
10 -
7,636 5,093

TOTAL PAYABLES DUE TO SUBSIDIARIES

10,087 6,469

“Payables due to associated companies”, “Payables due to jointly-controlled companies” and “Payables

to other related parties” are summarised in the following table.

Note that the balance of this latter item refers to trade items in regard to companies whose Key Managers
or those of considerable influence are also Directors of Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A.

EEIEGCF-EB alance as at

31/12/2022 31/12/2021

Payables due to Cesena Fiera S.p.A.
Payables due to C.A.S.T. Alimenti Srl

TOTAL PAYABLES DUE TO ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Payables due to DV Global Link LLC

TOTAL PAYABLES DUE TO JOINTLY CONTROLLED COMPANIES

Payables to other related parties

TOTAL PAYABLES TO OTHER RELATED PARTIES
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24) Other current liabilities

Details are given below.

Balance as at Balance as at
31/12/2022 31/12/2021

Advance payments 3,103
Payables due to subsidiaries 1,351
Payables due to social security institutions 992

Other payables 3,788
Accrued expenses and deferred income 240

Revenues paid in advance pertaining to subsequent years 19,983
Other tax payables 2,888
TOTAL OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 32,345

Period changes are mainly due to the increase in revenues paid in advance pertaining to subsequent
years, which last year recorded much lower values, also due to the repositioning in March of the SIGEP
event.

The table below details the items includes in “Other payables”.

Balance as at Balance as at
31/12/2022 31/12/2021

Payables due to customers 932
Payables due to employees 1,190
Payables due to trade union organisations 0
Payables due to statutory bodies 280
Other payables 237
Personnel - salaries 1,181
Security deposits 10
TOTAL OTHER PAYABLES 3,830

“Payables due to employees” include the valuation of accruals of holidays, leave, ‘hour bank’, deferred
monthly pay and other payables accrued and still not enjoyed or paid to personnel of Italian Exhibition
Group S.p.A., while “Personnel - salaries” shows the balance of fees accrued in December and paid in
January 2023.

25) Disclosure on guarantees given, commitments and other contingent liabilities

The table below shows Guarantee granted in its favour

Balance as at Balance as at
31/12/2022 31/12/2021

Sureties 392 903

Note that at 31 December 2022, there was no third party property held by IEG and the Parent Company
has guarantees in place relative to surety for a total amount of 392 thousand euros.
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The following guarantees were issued:
- by the Company in favour of the lessor of the Milan offices for 193 thousand euros;
- by the Company in favour of the lessor who owns Pavilion 9 of the Vicenza trade fair district for
75 thousand euros;
- by the Company in favour of other entities for a total of 124 thousand euros.

It should also be noted that Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A. replaced Fiera di Vicenza S.p.A. in the
guarantees issued by the latter in favour of the investee C.I.S. S.p.A. in liquidation in the amount of Euro
1,200 thousand. This amount was not recorded under guarantees given as the associated provision for
risks is allocated in the financial statements for the same amount.

In order to support the activities of the subsidiaries, on 08 February 2023, the Company signed a letter of
financial backing to Summertrade Srl, up to the limit of 1.755 million euros and, on 06 March 2023, a letter
of financial support to IEG USA, up to the maximum amount of 1.275 million dollars.
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COMMENTS ON THE MAIN INCOME STATEMENT ITEMS

26) Revenues
“Revenues from contracts with customers” include the revenues pertaining to 2022 actually realised in
the performance of the company’s ordinary activities.
The total of the item “Revenues” rose by 37.4 million euros in 2022, equal to +51.5%. This is thanks to
the effect of the resumption of trade fair and congress activities following the block in FYs 2021 and 2020
due to the Covid-19 pandemic. Revenues from contracts with customers relative to the trade fair and
congress business come to Euro 105.5 million, up 57.5 million on the previous period, as evidence of the
resumption of normal Group activities.
As regards other revenues, the drop of 20.1 million euros on the previous period is due to Covid
contributions, which were collected in 2021 in support of the limited activities carried out by the Group.
For a more comprehensive analysis of the trend in revenues in 2022, please refer to the information
already outlined in the Directors’ Report on Operations.

Balance as at Balance as at

31/12/2022 31/12/2021
Revenues from contracts with customers 105,501 47,971
Other revenues 4,456 24,615

Covid contributions
TOTAL REVENUES

0 22,041

.l:EEm 72,586

The following tables provide details on revenues from sales and services by line of business.

Balance as at Balance as at

31/12/2022 31/12/2021
Organised events 86,274
Hosted Events 3,420
Conferences 15,501
Publishing, Sports and Other lines 1,984

Covid contributions (0]
Sundry revenues 2,778
TOTAL REVENUES 109,957

The increase in total revenues net of Covid contributions received in FY 2021 comes to 37,371 thousand
euros. The gross increase, not considering the contributions received in FY 2021 and equal to 22,041
thousand euros, is 59,412 thousand euros.
The increase is spared over the Group’s two main businesses, namely:
- Organised Events, which comes to 86,274 thousand euros, up 49,807 thousand euros
(+136.58%) on the previous year
- Congress activities, which come to 15,501 thousand euros, up 8,338 thousand euros (+116.40%)
on the previous year.

The breakdown of “Other revenues” is shown below.

Balance as at Balance as at

31/12/2022 31/12/2021
Covid contributions 0] 22,041
Other operating grants 1,648 712
Capital gains on disposals of assets 29 17
Income relating to previous years 50 372

Other revenues and income 1,463
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TOTAL OTHER REVENUES

!!E; 24,615

Other revenues come to 4,456 thousand euros, down 20,159 thousand euros on the previous year. The
change mainly relates to Covid contributions collected in 2021 for a total of 22,041 thousand euros.

27) Operating costs

Balance as at Balance as at
31/12/2022 31/12/2021

Raw materials, consumables and goods for resale
Services

For use of third-party assets

For personnel

Other operating costs

(1,834)
(69,728)

(123)
(22,489)
(2,881)

TOTAL OPERATING COSTS

(97,054) (54,565)

“Operating costs” come to 97.1 million euros at 31 December 2022, up 42.5 million euros on 31 December
2021. The increase is due to the normal resumption of trade fair and congress activities after the 2021

block to fight the spread of the Covid-19 pandemic.

Balance as at Balance as at
31/12/2022 31/12/2021

Staff

Wages and salaries

Social security costs

Employee severance indemnity
Other costs

For Directors

(21,627)
(15,814)
(4,420)
(1,139)
(254)
(862)

TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS

O (16.723)
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The table below provides details of the main costs included in the item “Other operating costs”.

Balance as at

Balance as at

31/12/2022 31/12/2021

Municipal Property Tax (479)
Other municipal taxes (409)
Vehicle ownership tax (6)
Membership fees and contributions (442)
Revenue stamps and certification of the books (13)
SIAE (ltalian Authors and Publishers Association) fees, exhibition taxes 2)
Expenses relating to previous years (385)
Other costs (94)
Write-down of receivables 0
TOTAL OTHER OPERATING COSTS (1,830)

28) Amortisation, depreciation and impairment

By contrast, the table below provides details of amortisation and depreciation:

Balance as at Balance as at

31/12/2022 31/12/2021

Depreciation of intangible fixed assets (1,628) (1,823)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (CHEY)) (9,093)
Other asset depreciations (42) (1,427)
Provisions for risks (289) 0

Value adjustments of financial assets other than equity investments (29) (1,603)
TOTAL AMORTISATION, DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT (11,144) (13,946)

Refer to the two paragraphs on property, plant and equipment and intangible fixed assets for more
information.

29) Financial income and expense

Financial income and expense are noted on the income statement in the year in which they are incurred,
as per accruals accounting.

It is also specified that following application of the accounting standard IFRS 16, financial expense on
lease contracts have also been noted under this item.

Specifically, interest income and interest expense, of any source, have been entered at the value accrued
during the year, net of any deferrals.
The breakdown of “Financial income” is shown below:

EEIEGCRECIMM Balance as at
31/12/2022 31/12/2021

Interest income on other receivables 22 18
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Actuarial value of the TFR provision 0
IRS differential 0
Interest income on intercompany current accounts from subsidiaries 14
TOTAL FINANCIAL INCOME 32

With a view to optimising the available funds of the Group, the company has established intercompany
accounts with the main subsidiaries. Interest accrues on these accounts as at 31 December 2022 at the
market rates correlated to the 3-month Euribor.

“Interest income on other receivables” are attributable to credit recovery activities with the collection by
the debtor of default interest for late payment and the interest generated by the Generali Employee
severance indemnity policy are stated under “Actuarial value of the TFR provision”. Note that the actuarial
value adjustment of the Provision for employee severance indemnity at 31 December 2022 recorded
financial income.

The breakdown of “Interest and financial charges” is shown below.

Balance as at Balance as
31/12/2022 at 31/12/2021

Interest expense and expenses on bank debts (1,439)
Other interest expense and charges (170)
Negative differences of swaps (1,039)
IRS differential 1,346
Actuarial value of the TFR provision (18)
Interest expense on rights of use - IFRS 16 (370)
TOTAL INTEREST AND OTHER FINANCIAL CHARGES (1,690)

Banking interest expense concerns almost completely the mortgages taken out by the company and,

to a residual extent, the temporary use of short-term credit lines.

The “IRS Differential” represents the change in the fair value of the derivative, solely for management
purposes, contracted with former Banca Popolare di Vicenza (how Banca Intesa San Paolo) and has
been reclassified to financial income.

“Negative differences of swaps” refer to the interest paid to Intesa SanPaolo at the fixed rate established
by the above-specified contract and the second stipulated in 2018 and the negative differences of swaps
on interest paid to the four banks involved in the pool loan (Bper, Banco BPM, BNL and Credit Agricole).
It should be noted that, as a result of the application of IFRS 16 - Leases, the company recognised interest
expense totalling 386 thousand euros.

The breakdown of the item “Exchange gains and losses” is shown below.

Balance as at Balance as at
31/12/2022 31/12/2021
Exchange gains 445 32
Negative exchange differences (609) 0
TOTAL EXCHANGE GAINS AND LOSSES (164) 32

The positive and negative exchange differences refer to revenues and expenses in foreign currency linked
to the change
in exchange rates, which during the year entail a net loss of 164 thousand euros.
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30) Gains and losses from equity investments
Equity investments in associated companies and joint ventures were measured using the equity method.
Qualified equity investments are booked at cost and are written down in the event of a significant and

prolonged reduction in the fair value with respect to the cost of recognition.

For more information, please refer to the previous comments on financial fixed assets.

Balance as at Balance as at
31/12/2022 31/12/2021

Revaluations of equity investments

Cesena Fiera S.p.a. 20
Rimini Welcome S.c.a.r.l. 2
Destination Service 28
Cast Alimenti 0
Total revaluations of equity investments 50
Write-downs of equity investments
Expo Estrategia Brasil Eventos e Producoes Ltda (191)
IEG China — (formerly Eagle) (65)
C.A.S.T. Alimenti Srl (125)
Rimini Welcome S.c.a.r.l. 0
Fitness Festival International S.r.I. (in liquidation) (30)
Destination Services 0

Total Write-down of equity investments (411)
Total effect of valuation of equity investments with the equity method (361)

Write-downs of equity investments - subsidiaries

FB International Inc.

(276)
Total measurement of equity investments in subsidiaries (276)
Total effect of valuation of equity investments with the equity method (637)

31) Income tax

Taxes are calculated in application of the tax regulations in force.

EEIEGCREEICIMN Balance as at

31/12/2021 31/12/2021
Taxes from previous years 0)
Current taxes (672)
Total direct taxes (672)
Advance IRES (438)
Advance IRAP 46
Total deferred tax assets (392)
Deferred IRES (€15)

Deferred IRAP 9
Total deferred taxes (27)

TOTAL INCOME TAXES FOR THE YEAR (1,091)

Pursuant to point 14) of article 2427 of the Italian Civil Code, and the requirements of IAS 12, the required
information on deferred and prepaid taxes is shown below.

Deferred tax liabilities have been calculated according to the global allocation approach, taking into
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account the cumulative amount of all temporary taxable differences, based on the expected average rates
in force when these temporary differences are offset.

Deferred tax assets were recorded given there is reasonable certainty as to the existence, in the years in
which the temporary deductible differences will carry forward, in respect of which prepaid taxes were
recognised, of a taxable income not lower than the amount of the differences that will be cancelled.

2021

Temporary Tax Temporary Tax

ST T ifferences OC  effect
Deferred tax assets:
Bad debt provision 24.00% 5,445  24.00% 1,307
Provisions for risks and charges 27.90% 1,068 24.37% 260
Agents’ leaving indemnities 27.90% 100 27.90% 28
Taxes for previous losses 24.00% 78  24.00% 19
Membership fees paid in subsequent year 24.00% 10 24.00% 2
$égcr)luments of statutory bodies not paid in the 24.00% 144 24.00% 35
?g;(r)rtlsatlon/deprematlon not deductible in the 25.48% 1,001  25.63% 257
Write-down of Intangible assets 24.37% 206  27.90% 61
Photovoltaic prepaid amounts 27.90% 1,181  27.90% 334
ISat:éutory/flscal misalignment on revaluation of 27.90% 1657 27.90% 462
Value adjustments of equity investments n.a. 227 1.20% 3
Fair value of derivatives n.a. 3,139  24.00% 753
Service cost and interest cost components n.a. 7  24.00% 2
IFRS16 27.90% (354) 17.56% (106)
Exchange differences 24.00% 0 n.a. 0
2020 loss from tax consolidation 24.00% 16,624  24.00% 3,990
;?et\?énci;et”ed tax assets charged to Income 30,533 7.407
Tax effect on “Actuarial Gain & Losses”
component of actuarial calculation of Employee 24.00% 331 24.00% 79
benefits
Effect of cash flow hedge derivatives n.a. 434  24.00% 104
IFRS16 23.32% 1,941  23.32% 453
Total deferred tax assets charged to 2706 636
Shareholders' equity ’
Deferred tax liabilities:
ISatrial(;utory/flscal misalignment on revaluation of 27.90% 4537 27.90% 1,266
Amortised cost - loans 24.00% 548  24.00% 132
Recognised of deferred tax liabilities on PPA 27.90% 3,239  27.90% 904
Exchange differences 24.00% 0 n.a. 0
Total deferred tax liabilities charged to
Income Statement 8,324 2,302
ISatr;]a(;utory/flscal misalignment on revaluation of 27.90% 1542 27.90% 430
Effect of cash flow hedge derivatives 24.00% 0 n.a. 0
Total deferred tax liabilities charged to 1,542 430

Shareholders’ equity

The tables below show the differences between theoretical tax charges (IRES 24% and IRAP 3.9%) and
the tax charge that can actually be recorded in the financial statements, as suggested by IAS 12.
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RECONCILIATION BETWEEN THEORETICAL IRES AND IRES AS PER
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pre-tax result
Theoretical tax charge (24.0%)
Variations on decrease

Photovoltaic plant

Use/cancellation of provisions allocated in previous years
Deductible portion of board and lodging expenses

Dividends from subsidiaries/revaluation of equity investments

Tax amortisation exceeding statutory amortisation

Other decreases

IRS differential

IMU tax

IRAP and lump-sum portion on employee severance indemnity paid
Total decreases (6,535)

Variations on the increase

Write-down of investments and Advances Provision for impairment
Equity investments

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses

Non-deductible amortisation/depreciation and other non-deductible
provisions

IMU tax

Non-deductible portion of board and lodging expenses

Other variations on the increase
Total increases

Taxable amount for IRES (regional business tax) purposes pertaining
to the year

IRES (corporate income tax) pertaining to the year (24% of actual IRES
income)

Tax consolidation income

IRES in Income statement

RECONCILIATION BETWEEN THEORETICAL IRAP AND IRAP AS PER

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Difference between production revenues and costs 1,785
Non-relevant costs for IRAP purposes 22,916
Theoretical taxable income 24,701
Theoretical tax charge (3.90%) -963

Variations on decrease

INAIL (ltalian National Institute for Insurance against Accidents at Work),
Trainees, Tax wedge and similar

Excess tax amortisation

(19,229

Use/cancellation of provisions allocated in previous years
Other decreases (337
Total decreases (20,030)

Variations on the increase

)
)
)
)

Directors' fees

Municipal Property Tax

Other variations on the increase
Total increases

Taxable amount for IRAP (regional business tax) purposes pertaining
to the year

IRAP in Income statement
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32) Related party transactions

The Parent Company, Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A., in addition to its role of management of Group
activities, has operating relations with subsidiaries and associated companies, aimed at maximising
synergies. All transactions are settled contractually and services are rendered and assets transferred at
market prices.

In the stand fitting sector, Prostand maintains supply relations with the Parent Company, to which it pays
fees for the commercial brokerage activities carried out. FB International provides stand fitting services to
Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A. for events in the United States. Summertrade is the official supplier for
catering in the trade fair districts of Rimini and Vicenza, to the Palacongressi di Rimini and the Vicenza
Convention Centre; the relationship makes provision not only for the sale of assets and services to Italian
Exhibition Group S.p.A., but the payment of a fee on the activities carried out in the premises made
available to it. Prime Servizi is the supplier of Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A. regarding cleaning and
porterage activities. Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A., also provides Fieravicola S.r.l., V-Group and Igeco
Srl with accounting and administrative services. IEG is an agent for HBG Events for the sale in Italy of the
Dubai events; HBG is an agent of IEG for the sale of Rimini Wellness. Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A. also
provides Vicenza Holding S.p.A. with assistance and consultancy services.

The statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income and statement of cash flows
show the amounts of positions or transactions with related parties separately from the reference items.

Rimini Congressi is the parent company of the Group and the leaseholder of Palazzo dei Congressi. The
tables below indicate the receivable/payable and cost/revenue transactions as at 31 December 2022
between IEG and the parent company.

In addition, it should be noted that, on application of the IFRS 16 accounting standard, the costs for the
use of third-party assets, relating to rental agreements for the Palacongressi di Rimini stipulated between
IEG S.p.A. and Rimini Congressi S.rl., were completely eliminated and replaced with
amortisation/depreciation and financial charges, as more fully detailed in the table. Financial payables
amounting to 13.5 million euros relate entirely to the discounting of lease instalments to be paid for the
rental of Palacongressi di Rimini, as set forth in IFRS 16.

Equity transactions with the Parent

Rimini Congressi S.r.l.

Company
Trade receivables 837
Trade payables 0
Financial payables 13,522

Revenues and costs with the parent

Rimini Congressi S.r.l. (*)

company
REVENUES

Revenues from sales and services 40

Other revenues 121

OPERATING COSTS

Costs of services 0

Costs for the use of third-party assets (*) (1,286)

Other operating charges 0
GROSS OPERATING PROFIT (EBITDA) (1,225)

FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSE
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Financial income 0
TOTAL FINANCIAL CHARGES AND INCOME 0
TOTAL (1,225)

(*) In applying IFRS 16, costs for use of third-party assets are completely eliminated and replaced with
amortisation/depreciation on rights of use for 1,025 thousand euros and financial charges for 275 thousand euros.

OTHER INFORMATION

33) Disclosure no. 124 pursuant to 04 August 2017

The information required pursuant to art. 1, paragraph 125 of Law no. 124 of 04 August 2017.

No. Name of disbursing entity ‘ Reason Sum collected (€) Colc:gi:éion
1 |GS.E. SpA Photovoltaic incentives November 2021 538 31/01/2022
2 Municipality of Vicenza Municipality of Vicenza grant VIOFF22 24,000 20/05/2022
3 Municipality of Vicenza Municipality of Vicenza grant VOS22 10,000 07/12/2022
4 | Municipality of Arezzo Grant OAR22 13,673 29/07/2022
5 Fondirigenti Open organisation & change management 3,200 09/08/2022
6 | Fondimpresa Contribution for training and development 31,267 13/12/2022
7 Veneto Innovazione Buy Veneto 21 project 12,164 01/04/2022
8 | APT Servizi srl Candidature for MICE International events 25,000 01/06/2022

Total 119,842

34) Employees

The average number of employees is expressed as the number of FTE (full-time equivalent) workers.
The comparison between the average number of employees in 2022 and the previous year is
shown below.

2021
Executives 8.7
Middle managers/White-collar 273.5
workers
Blue-collar workers 8.5
AVERAGE NUMBER OF 290.7

EMPLOYEES
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35) Compensation for Corporate Officers

Compensation for Directors was defined by the shareholders’' meeting on 29 April 2021 for the three years
2021-2023. The compensation resolved envisages a part of fixed remuneration to be assigned to each
director, whether executive or independent or taking part in one of the internal Board committees and,
only for executive directors, a short- and medium-term variable remuneration linked to the achievement
of corporate objectives. The fees of the Board of Statutory Auditors were resolved by the Shareholders'
Meeting on 08 June 2020.

Balance as at Balance as at
31/12/2022 31/12/2021

Directors 638
Statutory Auditors 76
TOTAL COMPENSATION FOR CORPORATE OFFICERS 714

36) Independent Auditors' fees

The table below shows the compensation paid to the independent auditors. The shareholders’ meeting of
30 April 2019 elected PricewaterhouseCoopers S.p.A. as the company’s independent auditors.

Total compensation accrued by the PWC network and booked to the company’s financial statements is
reported below.

COMPENSATION FOR THE STATUTORY AUDIT Balance as at Balance as at
31/12/2022 01/12/2021
Annual statutory accounting audit 72 68

Limited audit on the half-yearly accounts 35 25
Other services and sundry advisory services 45 183

Rimini, 16 March 2023

The Board of Directors
Chief Executive Officer
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ANNEX 1

ATTESTATION OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH ART. 154 BIS,
PARAGRAPH 5 OF ITALIAN LEGISLATIVE DECREE 58/1998

1. The undersigned, Corrado Peraboni, as Chief Executive Officer and Teresa Schiavina as Manager
responsible for preparing the company’s financial documents of Italian Exhibition Group S.p.A. hereby
certify, also taking into account the provisions of article 154-bis, paragraphs 3 and 4 of Legislative
Decree no. 58 of 24 February 1998:

- the adequacy with respect to the company’s profile, and

- the effective application
of the administrative and accounting procedures for the preparation of the Financial Statements as at
31 December 2022.

2. ltis also certified that:
2.1. the separate financial statements as at 31 December 2022:

- were prepared in accordance with the international accounting standards recognised by the
European Union pursuant to European Parliament and Council Regulation no.
1606/2002/EC of 19 July 2002;

- correspond to the results of the books and the accounting records;

- are suitable to provide a true and fair representation of the capital, economic and financial
situation of the issuer.

2.2. the Directors’ Report on Operations includes a reliable analysis of the trends and results of
operations as well as of the position of the issuer, together with a description of the main risks
and uncertainties they are exposed to.

Rimini, 16 March 2023

Statement by the Manager responsible for preparing the company's financial documents
Corrado Peraboni Teresa Schiavina
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Independent auditor’s report
in accordance with article 14 of Legislative Decree n® g9 of 27 January so1o and article 10 of
Regulation (EU) n® 537/2014

To the Shareholders of
Ttalian Exhibition Group Spa

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have andited the financial statements of Italian Exhibition Group Spd (hereinafter, also the
“Company”), which comprize the statement of financial position as of 31 December 2022, the income
statement, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement
of cash ﬂmfmrtheyea:ﬂmnmded and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of

significant acconnting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a troe and fair view of the financial position of Rtalian
Exhibition Group SpA as of 31 December o029, and of the result of its operations and cash flows for the
vear then ended in accordance with International Financial Beporting Standards as adopted by the
European Undon, as well as with the resulations issned to implement article g of Legislative Decree n®
382005,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our andit in accordance with International Standards on Anditing (IS4 Ttalia). Cur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Awditor’s Responsibilities for the
Auecit of the Financial Statements section of this report. We are independent of Ttalian Exhibition
Group SpA in pursuant to the regulations and standards on ethics and independence applicable to
audits of financial statements under Italian law, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Eey andit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our andit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters,
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Key Audit Matters

Auditing procedures performed in
response to key audit matters

Recoverability of the value of intangible
assets

Notes to the financial statements as of 31
December zazz, “Accounting policies” section
and note = - “Intangible assets”

Az of 31 December 2022, the value of intangible
assets in the Company's financial statements was
Enuro ig,015 thousand, accounting for 6% of total
assets, and inclodes poodwill for Earo 8,211
thousand and intansible assets with findite lves
for Eurg 10,804 thonsand,

In accordance with 1AS 36 — Impairment of
assets, management tests the value of goodwill

(CGTUz) to which poodwill is allocated with the
respective recoverable amount, i.e. the hisher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal.

With reference to goodwill, the recoverable
amount as of 31 December 2022 of the CGUs to
which the socdwill is allocated was debermimed
on the basiz of value in use, by disconnting to
present value the estimated fubure cashflows
in the zo22-2027 business plan, approved by
the Company's Board of Directors on 18 July
20z2 and later revised on the basis of the 2023
budget approved by the board of Directors on
1g December zo22, plus the terminal value.

Other intangible aszets with finite lves are
tested only if indicators of impairment are
presant,

We considered the recoverability of intangible
asset values a key audit matter in consideration
of the materiality of the amounts and of the
elements of nneertainty and estimation intrinsic
to the Directors’ assessment of their

O andit approach consisted, preliminarily, in
understanding and evaluating the methods and
procadures defined by the Company to
determine the recoverable amounts of the
CGEUs to which soodwill is allocated and to
identify impairment indicators for intansible

With reference to goodwill, also with the
support of business valnation experts from the
Pw network, we analysed the methods
adopted by management to determine the
recoverable amounts of the CGUs to which
goodwill is allocated, we verified the
reasonableness of the key assumptions
reflected in the valuation models, including the
discount rates, we verified the mathematical
aceuracy of the models used, and we compared
the value in wse of each CGUT with its carrving
amonnt,

We verified management’s considerations
about the identification of the CGUs and the
process of allocation of soodwill, verifying their
consistency with the Company's organisational
struchare.

With regard to intangible azsets with finite
lives we verified the absence of impairment
indicators,

‘We analvsed the forecasts used to assess the
recoverability of gocdwill, verifying their
consistency with the 2023-2027 business plan
and making a critical assessment of the
reasonableness of the estimated cashflows, also
in light of the Company's historical results,
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The key elements of uncertainty and estimation  Fmally, our procedures inchided analysing the
are related to the correct definition and notes to the consolidated financial statements
identification of the OGUs and to the estimation  and the overall adequacy and completeness of
of the future cashflows and the definition of the  related disclosures.

discount rates to be applied to those cashflows,

Responsibilities of the Directors and the Board of Statutory Auditors for the Financial
Statements

The Directors of Italian Exhibition Group SpaA are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Feporting
Standards as adopted by the Enropean Union, as well as with the regulations izsned to implement
article g of Legislative Decree n® 36 /2005 and, in the terms prescribed by lav, for such internal contmol
as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to frand or error.

The Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continme as a going concern and, n
preparing the financial statements, for the appropriate application of the soing concern basis of
accounting, and for disclosing matters related to poing concern. In preparing the financial statements,
the Directors use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Eoard of Statatory Anditors is responsible for oversseing, in the terms prescribed by law, the
Company's financial reporting process.

Audiror's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Cnar objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to frand or error; and to issoe an anditor's report that
includes our opindion., Feasonable assarance is a high level of assurance but i= not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Anditing (154 Ttalia) will always detect a
material mésstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from frand or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they conld reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statement=.

Az part of our andit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Anditing (ISA Italia), we
exercised our professional judgement and maintained professional scepticism throughout the and:t.
Furthermore:

. We identified and assessed the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to frand or error; we desipned and performed andit procedures responsive to those
risks; we obtained audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur
opindon, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from frand is higher than
for one resalting from error, as frand may invelve collusion, forgery, intentional omdssions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

s of b



. We obtained an nnderstanding of internal control relevant to the andit in order to design andit
procedures that are appropriate in the cirenmstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectivensss of the Company's internal control;

. We evaluated the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors;

. We concluded on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the poing concern basis of
accounting and, based on the andit evidence obtained, whether a material uneartainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, If we conclede that a material uncertainty exists. we are required
to draw attention in our anditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
of, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Cur conclusions are based on the
andit evidence cbtained up to the date of our anditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may canse the Company to cease to continue as a going concern;

. We evaluated the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statement=,
incloding the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
tran=actions and events in 4 manmer that achieves fair presentation.

We commurdcated with those charped with zovernance, identified at an appropriate level as required by
154 Talia, regarding, among other matters, the planned zcope and timing of the andit and significant
andit finding=, incloding any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identified durins our
aundit,

We alzo provided those charged with sovernance with a statement that we complied with the
regulations and standards on ethics and independence applicable under Ttalian law and communicated
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on cur
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate the related rizks, or safesnards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determined those matters
that were of most sipnificance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We described these matters in our anditor's report.

Additional Disclosures reguired by Article 10 of Regulation (ELT) n*® 537/2014

Om 37 October 2018 the shareholders of Italian Fxhibition Group SpA in general mesting engaged usto
perform the statutory audit of the Company's and the consolidated financial statements for the years
ending 31 December oo4g to 31 December ooz,

We declare that we did not provide any prohibited non-audit services referred to in article 5, paragraph
1, of Regulation (EU) n® 537,/2044 and that we remained independent of the Company in conducting the
stabubory andit.

We confirm that the opinion on the financial statements expressed in this report is consistent with the

additional report to those charged with povernance, in their capacity as andit committes, prepared
parsuant to article 11 of the aforementicned Regulation.

4of b



-

pwc

Report on Comphance with other Laws and Regulations

Opinton on compliance with the provisions of Commission Delegated Regulation {EL7)
n® zo19/815

The Directors of Italian Exhibition Group Spa are responsible for the application of the provisions of
Commizsion Delegated Fegulation (ET) n® 2019{515 concerning regulatory technical standards on the
specification of a single elecironic reporting format (ESEF - European Single Flectronic Format)
(bereinafter, the “Commission Delegated Repulation”) to the financal statements as of 31 December
2022, to be included in the antmal report.

We have performed the procedures specified in anditing standard (SA Italia) n® 7ooB in order to
express an opinicn on the compliance of the financial statements with the provisions of the

Commission Delesated Fepulation.

In pur opinion, the financial statements as of 31 December 2022 have been prepared in XHTHML
format and have bean marked up, in all significant respects, in complianes with the provisions of the
Commission Delesated Fepulation.

Opinton in accordance with Article 14. paragraph z, letter e). of Legislative Decree
n® g9/zo10 and Article 123-bis, paragraph 4, of Legislative Decree n® 58/1998

The Directors of Italian Exhibition Group SpaA are responsible for preparing a report on operations and
a report on the corporate governance and ownership struchure of Talian Fxhibition Group SpA as of 31
December oo, including their consistency with the relevant financial statements and their compliance
with the law.

We have performed the procedures required under anditing standard (SA Halia) n® 720B in order to
express an opindon on the consistency of the report on operations and of the specific mformation
included in the report on corporate governance and ownership structure referred to in arficle 123-bis,
paragraph 4, of Legislative Decree n® 581998, with the financial statements of Italian Exhibition Group
SpA as of 31 December 2022 and on their compliance with the law, as well as to issue a statement on
material misstatements, if any.

In our opinion, the report on operations and the specific information mehided in the report on
statements of Ttalian Exhibition Group SpA as of 31 December o022 and are prepared in compliance
with the law.
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With reference to the statement referred to in article 14, paragraph o, letter €], of Lezislative Decres
n® 39/2010, issned on the basis of oor kmowledge and understanding of the Company and its
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have nothing to report.

EBologna, 6 April 200y
PricewaterhouseCoopers SpA

Signed by

Giuseppe Ermocida
(Partmer)

As disclosed by the Directors in the paragraph “General information”, the accompanying financial
statements of Italian Exhibition Group SpA constitute a non-official version which is not compliant
with the provisions of the Commission Delegated Regulation (ELT) 2o19/815. This independent
auditor’s report has been translated into the English language solely for the convenience of
international readers, Accordingly, only the original text in Falian language is authoritative.
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Board of Statutory
Auditors’ Report



Italian Exhibiton Group S.p.A.

Eeport to the 2022 Financial Statement: of the Board of Statutory Auditors to the Shareholders' Meeting of Italian
Exhibition Group 5.p.A. pursuant to art, 153 of Legizlative Decree no. 531998 (TUT) and art. 2419 of the Italian
Civil Code

Dear Shareholders,

Dz the year ended at 31 December 2022, the Board of Statutory Aunditors camied out, in accordance with the law and
regulations in force and applicable over ime, the controls and supervisory activities reported hereto, taking mto account
the rules of conduct of the Board of Statutory Aunditors of histed compames 15sued by the Consigho MNazionale der Dotton
Commercializti e deghh Esperh Contabili (MNational Institute of Chartered Accountants) and the indications given m
Consob commumications on corporate control and the work of the Board of Statutory Auditors, as well as by the Corporate
Governance Code.

PricewsterhouseCoopers 5.p A to whose reports reference 15 made, has been appointed to perform the statutory sudit of
the accounts for FY's 2019-2027 and certify the conformuty of the Non-Fmancial Statement.

The Board of Statutory Auditors camed out the superisory achvates also as Internal Control and Audit Commuties.

1, Appointment of the Board of Statutory Aunditors

The Board of Statutory Auditors cwrrently in office was appomted by the Shareholders” Meeting of 08 June 2020 m
accordance with the provizions of the law and the Arhicles of Association; itz mandate will end with the Shareholders”
MMeeting convened to approve the 2022 financial staternents.

1. Verification of independence requirement: of Board of Statutory Auditors

Om 23 February 2023, the Company's Board of Statutory Andrters camed out, with a posifrve cutcome, the annual check
to ensure that all members met the mdependence and professionalism requirenents set forth m article 148, paragraph 3.
of the Comsolidated Law on Finance, as well a= recommendation no. 9 of arbele 2 of the Code of Corporate Governance
of Listed Companies, approved by the Carporate Governance Committes, promoted by Borsa Itahana Sp A | business
associations (ABI Ania, Assomme and Confindustia) apd professional imvestors (Assogestiont), regarding the
mdependence of statutery mudiors of listed companies, also based on the cerificzhons and imformation provided by each
statutory auditor.

Lastly, on 23 February 2023, m hne wath Bule (.11, “Eules of conduct of the board of statutory auditors of histed
compames” of the Consighe Nazionale dei Dottori Commereizlish & degli Espern Contzbih (Wational Instinate of
Chartered Accountants), the Beard of Statutory Andrtors conducted the self-evaluation of the Board, drafiing a specific
disclosure and sent this to the Company. The outcomes of this actrvity are filed m the records of the Board of Statutory
Anditors.

3. Supervision performed and information received

Dhurmg the vear, the Board of Statutory Anditors camed out the supervisory duties reserved fo it in accordance with Art
149 of Ttalian Legzi=lative Decres no. 5871998 (the Consolidated Law on Finanee), the “Fales of conduct of the Board of
Statutory Aunditors” 1ssued by the Consigho Nazionale dei Dotton Commercizlisa e degli Esperti Contabili (Ttzlian
Professional Order of Tax Advisors) and the mdications given m the Corporate Governance Code 1 force from 01 JTanuary
2021.

The 2022 financial year, albet to 2 mitigated extent, and lmuted to the first few months of the year, was also characterized
bw the health emergency from Covid-19 (so-called Coronavimus), due to the sudden retwm to sigmificant levels of
contagon (Omicron vanant), whch changed the scenane forecast for the first quarter of the year. In 2022, the company



guaranteed comphance with all measures to combat and contam the spread of the Cowad-19 virus in the werkplace
establizhed by the shared protocel signed by the social partners and related wpdates.
With regard to the zctivities camed out m 2022 and the mitial menths of 2023, the Board of Statutory Anditors:
z) met 13 oimes m 2022, wnth an average meeting duration of roughly 1 hour and 50 minutes and met 5 fimes duning 2023
up to the present date, as well as a jomt meeting with the Control and Fask Commmittes;
&) attended:

{1} 15 meetngs of the Board of Dectors in 2022 and 3 meetings m 2023;

{1} 4 meetings of the Remumeration and Appomntments Committes in 2022 and 2 meetings m 2023;

{n1) § meetings of the Control and Fizk Committes in 2022 and 3 mestings in 2023;
c} beld m addihon to mformal contact over the telephone and by e-mail 2 meetngs with representatrves of the
Independent Auvditors m 2022 apd 2 m 2023;
d) monttored complianee with the law and the Articles of Aszociation, obtained imfoomation and supervized. to the extent
of 1ts responsibilines, the adequacy of the Company's orgamisational structare, comphance with the prmeiples of proper
admanistration and the adequacy of the provisions 1ssued by the Company to subsidianes, pursuant to Art. 114, para. 2 of
the Consohidated Law on Finance:
e} obtained from the Chief Executive Cfficer, with the frequency emisaged by regulations and the Arficles of Association,
the necessary mformation on the activines camied out by the Company and subsidianes, on the general performance of
management and it= outlock, as well as on the most sigmficant financal transactons resolved and woplemented, whach
are presented in the Durectors” Report on Operations, to which reference 15 made;
) morecver, aoquired the mmformation necessary for carmyving out the activifies for whach 1t 1s responsible, by collecting
documents, data and mformation and through penodic meetings, scheduled for the mutual exchange of relevant data and
mformaton with: (1) the Company’s management; (1) managers of the Company’s orgamsational functions; (iu) the
Manager responsible for prepanng the company’s financial domuments; (1v) the Supervisory Body emvizaged by the
orgamsafion, management and confrol model, adopted by the Company m accordance wath Legslative Decres no.
23072000 {the 231 Meodel™); (v) representatrves of the Independent Auditors; and (vi) the control bodies of the
subsidianies (Summertrade S.rl.);
g) supervised. 1 1t capacity as the “Internal Control and Auwdit Conmuttes™ pursuant to Art. 19 of Ifahan Legislatrve
Decree no. 392010, including through meetings wath the Independent Anditors and with the Manager responsible for
prepanng the company’'s financial documsents, the followmmg matters: (1) the corporate reporting process; (u) the
effechvensss of the mternal confrol internal audit and sk management systems; (1) the statutery andit of the anoual
and consolhidated accounts, and (1v) the mdependence of the auditing firm,
b) monitored the adequacy of the Infernal Control and Fisk Management System and of the Adeumstrative -Accountmg
System as well a5 the reliability of the latter to correctly represent the operational events through the competent busmess
functions.
The Board of Statutory Aunditors reviewed the assessment developed by the Board of Dhirectors regarding the adequacy
and effective fimctioning of the Internal Control and Fisk Management System through:

*the update of the Grudelines of the Internal Control and Risk Management System, within which the Company, using
the logic of the EEM model, defined an mitegrated rizk management model to identify, assess and monitor mbernal
{operatrve), external and strategic nsks of the business;

#the certifications of the Separate and Consclidated Financial Statements by the Cluef Executive Officer and the
Maznager responzble for prepanng the company’s financial documents, who provided the approprnate declarations,



pursuant to paragraph 3 of Art 154-bis of the Consolidated Law on Finance, taking mto account the provisions of
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the same Arhcle;
#the penodic meetings with the Internal Audit Manager in relation fo the actnifies caned out;
#the review of corporate documents and the results of work camied out by the Independent Auditors to whose Reports
refarence should be mads;
*the interactons with the control bodies of the subsidianes (Summertrade 5r.1), pursuant to Art 151, paras. 1 and 2 of
the Consolidated Law on Finance;
#the pariicipation m the works of the Control and Fask Copumttes and, on the occasions when the matters disoussed
called for if, the holdng of joint meetings wath said Committes;
1} monttored the prachcal methods of mmplementation of the rules of corporate governance set forth 1 the Corporate
Governance Code approved by the Coarporate Governance Commuttes promoted by Borsa Itahana 5p AL business
associations (ABL Ama Assomime and Confindustna) and professional mvestors (Assogestion);
[} in connechon with soe1al responmibility topies, momtored observance of the provisions set forth by Itzhan Legislative
Decree no. 25472016, venfying the existence of swtable procedures oversesmg the collechion, formaton and
representation of data relating to mustainability; such mformation was represented in the 2022 Consohdated Non-Finaneal
Statement, prepared in accordance with the mternational GRI Sustamability Repeorting Standards;
m) the Board of Statwtory Anditors also states that 1t has taken mto due considerafion Consob warming notices no. 620
of 09 Apnl 2020 and no. 1/21 of 16 Febmary 2021 and no. 421 of 15 barch 2021 which in light of the consequences of
the Cenid-19 pandemic and. more specifically, for matters within the competence of the contrel body, myvolved the need
fo:
(1) strengthen the information flows with the adwairnstration body responsible for prepanmg the draft finaneial statements;
(11) promote effective and prompt conmumiczhon with the auditors, for the mutual exchange of useful mformation for
fulfilling the respective duhes, also in accordance with art. 150, paragraph 3 of the Consolidated Law on Finance;
(111) pay adequate aftention also on the existence of the poing concern asswmphon, taling into account the publications
by the IFRS Foundation on the provisions to be applied dwmg the cwrent emergency situation hinked to Covid-19 and
the adequacy of the internal confrol system.
The company also tock due consideration of what was mdicated by the Consob Note of Attention dated 18 March 2022
and 19 May 2022, on the cwrent and foreseeable direct and mndirect effects of the Russia-Ukraine c1151s m comphiance
with the Public Statement grven by ESKA on 14 March 2022 and 13 May 2022,

4. 2022 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

The Board of Statutory Auditors received, within the dezdlines prescribed by law, the Directors’ Feport on Operations,
together with the consclhidated financial statements of the group headed by Itzhan Exlubiiion Group Sp 4. and the
separzte financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2022

The financial statements were prepared accordmg to the IFRSs msued by the IASE and adopted by the Fawropean
Commission according to the procedure set out in Art. & of Begulation (EC) no. 1606/2002 of the European Parhiament
and of the Counel of 19 July 2002 and pursuant to Art. 9 of Legizlative Decree no. 381/20035. The IFFSs also include the
LASs and miterpretations in force issued by the IFRS IC.

The "Measuwrement crtena" sechon mndicates the reference mmfermational accountng standards adopted In preparmg the
consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2022, The valuation critenia used for the pwposes of prepaning the
consolidated financial statements for the financial statements as at 31 December 2022 do not differ from those used for



the preparation of the consohdated financial statements as at 31 December 2021, with the exception of those resulhng
from the applicahon of the new acoounting standards |, amendments and mterpretations applicable from 1 Jammary 2022
and refarred to in a specific paragraph mn the section "Measurement entena”.

The Independent Auditors PrcewsterbouseCoopers 5.p.a., which has been assigned the mandate for the statutory audit
of the accounts, 1ssued today the reports pursuamt to Axt. 14 of Legislative Decree no. 392010 and Axt. 10 of Regulaton
(ELT} no. 537/2014 for the separate and consolidated financial statements of falian Exluation Group SpA as at 31
December 2022, expressing an unquahified opimon without requests for specific disclosures.

In particular, with these reports, the Independent Anditors certify:

- that the separate and consohdated financial statements provide a true and acourate representation of the financial and
equity position respectrvely of Itahan Exlubition Group 5 p A. (IEG) and the IEG Group at 31 December 2022 and of the
economic results and cash flows for the vear ended on that date, i compliance wath the IFRSs and with the provisions
1szued m mmplementation of Axt. 9 of Itahian Legizlative Decree no. 382003;

- that the separate financial statemsents and the consolidated financial statements of IEG 5p A, have besn prepared m
HHTML format, m comphance with the provisions of Delegated Regulation (EU) 2019/815;

- that the Report on Operations (prepared jointhy for the separate and consolidated financial statements) and some specific
mnformation of the Report on Corpeorate Governanck and Cramershap Stmactures indicated in Art. 123-bis, paragraph 4 of
Itahian Legislative Decres no. 58 1if 24 February 1998, for wiuch the Dhrectors of Itahan Exhibvhon Group Sp A are
responsible, are consistent with the separate financial statements and the consobidated financial statements of the [EG
Group at 31 December 2022 and have been prepared m compliance with the Lo

£. Most significant economic, financial and equity transactions

Durng the wear, as detaled in the Management Report, the Group finahzed mportant corporate and acqusibon
tramsachons, larpely aimed at mternstional development, which aimes to posibon the IEG Group with s four most
exportable products (Sizep, Jewellery, FimessWellness, Ecomondo) in fowr non-Fwropean areas of the globe, in
collaboration and synergy with important mtermnational operators 1 the sector.

The crdmary sharsholders' mesting of 29 Apnl 2022 authorized the purchase, zale and disposal of treasury shares,
pursuant to and by effect of art. 2357 et seq. of the Civil Code and arficle 132 of Lemislative Decree no. 5871993,
appointing the Board of Divectors for this pwpose, which m the meeting of 29 Augnst 2022 resolved to launch the treasury
share buyback programme.

6. Intercompany transactions or related party transactions

Durmg FY 2022, the Intermal Audit Department Manager provided quarterly reports at the mesting=s of the Control and
Fizks Committes attended by the Board of Statutory Auditors, with analyheal assessments of the venficanon of related
party fransactions.

As noted 1o the Dhrectors” Report on Ciperations, mtercompany transactions relate to both the exchange of goods and/or
services and were camed out under market conditens and on the baszis of reciprocal cost effectiveness and finaneial
transachions to offer investes companies finaneial backing.

Related party fransachons were adequately described in the anmmal divectors' financial report, which detailed, accordingly,
the nature of the transactions and the resultng economur and equuty effects. It should also be pomted out that all
commercial transactons and the provision of services with related parties tock place under market conditions, taking
azccount of the charactenstics of the goods sold and services provided.



In this regard, there have been no reparts, nor has any evidence emerged, of any simations entailing a conflict of mterest
or that transactions were camed out that were manifestly mmprodent or nsky, that 1=, capable of comproou=zing the financial
situation of the Company and'er Groagp.

Based on the mformation available to the Board of Statutory Auditors, no evidence has emerged of atypical and/or wmusual
transachons.

7. Meeting: with the Boards of Statutory Auditors of subsidiaries: Art. 151, parasz. 1 and I of Italian Legizlative
Diecree no. 55 of 24.2.1995

From meetmgs held wth the Boards of Statutory Anditors of the subsidianes, where present (subsidiary Summertrade
Srl), oo sigmficant 1ssues and'or facts emwerged that should be noted. except for the mfommatnon which followrs.
Momover, the adequacy of the instructions 1ssued by the parent company was confimed.

3. Obzervation: on the adequacy of the orgamizational structure

Based on 1ts own competencies, the Board of Statutory Auditors superised the adequacy of the Company’'s orgamsational
stmcture with respect to the management and control requiremnents in refarence to business operations.

The Board of Statutory Auditors acknowledges that the crgam=ational sbucture has been updated mn accordance with the
changes that have tzken place in the organization|

9, Obzervation: on the adeguacy of the Internal Control and Rizk Manazement System

It 15 noted that this Board contmed to menttor nsk management which from a methodelogical pomt of view, follows
the logic of the ERM (Enterprize Fazk Management) model.

In accordance with the provisions of Art. 149 of the Consolidated Law on Fmanee, the Board of Statutory Aunditors
acknowledges that no wezknesses or cnfical issues emerged from supervisory actvifies that could be conmidered
mdicators of inadequacy of the mtemal control and nisk management system.

The Supervizory Body purmant to Lemslatve Decres no. 23172001 presented the half-yearty reports on achvites camed
out durmg 2020, which invohred monitorning the effectiveness of the 231 Model, in which no facts or situations were
reported that should be kighlighted in thes report.

10, Obzervation: on the adeguacy of the adminiztrative-accounting syztem and itz reliabibity in correctly
representing operational events

The Board of Statutory Auditors has no observations to make on the adequacy of the admimistrative-accounting system
and on reliability m comectly represenfing operatonal events.

11. Observations on any relevant issues that emerged during meeting: held with the Independent Aunditors
pursuant to Art. 130, para. 1, of Legizlative Decree no. 581998 and Art. 19, para. 1, of Legizlative Decres no.
3971010

Drurmg 2022, and subsequently in 2023, the Board of Statutory Andrtors held 4 meetings as well as engaged in regular
exchanges of mformzton with the Independent Aunditors. The exchanges of mformation that took place with the
Independent Auditors pursuant to Art. 150 of Lagislative Decres no. 3898 and Ast 19 para. 1 of Legizlative Dacree no.
3972010 did not dentify amy eritical 1ssues.

The Independent Anditors PricewaterhouseCoopers S p.A | in the reports 1ssued on 06 Apnil 2023 pursuant to Art. 14 of
Lagslatve Decree no. 392010 and Art 10 of Rsgulation (EUT) no. 537/2014 for the separate and consolidated finaneial
statements of Italian Exhibihon Group 5.p_A. a5 at 31 December 2022 expressed an unqualified opimen without re quests
for speaific disclosures or related observations or lnmitations.

In the additional Report fo the Internal Control and Andrt Conmuitee izsued i accordance with Art. 11 of Enropean
Regulztion (ELT) 5372014, on today’s date, the mdependent auditors PricewaterhouseCoopers 5.P A confirm that, based



on the evidence acquired, the pong concemn assumphon is zppropnate for the preparanion of the separate fimancial
statements and the consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2022

In particular, the independent auditors evaluated the completeness and consistency of the financial disclosures with the
evahiations camed out by the Manapement on the compary's ability to operate as a going concem.

The Independent Auditors m their report, for the pmposes reforred to in Art. 19 of Lemslative Decres no. 392010, notes
that they did not 1dentify any fundamental 1zsues during the audits nor were there sigmificant weaknesses m the miernal
control sy=tens with reference to the finaneial reporimg process.

11, Assizmment of mandates to the Independent Auditors and independence

The Board alszo momtored the mdependent audit of the ammmal accounts and the consobdated accounts and the
mdependence of the mdependant auditors, with particular affention to any non-audit serices provided to thens.

The fees for the mdependent audit camed out on the accounts presented for the financial vear ended on 31 December
2022, for the Group compames by the mdependent auditors PncewaterhouseCoopers 5 P A were published in the 2022
Anmual Finaneial Repert.

The table below summarises the taxable fees, relating to audit actrities (m Furos):

Tvpe of Services Entity that provaded the serace Eecipient Fees

Andit PrcewaterhouseCoopers Sp & [EGSpA 106.178.
Andit PrnicewaterhouseCoopers S p.A. Summertrade Srl 5,515
Andie PricewzterhouseCoopers S p A Prostand Srl 21.950.
Andie GC Consultants Inc FB International 45582
Andie PEFSpA. FB International 59,769,
Andie Jaxa Chartered Accounts HGEB Events FZ Lic 2417

In relation to the other services, the fees for the mdependent auditors and other enfines m their network, are summansed
m the table below (1n Fures):

Tvpe of Services Entity that provided the serice Fecipient Fees

2022 NFS PricewzterthouseCoopars 5p A | EGSp A 30,930,
Certification of related party rec./pay. PncewaterhowseCoopers Sp 4. | [EGSp A 500.
ESEF 2022 Format PricewzterthouseCoopers 5p A | EGSp A 16,000,

The Board of Statutory Aunditors today received from the mdependent auditing fimn PricewaterhouseCoopers Sp A,
anmal confirmation of mdependence mn accordance with Art. 6, paragraph 2 of Ewropean Regulation no. 537/2014, on
whach basis m the penod munnmg from 01 Jamuary 2022 to today s date, they had respected principles in matters of ethues
pursuant to Artcles 9 and 9 s of Itabian Legslative Decree no. 392010 and no siuatons were seen that had
compromused thewr mdependence m zccordance with Articles 10 and 17 of Italian Legislative Decree no. 3%/2010 and
Articles 4 and 5 of the above-specified European Regulatbon.

Considenng the foregoang, the Board of Statutory Auditors believes that no crifical aspects kave emerged regarding the
mdependence of the independent auditmg firm.

11, Opimions izzned during the yvear

Drunng the vear, the Board of Statutory Auditors 1ssued an opinzon pursuant to Art. 2389, thrd paragraph, of the Itahan
Civil Code, related to the renmneration of executive divectors.

It also gave the opimon, in accordance with the provisions of Art. 154 bas of the Consohdated Law on Finance, on the



temporary appomtment. to replace Mr. Carlo Costa, of Mz, Lucia Cicognam as Manager m charge of prepanng the
corporate accounting documents and the subsequent appomtment to this function of Ms. Teresa Schiaving.

14. Indication of the Company’s adherence to the Corporate Governance Code of Listed Companies

In comphance wath the provisions m Art. 149 ne. 1, letter ¢} bis of Lemslative Decree no. 58/93 we acknowledze that
the Company adheres to and bas comphed firstly, with the Code of Corporate Governance promoted by Borsa Itahana
Sp-A. by business associations (ABL Ama Assornvme and Confindustia) and by professional mwvestors (Assopestiom),
also n respect of the prmeiple of the prevalence of substance over form, applymg its recommendations on the basis of
the “comply or explain” principle.

Adherence to the regulanons envisaged by the aforementioned Code of Corporate Governancs approved by the Corporate
Governance Commuttes, was cbserved and was the subject of the Feport on Coarporate Govemnance and Oomership
Structures prepared by the Board of Directors on 16 March 2023,

As required by the Code of Corporate Governames, dwring the year the Board of Directors venfied the effechve
mdependence of mdependent directors and the Board of Statutory Auditors venfied the comect apphication of the entena
and the procedures applied. In accordance with the provizions of point 9 of Art. 2 of the Code of Corporate Governance,
the Board of Statutory Auditors also venfied that 1t confinued to meet the mdependence requranent.

The Board of Statutery Auditors has also acknowladged the preparation of the “Report on Remmmeration Policy and Fees
Paid m accordance with Art 123-ter of the Consohdated Law on Fimance” approved by the Board of Dhirectors on 16
March 2023; 1t kas no comments to make in this regard.

The Board of Statutory Auditors has been updated regardms developments in the business sector in which the Company
operates and the reference regulatory framewaork, both durng the penodic meeting= of the Board of Directors and through
specific compmmications pursuant to Recommendaton 12.d) envisaged mm Axt. 3 of the Corporate Governance Code.

1% Non-Financial Statement pursuamt to Art, 4 of Legislative Decree me, 2542016

Having acknowledged Art. 4 of Itahan Legizlative Decree no. 253472016 on the commmmication of non-financial
mformation and the mmplementing regulation 1ssued by Consob no. 20267 with resclubon of 18 Japuwary 2018, m
azccordance with Art. 3, paragraph 7 of Legslatve Decres no. 2542016 and Consob Note of Afttention no. 1/21 of 16
February 2021, the Board of Statutory Anditors momtored the approval of the IEG Group WES at 31 December 2022,
which was grven by the Board of Dwectors on 16 March 2023, Tt also momtored cbservance of the provisions set forth m
this decree and the recommendations, of which the independent auditing firm has cerfified the existence and comphiance,
and today 1ssued 3 separate report on the Consolidated MNon-Finanetzl Statement at 31 December 2022, certifyng that
nothing had been brought to s attenhion that would suggest that the IEG Group NES relztive to the vear ended 31
December 2022 had not been prepared, m all sigmficant aspects thereof, in comphance with the requrenvents lad down
by Articles 3 and 4 of the Decree and by the GRI Standards with reference to the selection of GFI Standards reported
therem.

16. Final azsessment: regarding the supervisory activities carried out az well as any omizsions, reprehenszible facts
or irregularities found during the assessment.

By virtue of the supervisory achvibies carmied out by the Board of Statutory Anditors, as deseribed above, no reprehenaible
facts, omussions or oregulanfes emerged that requred reporting to the competent supervisory and contol bodies or
presenting m this Keport, mor were complamts recernved pursuant to Art. 2408 of the Itahan Civil Code or reported.

The Board of Statutery Aundrtors 15 not aware of other facts or reports that should be noted for the Sharshelders" Meetimg.
17. Indication of any proposal: to be presented to the Shareholders” Meeting purzuant to Art. 153, para. I of
Legizlative Decree mo, 581998



Grven the above and based on the financial statements as at 31 December 2022, presented by the Board of Directors on
16 March 2023, the Board of Statutory Auditors has not identified any impediments to thewr approval and expresses a
favourable opinion on the proposal to allocation of profit for the vear formulated by the Board of Directors and mates
the Shareholders" Meeting to resolve accordingly.

With the approval of the financial statements as at 31 Diecember 2022, the mandate of the Board of Statutory Auditors
appomted on 8§ June 2020 by the shareholders' meeting of [EG 5.p A, expires.

Lastly, the Board of Statutory Auditors would like to thank the Shareholders of IEG Sp A, for the trust granted, as well
as the company's Board of Directors and its management for the frmtful collaboration that took place durmg the three-

wear perncd.

Famini-Modena, 6 Apnl 2023

On behalf of the Statutory Auditors

The Chanperson

Alessandra Pederzokh

Thiz statutory auditor s report has been translated inte the English language solsly for the convenience of international

readers. Accordingly, only the eriginal text in ltalian language is autheritative.



/4= O\ ITALIAN
'OPEN XHIBITION

| FERAUSIN

&/ GROUP

Providina the future




